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Ed Clancy MBE, Double Gold Olympic Medallist.
Cyclist for team GB and Rapha Condor JLT

JLT have supported Rapha Condor JLT since the beginning
of 2013, aiming to bring a new generation of British cyclists
to the fore in one of the UK’s fastest growing sports.

Rapha Condor JLT is a development team, showcasing and
fostering the most promising young cyclists in the UK.
Sponsoring the team fulfils our desire to support sport at
grass roots level, particularly where our involvement can
deliver meaningful value through links to our products and
services such as CycleGuard and JLT Sport. 

The drive, passion and enthusiasm of the team are strongly
aligned to the culture at JLT. This sponsorship has caught
the attention of our clients and employees, many of whom
are keen cyclists or spectators of the sport. 

Front cover photo: Tom Moses, one of Rapha Condor JLT’s
under 23 development riders.

JLT is one of the world’s largest
providers of insurance, reinsurance and
employee benefits related advice,
brokerage and associated services.
Our client proposition is built upon our
deep specialist knowledge, client
advocacy, tailored advice and service
excellence.

Our website contains a dedicated investor area with latest
news, results webcasts and dynamic annual report pdf
www.jltgroup.com/investors/annual-and-interim-reports/

In August 2013, JLT employees in London moved
into new premises, The St Botolph Building. The
office is a state-of-the-art facility located a short
distance from our previous offices. It is the first
time all of our London based teams have been
housed in the same premises.
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27% of the
world’s airline
market

JLT acts for 27% of the
worldwide commercial airline
market for airlines with
individual fleet values in excess
of USD50 million.

4th largest Reinsurance
broker in the world

The acquisition of Towers Watson Re and its
combination with JLT Re to form JLT Towers Re
has created a new force in the reinsurance market.

We centre everything we do on the client with a
proposition based on deep knowledge, tailored
advice and service excellence.

OUR CLIENTS

FIRST
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Half a million
people now
using BenPal

Over a half a million people
in the UK are now using
BenPal, our integrated
online employee benefits
software platform.

Providing services to
95% of Australia’s
Local Government
entities

JLT provides services to over 95% of
Australia’s Local Government entities.

Strong and growing
presence in Latin
America

JLT is the largest reinsurance broker
in Brazil with over 90% of the oil &
gas reinsurance market.

Working with more than 90% of
major private banks in Asia

As a high-net-worth life insurance broker we work with
more than 90% of major private banks in Asia to deliver
wealth management solutions across the region.

30% of the world’s
mobile drilling rig fleet

Our Energy & Marine team arrange insurance
for some 30% of the worldwide mobile
drilling rig fleet including the world’s two
largest companies in the sector.
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We have delivered another strong set of
results in 2013, illustrating how the
successful execution of our strategy is
enabling us to maintain the positive
momentum we have established over
recent years, despite what proved to 
be a very challenging trading environment.

* Total revenue comprises fees, commissions and investment income
** Underlying results exclude exceptional items
*** Comparatives have been restated to reflect the impact of IAS 19 (Revised).

Segmental breakdown

2013 turnover by division

Risk & Insurance
£719.4m

Employee
Benefits
£255.2m

2013 turnover by location of client

UK 35%

Americas 25%

Australia & 
New Zealand
15%

Asia 15%

+11%
2013 Growth Rate

Underlying Profit Before Tax** (£m)

Underlying Trading Profit** (£m)

Underlying Diluted EPS** (Pence)

Total Revenue* (£m)

979.2

2011

818.8

2012

880.1

2013

+16%
2013 Growth Rate

+13%
2013 Growth Rate

+13%
2013 Growth Rate

185.4

2011

146.8

2012

160.2

2013

177.4

2011

142.0

2012

156.4

2013

54.5p

2011

43.3p

2012

48.2p

2013

Europe 8%
Rest of the World 2%

pence per share 2013 2012*** change

Underlying diluted EPS** 54.5p 48.2p 13%

Reported diluted EPS 46.4p 46.5p -

Total dividend per share 27.2p 25.5p 7%

£m 2013 2012*** change

Total revenue* 979.2 880.1 11%

Underlying trading profit** 185.4 160.2 16%

Underlying profit before tax** 177.4 156.4 13%

Reported profit before tax 154.6 151.5 2%

***

***

***

***

***

***

Turnover excludes investment income

£974.6m

£974.6m

26%

74%



WHERE WE OPERATE

JLT is one of the world’s largest 
providers of insurance, reinsurance and
employee benefits related advice,
brokerage and associated services. 

JLT owns offices in 39 territories with
9,145 colleagues, supported by the JLT
International Network. This enables us to
offer risk management and employee
benefit solutions in 135 countries around
the world.

39
Territories

9,145
Employees

135
Countries

Australia
Bahrain
Barbados
Bermuda
Brazil
Canada
Chile
China
Colombia
Denmark
Finland
France
Germany
Guernsey
Hong Kong
India
Indonesia
Ireland
Japan
Macau

Malaysia
Netherlands
New Zealand
Norway
Peru
Philippines
Qatar
Singapore
South Africa
South Korea
Spain
Sweden
Switzerland
Taiwan
Thailand
UAE (Dubai)
UK
USA
Vietnam

Owned locations

Austria/Central & Eastern Europe
France
Italy
Mexico
Spain

Associates
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Our mission
Client First

We act in our clients’ best
interests and bring the best 
of JLT to all of our clients.

Independent

We advise our clients without
influence or bias and value
innovation and creativity.

Results Based

We expect to be judged 
and rewarded based on 
our performance.

The five elements of our strategy balance the interests of our clients, our employees, our trading partners
and our shareholders.

Our values

Our strategy

Collaboration
We recognise that our people drive
our success. 

Our people work together as One JLT
to share knowledge, solve problems
and deliver the best solutions for our
clients.

Agility
We think fast, move swiftly and act
decisively. 

Our entrepreneurial drive gives us the
freedom to take on new challenges,
think creatively and capture
opportunities that others cannot.

Rigour
We work with integrity and discipline
and stand up for what we believe in. 

Our work is thorough and our
solutions robust, because it really
matters to us to do what is right - for
our clients, our people, our trading
partners and our investors.

Focusing and
growing in
specialist areas
Focusing and growing
in specialist areas
within our existing
operations 
where we can offer
distinctive products,
services and
independent choice.

Building our
international reach
and relevance
Building our
international reach
and relevance,
especially in the
world’s high growth
economies, to better
meet the needs of
local and multinational
clients and trading
partners.

Improving our
efficiency and
effectiveness
Improving the way we
work and serve clients
through innovation
and by investing in the
efficiency and
effectiveness of our
people, systems and
processes.

Providing a
distinctive working
environment
Providing a distinctive,
entrepreneurial and
results-based work
environment that
attracts, develops and
retains the best
individuals.

Operating
collaboratively 
as One JLT
Operating
collaboratively as 
One JLT to bring the
best of JLT to our
clients and trading
partners anywhere in
the world.
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Our people

At JLT we know that our
business is first and foremost
a people business. It is the
knowledge, intelligence,
entrepreneurialism and
integrity of our people that
sets JLT apart and enables us
to go beyond our clients’
expectations. 

Across the JLT Group we seek to retain and
recruit only the most talented individuals and
to provide them with a supportive working
environment that helps them build their
knowledge, capabilities and skills, providing
opportunities for long-term and fulfilling
careers.

Specific Group-wide development
programmes continue to gain traction across
our businesses globally to identify and
develop our managers and leaders of the
future, combined with a range of technical
and skills based learning opportunities.

An important element of this is to encourage
individuals to work together in cohesive and
focused teams, promoting collaboration,
personal accountability and responsibility and
allowing every person to be recognised and
rewarded for their efforts. A number of

examples of this can be seen around
acquisitions for example, when employees
with diverse skills, knowledge and expertise
join forces and collaborate to produce
tremendous business-changing results.

Wide share ownership and share option
schemes encourage employee engagement.
Regular briefings and townhall meetings,
conducted in person or using the JLT intranet,
keep employees informed about the Group’s
performance and matters that affect them.

In 2012 we ran our first Group-wide staff
engagement survey. Since then each business
has been focused on acting on suggestions
and feedback received through employee
focus groups at business level. The staff
engagement survey will be re-run in 2014 to
measure our progress and to gauge staff
engagement and gather further feedback.

Our culture

International Senior Management Programme
Each year JLT runs the International Senior Management Programme
(ISMP) its flagship senior development programme for our most
promising people drawn from the Group. Its purpose is to build world-
class leadership capabilities, deep understanding of the JLT Group,
promote greater collaboration, strengthen relationships and protect the
Group’s culture.

Those employees attending the 2013 ISMP included: Alan Butler, Luis
Cardoso, Jonathan Collins, Jonathon D’Arcy, Jeremy Eagles, Graham
Edwards, Alvaro Eyler, Duncan Fraser, Matthew Grimwade, Sarah
Hughes, Hank Jeuring, Matthew Kimber, Jose Ignacio Lathrop, Joseph
Low, Andrew Minnitt, Matthew Riddle, Jeremy Rowsell and Emily Villatte.

We are fiercely protective of our unique culture. A culture that sets us
apart from our competition and that allows us to attract and retain the
best talent in the market, generate acquisition opportunities and win
and retain clients around the world. A culture that seeks to balance the
interests of our four stakeholders: our Clients, our People, our Trading
Partners and our Shareholders.

As we have grown, we have taken deliberate steps to ensure that our
culture is clearly defined and protected. We take particular care when
recruiting new colleagues and making acquisitions to ensure that those
joining us share our culture and values. 

As a result, we believe that our culture is more understood, celebrated
and embedded across JLT today than it has ever been. 

Passionate
Advocates

Our People Our Clients

Our Trading Partners Our Shareholders

Analytical

Client First

Entrepreneurial

Collaborative Expert

Innovative

Independent

Our Culture 

OUR PEOPLE AND OUR CULTURE
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Risk & Insurance
Our Risk & Insurance business comprises our
global specialty insurance and reinsurance
broking operations and our wholesale insurance
broking business.

Our specialist teams focus on those sectors
where we have a distinctive level of knowledge
and expertise. Working in partnership with clients
to manage the key risks they face, we act as
their intermediary with insurers and reinsurers as
well as providing related risk management,
analytical, advisory and other services.

Risk & Insurance

£723.9m
+7%

21%

£149.9m
+7%

5,165

Advice and consultancy
Advising our clients on their
insurance and reinsurance
requirements, ensuring that they
understand the likelihood and
potential severity of the risks they
face, the options available to
mitigate them and the potential
cost. This then allows our clients to
make an informed decision that
balances price, coverage and risk
appetite. We also provide capital
raising and corporate finance advice
to insurance market clients and
investors.

Brokerage and placement
Acting as intermediaries with
insurers and reinsurers all over the
world, using our specialist
knowledge to negotiate and place
insurance cover on our clients’
behalf.

Specialist insurance products
Providing our clients with access to
certain facilities and insurance
products through bespoke
agreements that we have struck
with insurers without taking any
balance sheet underwriting risk.

Other services
Providing a range of related services
to our clients and insurance market
counterparties in areas such as
captive and claims management
and administration.

Our global Risk & Insurance businesses provide services including: 
Our businesses:

JLT Specialty p29
JLT Australia & NZ p29
Lloyd & Partners p30
JLT Towers Re p30
JLT Asia p31

JLT Latin America p31
Thistle UK p32
JLT Canada p32
JLT Insurance Management p32
JLT South Africa p32

Revenue
2013

Trading Margin
2013 

2012: 21% 2012: 4,391

2012: £676.4m 2012: £139.7m

Underlying Trading Profit
2013

Employees
2013

Contribution to Group revenue
2013

74%

Read more on page 28
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Employee Benefits
Our Employee Benefits business offers a
comprehensive range of employee benefits
advice and services to companies, pension
trustees and individuals. 

Our specialist teams act as advisors,
intermediaries and service providers in the areas
of pensions consultancy and administration,
employee benefits and healthcare, life insurance
and wealth management.

£255.3m
+25%

22%

£55.8m
+29%

2,525

Employee Benefits

Pension and retirement services
Providing a range of services,
primarily focused on the UK
market, designed to meet the
requirements of both pension
trustees and corporate sponsors,
including pension scheme
administration, actuarial
consultancy, scheme design and
risk transfer consultancy,
governance, independent trustee
services and member
communications.

Health and benefits
Providing advice on and
implementing employee health and
benefit programmes, medical
claims administration, occupational
health services and placement of
health and risk protection policies
for corporate workforces. These
health and benefit programmes are
increasingly managed using JLT’s
own integrated online benefits
platform, BenPal.

Investment services
Advising on many aspects of
investment and discretionary
management of assets for both
high-net-worth individuals and
company pension schemes.

Wealth management
Offering advice and support to
high-net-worth individuals in
respect of their financial planning,
at retirement support and life
protection requirements.

Our businesses:

UK & Ireland p34
Asia p34
Latin America p34
Australia & NZ p35
Canada p35
South Africa p35

Revenue
2013

2012: 21% 2012: 2,010

2012: £203.7m 2012: £43.3m

Trading Margin
2013

Underlying Trading Profit
2013

Employees
2013

Contribution to Group revenue
2013

Read more on page 33

Our global Employee Benefits businesses provide services including: 

26%
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The JLT International Network
represents JLT’s retail account
platform for multi-national clients,
comprising of majority owned,
associate, and non-owned partner
operations.

It offers our clients insurance risk
management and employee benefit
solutions in 135 countries, making it
the 2nd largest such insurance
broking network in the world. It also
provides a distribution channel for
JLT’s specialty, wholesale,
reinsurance and employee benefits
businesses.

JLT International Network
What it is
The JLT International Network offers
our clients insurance risk management
and employee benefit solutions in 135
countries. It also provides a
distribution channel for JLT’s specialty,
wholesale, reinsurance and employee
benefits businesses.

How it works
All brokers in the Network are
selected for their specialist
knowledge, local market reputation
and quality of service. We therefore
expect them to have the capability not
only to service JLT’s multinational
clients, but to compete for and win
the largest accounts in their own
territories, in collaboration with JLT’s
specialty, wholesale and reinsurance
teams.

Overall responsibility for the Network
sits with the JLT International Network
Management team, whose role is to
ensure common service standards by
sharing expertise and best practices
across the Network, whilst offering a
clear channel through which to 
escalate and resolve issues with 
speed and efficiency.

Why it is different
Unlike other broker networks, the JLT
International Network is run almost as
an extension of JLT itself, with a
similar focus on knowledge, expertise,
service and quality. 

The majority of our non-owned
partners have been long-standing
members of the Network, with a
demonstrable track record of meeting
each of our client’s needs.

Service standards have been codified
through a set of clear operating
procedures that have been designed
to ensure that each client, regardless
of their size, consistently receives the
highest level of care and attention in
the delivery of risk management,
insurance broking, and advisory
services. All non-owned partners are
subject to rigorous checks on their
adherence to these standards.

A further area of differentiation is the
Global Service Team, a multilingual
team that is able to provide clients
with a single point to access and
regulate their global programme and
help resolve any issues on a daily
basis. This central JLT function acts as
the focal point for JLT’s international
account co-ordination and is used as
a centre of excellence, providing
information and insight on local
compliance, regulation and market
practices to clients and colleagues
globally.

Key developments for 2014
Key developments for 2014 include
GrECo opening new operations in
Turkey and Estonia, and the
acquisition of Insure Direct (IDB) in the
Middle East.

JLT has the
second largest
international
broker network in
the world with
representation
in over 135
countries.
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This year’s Annual Report includes a number of new
features to make our strategy and performance easier to
understand, this is in line with the requirements of the
revised UK Corporate Governance Code. These include the
Board’s confirmation that the report presents a fair,
balanced and understandable assessment of JLT’s position,
enhanced Audit & Risk Committee and Remuneration
Reports and this new Strategic Report which I am delighted
to introduce. 

A strong performance
Total revenue increased by 11% to £979.2 million, or 12%
at constant rates of exchange. Underlying profit before tax
increased by 13% to £177.4 million, while reported profit
before tax was £154.6 million, an increase of 2%.

Net exceptional costs of £22.8 million in the year were
mainly attributable to our Business Transformation
Programme, our move to new premises in London and
acquisition and integration costs.

JLT’s trading profit margin increased from 18.2% to 18.9%
and we generated a 16% improvement in underlying
trading profit to £185.4 million.

Reported diluted earnings per share was 46.4 pence (2012:
46.5 pence), with underlying diluted earnings per share of
54.5 pence (2012: 48.2 pence), an increase of 13%. 

Full details of the Group’s performance is set out on pages
28 to 36.

Increased dividend
I am pleased to report that the directors have
recommended an increased final dividend of 17.1 pence
per share (2012: 15.9 pence) for the year to 31st
December 2013 which will be paid on 1st May 2014 to
shareholders on the register at 4th April 2014. 

This brings the total dividend for the year to 27.2 pence per
share, an overall increase of 6.7%. This is the fifth
consecutive year that JLT has paid an increased dividend. 

It is worth noting that during 2013, the Group’s share price
passed through £10 for the first time, reflecting the strong
performance and momentum of the business. In the last five
years we have delivered a Total Shareholder Return of 178%
as illustrated in the chart opposite.

Corporate activity highlights 
In 2013 we completed a total of 10 acquisitions for a
combined consideration of £200 million. This included the
acquisition of Towers Watson’s reinsurance brokerage
business (“Towers Watson Re”) for USD250 million, which
we announced in September and which was completed on
6th November 2013.

Upon completion, Towers Watson Re has been combined
with JLT Re, to create a new force in the international
reinsurance market - JLT Towers Re.

I am very pleased to be able to report
that JLT has once again delivered a
strong set of results for the year. 

It is particularly pleasing to see the
acceleration of our organic revenue
growth, reflecting the benefits of the
continued investments we have made
in the business over recent years.
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This acquisition significantly accelerates JLT’s existing
strategy to increase its exposure to the US economy and
build out its international reinsurance brokerage operations.
JLT Towers Re is the world’s fourth largest reinsurance
broker and has been warmly welcomed and supported by
clients in all of our markets.

The role of the Board
At JLT, we recognise the importance of effective corporate
governance throughout the organisation and the role that
the Board plays in setting the tone for the Group. We
therefore seek to ensure that the Board has the right
balance of knowledge and experience among its directors
supported by a strong and effective governance system to
drive sustainable business performance for the benefit of
all of our stakeholders. 

The Directors’ Report on pages 68 to 74 sets out JLT’s
position with regard to compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2012. This includes the key findings of
an external review of the Board’s effectiveness that was
undertaken in Q4 2013 which drew some very positive
overall conclusions. 

The detailed operation of the Board is described on page
69 with the Audit & Risk Committee Report included on
pages 50 to 53.

JLT’s management incentive schemes have been designed
to encourage long term decision making and align
management’s interests closely with those of shareholders.
The Remuneration Report is set out on pages 54 to 67.

Board and Senior Management
developments
Over the past year and into the early part of 2014 there
have been a number of developments at the Board and
senior management level.

Board developments
As I signalled last year, Simon Keswick, who was one of
the two representatives of Jardine Matheson Holdings
Limited (JMH), our major shareholder, retired from the
Board at the AGM in April 2013 and was succeeded by
Lord Sassoon, an Executive Director of JMH who joined
the Board on 30th April 2013.

Vyvienne Wade resigned as a Director and left the Group
on 7th May 2013.

Nick MacAndrew will retire from the Board at the
conclusion of the AGM on 29th April, having been a
director since July 2005 and Chairman of the Audit & Risk
Committee between July 2005 and March 2013. Jonathan
Dawson assumed the role of Chairman of the Audit & Risk
Committee in March 2013.

The role of Senior Independent Director will pass to
Richard Harvey upon Nick’s retirement.

I would like to thank each of Simon Keswick, Nick
MacAndrew and Vyvienne Wade for their valued
contributions to the success of JLT during their time with
the Group.

After 8 successful years as Group CEO, Dominic Burke is
taking a short break from the beginning of May until the
end of June. During this period Mark Drummond Brady will
assume the role of Acting CEO. Mark is the International
Chairman of Risk & Insurance, a main Board Director and
has been with JLT since 1987.

Senior Management developments
Following the acquisition of Towers Watson Re, Ross
Howard, who was formerly the CEO of that business,
joined the Group Executive Committee effective from 1st
January 2014 as Executive Chairman and Co-CEO of the
enlarged JLT Towers Re operation.

Performance graph
The chart shows the Total
Shareholder Return (TSR) of JLT
in the five year period to 31st
December 2013 against the TSR
of the FTSE 100, 250 and All
Share Indices. TSR refers to
share price growth and assumes
dividends are reinvested over the
relevant period.

Over the past five years, JLT was
ranked 114 out of the remaining
261 FTSE 350 companies which
were still listed at 31st December
2013 with a TSR of 178%. This
compared to a TSR of 83% for
the FTSE 100, 188% for the
FTSE 250 and 95% for the All
Share Indices.

Total shareholder return from 2008 to 2013

31-Dec-08 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc FTSE 100 Index

FTSE 250 Index FTSE All Share Index

200

150

100

50

0

-50

-100

S
ha

re
ho

ld
er

 R
et

ur
n 

%

Source: Datastream



Strategic Report

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

14

Alastair Speare-Cole remains on the GEC as Co-CEO of
JLT Towers Re with specific responsibility for our North
American reinsurance business and for our Analytics,
Advisory and Capital Markets businesses including our
Alliance Agreement with Towers Watson.

Alan Griffin, formerly Chairman of JLT Re, stood down
from the GEC on 1st January 2014 but continues with the
Group in an advisory role and we therefore continue to
have the benefit of his wise counsel.

With effect from 1st April 2014 Mike Methley will take over
as Chairman of JLT Canada and JLT Insurance
Management. Combining these roles with Mike’s existing
role as CEO of the Group’s Latin American business
provides a significant opportunity to further develop
collaboration and capabilities across the Americas.

Given Mike’s newly expanded responsibilities, Bala
Viswanathan, who has been CEO of our successful
Mumbai operation since its inception, is to be appointed
Group Chief Operating Officer from 1st April 2014 and will
relocate from Mumbai to London at that time. Bala’s
operational skills in developing and running the Group’s
shared services operation in Mumbai place him in a
unique position to continue to drive forward the Group’s
operational efficiency initiatives. Bala will join the Group
Executive Committee and report to the Group CEO.

Share buy-back authority
We will, as in previous years, be seeking renewal of our
standing share buy-back authority at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of up to a maximum of 10% of
the Company’s issued capital. As last year, we will not be
seeking shareholder approval for a ‘Rule 9’ dispensation in
relation to this authority pursuant to the Takeover Code.

This means that in the event that the directors were to
initiate a buy-back, in order to avoid triggering a
mandatory offer obligation upon Jardine Matheson
Holdings Limited (JMH) under Rule 37 of the Takeover
Code, JMH would need to participate in any such buy-
back so that its overall percentage holding (which at 13th
March 2014 was 40.16%) did not increase following the
buy-back.

Although the Company has not utilised the authority to buy
back shares since 2008, the Board believes it would be in
the interests of all shareholders for the company to
continue to have the right to purchase its own shares in the
market in appropriate circumstances. We would only
exercise this authority if we believe that it is in the best
interests of shareholders and would result in an
improvement in earnings per share.

Our people
On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank all of our
colleagues at JLT for their continued hard work and
dedication, contributing to a very strong set of results in
2013. 

I would in particular like to thank all of those who worked
so hard to ensure the successful completion of the Towers
Watson Re acquisition, the largest single acquisition we
have made since the merger between JIB Group and

Lloyd Thompson Group in 1997, and to the significant and
ongoing effort involved in launching JLT Towers Re and
integrating the two businesses.

Employees by geographical location

I would also like to welcome all our new colleagues who
have joined JLT during the year. You will find that JLT is a
dynamic place to work with a unique culture centred on
entrepreneurial agility, intellectual rigour and collaboration.
We are committed to investing in all of our people to help
them serve clients, develop their own careers and protect
their well-being (see page 7).

Our role in society
JLT has an active Corporate Responsibility programme,
working with charities in the UK and in other countries
around the world where we have a presence to improve
educational standards, support the disadvantaged and
help people lead safer and more prosperous lives. We are
also committed to managing our environmental impact on
the world.

More information can be found in the section on Corporate
Responsibility on page 43.

Outlook
Although the external operating and competitive
environment remains challenging, JLT’s distinctive culture,
clear strategy and expanding platform give us real
confidence in our ability to deliver year-on-year financial
progress.

Geoffrey Howe
Chairman
14th March 2014

UK
3,821

North America
703

Australia & 
New Zealand
898

Europe
190

Rest of World
76

Asia
2,691

As at 31st December 2013

Latin
America
766

9,145
+21%
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I am pleased to be able to
present another strong set of
results in 2013, building on
the progress and momentum
of previous years, as we
continue to execute our
clearly defined strategy.

Key financial highlights
Overall, the Group achieved total revenues of £979.2 million in
2013. This represents an organic revenue growth rate of 8.5%,
an achievement we are particularly pleased about, as it
represents a step forward from the 7% organic growth reported
in each of the last three years. This improvement reflects the
benefits of the investments we continue to make in the
business and a very strong performance by our international
Employee Benefits operations in particular. 

Our global Risk & Insurance businesses achieved revenue
growth of 7%, with total revenue of £723.9 million. Trading
profit rose by 7% to £149.9 million, with the trading margin
remaining at 21% despite our continuing significant levels of
investment in people and in strengthening our platform.

This included particularly strong performances from our
Reinsurance, Latin American and Asian operations, which grew
revenues organically by 25%, 14% and 9% respectively.

Our Reinsurance results include an 8 week contribution from
the Towers Watson reinsurance brokerage business which we
acquired in November 2013.

Lloyd & Partners (6% organic revenue growth), our operations
in Australia and New Zealand (5% organic revenue growth) and
JLT Specialty (4% organic revenue growth), also performed well
in the face of challenging market and competitive conditions as
the benefits from our specialty focus and the investments made
in talent in previous years continued to come through. On a
reported basis, our Australian and New Zealand revenues
declined by 2% due to currency movements in the second half
of the year.

Our global Employee Benefits operations delivered a 25% 
increase in revenues to £255.3 million, of which 14% was
organic, and generated £55.8 million of trading profit, a
29% increase on 2012. Our Employee Benefits
businesses now comprise some 26% of Group
revenues.

2009 2010 2011 2012

JLT
Average for US quoted brokers*

5%

7%

3.4%

1.3%

-1.5%

8%

6%

4%

2%

0

7% 7%

2013

3.8%

8.5%

4.3%

10%

Organic growth is on fees and commissions excluding the impact of
acquisitions, disposals, investment income and currency
*Aon, Marsh, Willis, Gallagher

Organic revenue growth rate 2009-13



Our UK & Ireland Employee Benefits operation delivered an 18%
increase in total revenues to £172.1 million, of which 4% was
organic, which taken together with the impact of the Alexander
Forbes Consultants & Actuaries business acquired in December
2012 reflected a continued strong performance despite challenging
economic and trading conditions. 

Our Asia Employee Benefits operations also had a very strong year,
growing revenues by 45% to £55.4 million, of which 38% was
organic. This growth included the contribution from a number of
acquisitions made over the last 12 months and was underpinned by
our market leading life insurance broking business which provides
solutions to high-net-worth clients, working closely with most of the
major private banks in the region. 

The Employee Benefits businesses in both Latin America and
Australasia saw impressive growth in revenues with the Latin
American operations maturing into a meaningful business in its own
right.

Details of the performance of each individual business area are set
out in the Review of Operations on pages 28 to 36.

Rating environment 
Turning to the overall market, there is no escaping the fact that the
market remains very competitive which continues to be to the
benefit of our clients.

The overall trend is very clear as the market continues to labour
under a huge over-supply of capital, particularly in North America
where a lack of major catastrophe events generated good
underwriting results in 2013. Investors in search of yield and non-
correlated returns have maintained a significant flow of funds into the
insurance sector, which has had a knock-on impact across the
market, causing increasing price-led competition.

However, as I have said many times before, we believe that our
prospects are shaped far more by longer term macro-economic and
demographic factors than short-term movements in insurance
market rates. That said, it is clear that the external operating and
competitive environment continues to be challenging and uncertain.

Even so we continue to feel very confident about JLT’s prospects
because of four key drivers of growth.

Our unique culture
We continue to benefit from our unique culture. A culture that is built
on the principles of being client first, collaborative, agile and rigorous.
A culture which remains distinctive, helping us attract and retain the
best people and win clients around the world. 

We do not take this for granted. We know that as we grow and hire
new people and acquire new businesses, there is a danger that this
culture which has served us so well could get diluted. 

We continue to take very deliberate steps to protect and embed our
culture across the organisation, be that through our collaborative
business planning, personal development or remuneration policies.

Our culture is more understood and celebrated and alive today at JLT
than it has ever been before and it is a key reason why we are set to
continue to win people and clients from our competitors.

More information can be found on our people and culture on
page 7.

Our specialty focus
Our determination not to be all things to all people but to focus on
areas of specific knowledge, strong market position and growth
potential, continues to set us apart. This “specialty” focus has given
us a unique voice in the market. 

More information can be found on our strategy on page 23.

Clients and competitors see JLT as having an edge in those areas
where we have chosen to compete. It is this focus, this
determination to prioritise our resources and activity where we can
bring something different and distinctive to our clients, that has
allowed us to continue to win market share. 

This has been particularly true in developing markets where there is
strong demand for our core specialty skills in areas such as
construction, aviation and energy which are the fundamental building
blocks of continued economic development.

We therefore continue to invest in this area, both through hiring more
specialist talent and through bolt-on acquisitions. Acquisitions in
2013 included Insfield in Malaysia, ForVision in Taiwan, IRS in the
Netherlands (Marine and Offshore supply), IDB in Dubai and
continuing into 2014 with Lambert Brothers in Hong Kong and SCK
in Brazil.

Our strong footprint in ‘Developed’ economies
We are set to benefit from our strong footprint in more mature
economies, where there are encouraging signs of economic
recovery and growth, given the balance of our business. 

At our last investor day we set out our ambition to increase our
exposure to the US, where we felt we were underweight given the
dynamic prospects we saw for that economy over the next 5-10
years.

Our acquisition of Towers Watson Re during the year represented a
unique opportunity to contribute towards this strategic objective of
increasing our exposure to the US where it derives 60% of its
revenues. It also allowed us to accelerate our ambition to increase
the size of our reinsurance business.

Through this deal we have acquired one of the most respected and
prized assets in the reinsurance market. We are now the 4th largest
reinsurance broker in the world, with over 660 employees and
operations in over 30 locations in 16 countries.

The combination of Tower Watson Re and JLT Re has created a
dynamic new force which is now participating in tenders and being
provided with opportunities that we would simply not have seen
previously.

We now have the platform, scale and capabilities to attract and
retain the very best talent in the industry. Our focus is therefore on
our clients and on driving a significant programme of investment in
people and capabilities to capture the strategic opportunity that this
acquisition has given us, particularly in the US.

We are confident that JLT Towers Re will make a strong contribution
to the Group’s growth prospects over the years ahead in the US,
London and around the world. 

Our growing exposure to the ‘Developing’ world
We are also set to continue to benefit from our growing exposure to
the higher growth economies of the world which now directly
account for 20% of our total Group revenues, excluding London
market generated revenues from these regions, almost double what
it was only five years ago. 
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While there has been a relative slowing down of these economies
in recent months, overall, ‘Developing’ markets continue to offer
significantly above average growth rates which we are well placed
to benefit from given our footprint, specialty-led expertise and
brand. 

We believe that this above average growth is based on an
important set of long term trends:

• Population growth, with nearly 95% of the 2.6 billion increase
in the world’s population forecast to happen between now
and 2050 taking place in ‘Developing’ markets

• Population ageing, with people living longer and seeking more
products and services to protect themselves and their families

• Growing levels of insurance penetration, as the world gets
more prosperous, with the size of the world’s middle class set
to increase from 1.8 billion people in 2009, to 4.9 billion by
2030, again mainly in ‘Developing’ markets 

• Rapid and unprecedented levels of urbanisation, which is
triggering huge investments in infrastructure, energy,
telecoms, aviation, construction and healthcare. All industries
where JLT has deliberately focused on building distinctive
leadership positions 

We believe that these factors combine to create a dynamic set of
conditions that support continued growth in our Risk & Insurance
operations. But their importance is perhaps best illustrated in how
we are looking to grow our international Employee Benefits
operations.

International Employee Benefits
Our Employee Benefits businesses contributed revenues of £255.3
million which was 26% of total Group revenues. This can be split
between our operations in the more mature countries of Canada,
Australia and the UK which grew by 19% last year, and our
operations in the faster growing economies of Asia, Latin America
and South Africa which grew by 45%.

Our operations in ‘Developing’ economies are focused on the
areas of healthcare and life insurance because we see these
areas as being particularly well placed to benefit from the trends
highlighted earlier. 

Population growth, increased longevity and growing wealth
against the backdrop of poor state-provided health services and a
competitive workplace where employers see life and healthcare
benefits as key differentiators in their bid to attract and retain the
best talent, combine to make this a very exciting market in which
we intend to continue to invest both in people and bolt-on
acquisitions.

In 2013 for example, we acquired two healthcare administration
businesses in Indonesia and have now positioned ourselves as
one of the main providers of healthcare services to the insurance
industry in one of the biggest and fastest growing markets in the
region. We also purchased Eluleka in South Africa to merge with
our existing operation there and bought a controlling stake in IDB
in Dubai, to give us a platform in the Middle Eastern market. Finally
in early 2014 we announced our acquisition of a 75% stake in
SCK, a leading Brazilian Employee Benefits business with further
opportunities being pursued in Brazil, India and elsewhere. 

The Future
We therefore look forward to the next five years with optimism,
knowing that we have the culture, specialty-led strategy, business
mix and global platform in place to benefit from both a recovery in
our core developed markets and the continued higher levels of
growth of the developing markets.

Although the external operating and competitive environment
remains challenging, JLT’s distinctive culture, clear strategy and
expanding platform give us real confidence in our ability to deliver
year-on-year financial progress.

Dominic Burke
Chief Executive
14th March 2014

A strong five year track record of growth

Total Revenue Underlying Trading Profit
£m £m

Underlying Diluted EPS
Pence

12.1% compound annual growth rate

+77.4% +103.2%

15.2% compound annual growth rate 13.7% compound annual growth rate

979.2

551.9

1308*

+89.9%

54.5

28.7

1308*

185.4

91.2

1308*

* Restated to reflect the impact of IAS 19 (Revised).
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JLT is one of the world’s largest providers of insurance, reinsurance and employee benefits
related advice, brokerage and services. As such our business is influenced by six major factors:

1
Macro-economic growth trends
We believe that JLT’s long term prospects are shaped far
more by longer term macro-economic and demographic
factors than the insurance rating environment. 

At its simplest level, higher economic growth is both cause
and effect of greater levels of corporate activity, investment
and increasing personal wealth, which in turn drives
appreciating asset values and greater demand for insurance
cover and our services, be it placing the insurance for a new
bridge, or helping arrange health cover for an expanding
company workforce.

Current trends
The past five years have, from a macro-economic
perspective, been extremely challenging, particularly in JLT’s
core UK and European markets. 2013 saw a slight
improvement over recent years, with encouraging early signs
of growth in the UK and US in particular, and evidence of a
broad ‘stabilisation’ of the Eurozone, although here the
recovery remains fragile and very unbalanced between
different countries. 

However, there has been further evidence of a relative
slowdown in economic growth in the so called ‘Developing’
world too. In early 2014, the IMF cut its assessment of the
global growth achieved in 2013 by 0.3% to 2.9%, with a
slower pace of expansion in Brazil, China and India cited as

the reason for the cut, although it should be noted that the
overall growth levels of the ‘Developing’ world still remain
stronger than that seen in the ‘Developed’ world. 

Future outlook
The outlook for 2014 is somewhat brighter than it has
appeared for several years, particularly in more developed
markets. In addition, regulatory change continues to create
opportunities in areas such as the auto-enrolment and the
annuity space in the UK employee benefits market.

While there remains some uncertainty over the outlook for
the ‘Developing’ world in 2014, particularly as regards the
potential impact of the tapering of the US Federal Reserve’s
asset repurchase programme on international growth and
investment, we believe that the overall growth outlook for
JLT remains positive.

We attribute this to our own distinctive culture and specialty
focus and a number of fundamental drivers of growth
including population growth, population ageing and
urbanisation, as outlined on page 16 of the Chief Executive’s
Review and below.

Further, greater economic growth and personal wealth drives
increasing levels of insurance penetration – as a result, gross
written premium growth in the ‘Developing’ world, is
expected to grow faster than the ‘Developed’ world.

POPULATION GROWTH
The UN forecasts that the
world’s population will grow by
2.6 billion between 2011 and
2050, 95% of which will take
place in the ‘Developing’ world

+2.6bn
people

AGEING POPULATION
The world’s population is living
longer and getting older. By 2050
for example, a third of the
Chinese population – 440 million
people, will be aged over 60

440m
people

INCREASING MIDDLE CLASS
The size of the global middle
class will increase from 1.8 billion
in 2009 to 3.2 billion by 2020
and 4.9 billion by 2030,
according to the OECD. Almost
all of this growth will take place
in Asia

+3.1bn
people

URBANISATION
The ‘Developing’ world is experiencing
a wave of urbanisation. It is forecast
that 60% of the world’s population (5
billion people) will live in a city by
2030, rising to 70% (6.6 billion people)
in 2050

+1.6bn
people

CONSUMERISM
Consumer spending in emerging
markets is expected to increase
from USD12 trillion today to
USD30 trillion by 2030

+$18tr
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2
The insurance rating environment
The insurance industry is inherently cyclical, with the
price of insurance fluctuating depending on demand for
insurance cover and the supply of capital into the
insurance market. 

A lack of capital, typically caused by one or more large
losses (such as 9/11) or by investors choosing to invest
in alternative asset classes, can lead to a ‘hard market’,
when the cost of insurance increases. An over-supply of
capital can lead to a ‘soft market’ which results in
insurance premiums reducing.

Current trends
The last few years have been characterised by some of
the softest market conditions in recent memory. This
has been triggered by a generally benign loss
environment, improved underwriting discipline, and a
significant over-supply of capital, with an increasing
variety of long term investors attracted to the US
Catastrophe reinsurance sector in particular. 2013
continued this trend, with price-led competition an
increasing feature of the market. 

Future outlook
Looking forward to 2014, absent some sort of major
catastrophic event, it is hard to see insurance rates
firming in the immediate future until interest rates,
particularly in ‘Developed’ markets, begin to recover to
more normal levels and capital starts to flow back to
other asset classes.

Impact on JLT
Our own business is affected by lower pricing to the
extent that some of our remuneration is in part based
on commissions. This is particularly true of our
operations in faster growing economies such as Asia
and Latin America, and our Reinsurance and
International Employee Benefits operations. It also can
lead to more aggressive competitive behaviours as
rivals fight to retain their revenues.

That said we have seen this potential volatility reduce
over recent years as our mix of business has continued
to become more balanced between fees and
commissions. Further, many more sophisticated
corporate insurance buyers see rating declines as an
opportunity to increase their cover for the same spend.

We have managed to continue to win market share and
grow our revenues despite the adverse rating
environment that has characterised the market for the
last five or more years, thanks to the execution of our
clear strategy and distinctive culture. We therefore
expect to be able to continue to overcome any negative
rating pressure.

Impact on JLT
We have deliberately aligned our business to these long-
term trends by looking to broaden our footprint in key
high growth economies and by focusing on our areas of
specialisation such as construction, aviation, mining and
healthcare that are set to be key enablers and
beneficiaries of the growth of these markets and where
we can best compete and win market share as
insurance penetration increases. 

At the same time, we have sought to consolidate our
position in the ‘Developed’ world, by strengthening our
teams in those markets and investing in the US
economy in particular in 2013, where JLT has historically
had a relatively small presence despite it being by far the
largest insurance market in the world, through our
acquisition of Towers Watson Re.

As a result, we have been able to consistently deliver
strong levels of organic revenue growth despite a very
tough operating and competitive environment. 

Looking forward to 2014, we feel confident that our
specialty-led strategy and exposure to the faster growing
economies of the world, balanced by our strong
operations in more mature markets, will allow us to
continue to make financial progress in the year.

‘Developing’ countries in Asia (Emerging Asia) could
see annual real (ie inflation-adjusted) growth rates of
over 10% both in P&C and Life premiums and their
market share double from 8% to 16%.

*Real CAGR = real (inflation-adjusted) compound average annual
growth rate

Source: Munich Re Economic Research

P&C real CAGR* from 2013-2020

10.2%

6.3%

5.8%

5.7%

4.7%

2.8%

2.6%

1.3%

1 Emerging Asia 

2 Eastern Europe

3 Sub-Saharan Africa 

4 Latin America 

5 MENA 

6 Mature Asia/Pacific

7 North America 

8 Western Europe 

Global ranking of regions according to real growth in
primary insurance premiums until 2020
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3
Interest rates
Insurance brokers earn interest income on the fiduciary
funds that they hold on behalf of clients. This essentially
comprises premiums passing through to underwriters
and paid claims being passed back to clients. 

Current trends
Throughout the global financial crisis, the global
economy has been characterised by a sustained period
of very low interest rates, particularly in more
‘Developed’ economies, as policy makers have sought
to stimulate growth by reducing the cost of borrowing
and boosting exports. Interest rates in the UK today
stand at 0.5%, in the Eurozone at 0.25% and in the US
at 0.25%.

Future outlook
Although there are some signs that improved economic
activity in the US and UK in particular will cause policy
makers to increase interest rates over time, this is likely
to be in modest increments and in any case is not
expected by most market commentators to be a
significant factor in 2014.

Impact on JLT
Historically, investment income has provided JLT with a
significant flow of revenue – up to 22% of profits in
2007. However for the reasons stated above, by 2013
this had reduced to £4.5 million, 2% of trading profits,
despite average balances increasing over the same
period by 107% to £702 million. 

It is worth noting that we estimate that for every 1%
improvement in our average achieved rate, JLT
generates approximately £7.0 million of additional
income, assuming broadly consistent average invested
balances.

However, given the overall interest rate outlook for
2014, we do not expect that our interest income will
vary significantly from 2013 income in the year ahead. 

4
Exchange rates
As a large international business, JLT has both
‘translational’ (i.e. reporting of foreign financial statements
in Sterling) and ‘transactional’ foreign exchange
exposures. Our largest transactional exposure comes
from our London market businesses which have Sterling
cost bases but generate a large amount of US Dollar
revenue. In 2013 this amounted to some USD300 million.

Current trends
The US Dollar has been relatively weak versus Sterling
during the latter part of 2013, as investors have worried
about the impact of tapering of the US Federal Reserve’s
asset repurchase programme on US growth and
interpreted the recent strong growth in the UK economy
as an indication that interest rates are likely to rise. The
Australian Dollar (relevant given the relative size of the
contribution of our Australian business to our profits) has
also suffered a significant decline in 2013, versus
Sterling.

0.5000

0.5500

0.6000

0.6500

0.7000

Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13

USD:GBP AUD:GBP

Future outlook
There are a wide range of views as to how the US Dollar
and other currencies will trade over the next 12 months.
Overall however, most commentators think that Sterling
appears to be set for a period of relative strength. 

Impact on JLT
A decrease in the value of the US Dollar reduces JLT’s
revenue relative to its Sterling cost base (transactional) and
affects the Sterling value of the income statements and
balance sheets of our international operations when
consolidated at the Group level (translational). 

JLT does not hedge its translational foreign exchange
exposure. However to mitigate the transactional impact of
foreign currency movements, we operate a rolling currency
hedging programme, covering our US Dollar exposures in
particular, as well as other currency exposures. While this
hedging programme helps smooth the impact of foreign
exchange movements, it cannot eliminate them completely
and we are anticipating an impact from currency
movements in 2014. Further detail on our hedging
programme and the impact of currency movements is
provided on page 39 in the Finance Director’s Review. 

2007

22%

2008 20132012201120102009

17%

6%
4% 5% 4%

2%

Investment income proportion of trading profit

2013 Foreign exchange rates
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Competition
With owned insurance broking and employee benefits
operations spanning 39 territories, JLT faces a very large
number and range of local, regional and international
competitors. Given this, it is impossible to comment on
the relative individual strengths and weaknesses of our
competitors, although we do complete with Marsh, Aon
and Willis in many of our operations around the world. 

Current trends
The financial crisis and the softening rating environment
have combined over recent years to create a very
challenging competitive environment, with some players
willing to be very aggressive with their price and service
offering to maintain their market share or win new
business.

Future outlook
There is no reason to believe that the competitive
environment will ease in the near future. Indeed, JLT’s
continued international expansion may introduce a new
set of local competitors. 

Impact on JLT
JLT’s growth and success arguably makes us more of a
target to attack.

However, JLT has been able to attract people and
clients, differentiate itself against the competition and
grow through its specialty-led focus and distinctive
culture that places clients first and values advocacy,
expertise, tailored solutions and service excellence over
commoditisation, bureaucracy and a focus on price to
the exclusion of all other factors. We feel confident that
our distinctive culture and strong momentum will allow
us to continue to grow.

2009 2010 2011 2012

JLT
Average for US quoted brokers*

5%

7%

3.4%

1.3%

-1.5%

8%

6%

4%

2%

0

7% 7%

2013

3.8%

8.5%

4.3%

10%

Organic growth is on fees and commissions excluding the impact of
acquisitions, disposals, investment income and currency
*Aon, Marsh, Willis, Gallagher

Organic revenue growth rate 2009-13

5 6
Regulation
JLT operates under the jurisdiction of a number of
different regulators around the world. Its principal
regulator is the UK Financial Conduct Authority. 

Current trends
The regulatory regimes under which we operate around
the world are generally becoming more sophisticated,
more demanding and more interventionist. While this
places additional strain and cost on the business,
strong regulation also creates a more level playing field
and helps stimulate greater client demand, so is
something we encourage and welcome as being
positive for our clients, our people and the industry at
large.

Future outlook
We would anticipate the various regulatory regimes
under which we operate around the world, particularly
in more mature markets, to continue to increase the
level of scrutiny and requirements placed on the
insurance broking industry in our various local
jurisdictions.

Impact on JLT
As JLT grows, we can expect a greater level of
regulatory scrutiny on our business in line with our
increased relevance, particularly for those of our
businesses that carry consumer ‘conduct risk’. Over
the last 24 months we have significantly increased our
investment in our risk management framework and
personnel to adjust to these changing circumstances,
as discussed in the report of the Audit & Risk
Committee on page 50. There is considerable financial
cost associated with this, not to mention an increasing
amount of management time, but we are committed to
working constructively with all of our regulators to
ensure that we meet our regulatory commitments and
protect our clients’ interests.

In 2013 JLT Specialty (a subsidiary of JLT) was fined
£1.8 million by the FCA for failing to adhere to its
systems and procedures to mitigate the risks
associated with overseas business introduced by third
parties.

There was no suggestion by the FCA or evidence found
by them to suggest that JLT Specialty permitted any
illicit payment or inducement to be paid to any third
party introducer during the period, nor that JLT
Specialty intended to permit any such payment to be
made. Indeed the FCA recognised that JLT Specialty
Limited made significant efforts to improve its systems
and controls framework over the period.

Whilst there was clearly process failure which we have
now addressed, we believe that our culture acted as a
strong first line of defence ensuring that no illicit
payments were made.
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Acquisitions

• The Group continues to retain and recruit

market leading individuals across all of its

businesses throughout its global operations. 

• In 2013 the Group added 1,500 individuals to

the JLT team, 1,000 through acquisitions. JLT

now has more than 9,100 employees working

for the Group. 

• In the last 5 years the number of employees in

the Group has increased by more than 65%.

Key to the success of this recruitment has

been retaining and attracting individuals who

not only add further capabilities but also fit

JLT’s distinctive culture.

• The Group is committed to investing in the

training and development of all its employees.

• The Group Strategy (see page 23)

includes a commitment to grow its

specialty-led capabilities and build out its

international reach and relevance.

Acquisitions have been and will continue

to be an important element of delivering

on this strategy. 

• In 2013 the Group made 10 acquisitions

for a total consideration of £200 million,

including the acquisition of Towers Watson

Re in November 2013 for USD250 million.

• In the last 5 years the Group has made a

total of 25 acquisitions for a total

consideration of £340 million. 

People

Investment income arises from the holding of cash and investments on behalf of
clients plus investment income on the Group’s own cash. The holding of client
monies largely relates to premium and claims payments which the business
holds for a short period of time in its role as the intermediary of the client.

Investment Income

Fees are typically charged either on a “time-cost” or a “fixed fee” basis and
are earned in both the Employee Benefits and Risk & Insurance business
groups. These fees are paid by the client rather than the insurer or reinsurer.

Commissions are typically based on a percentage of the insurance or
reinsurance premium being paid by the client. Frequently, the level of this
commission payment is also subject to negotiation with the client. This
commission is paid by the insurer or reinsurer rather than the client and is
largely earned in the Group’s Risk & Insurance businesses. 

Fees and Commissions

The two largest costs to the business relate to staff and premises. In 2013
these respectively represented 58.2% and 4.9% of total revenues. There is a
clear focus on cost discipline with the Trading Margin being a Key Performance
Indicator of the Group (see Page 26). In addition, the Group has a rolling
programme of investment in areas such as information technology, process
improvement and other enhancements to client service.

Costs

PROFIT

Acting as intermediary for our
clients with insurers and reinsurers
and providing related risk
management, analytical, advisory
and other administrative services.

Clients include multinational
corporations and other public &
private sector organisations, retail
insurance brokers and individuals.

Acting as an advisor, intermediary
and service provider in the pensions
consultancy and administration,
employee benefits and healthcare,
life insurance and wealth
management sectors.

Clients include multinational
corporations, public & private sector
organisations, pension trustees 
and individuals.

Clients and Services

Risk & Insurance Employee Benefits

ADDED TO 
CAPITAL

REINVESTED IN
BUSINESS

SHAREHOLDER
RETURNS
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Through this, our aim is to drive strong
revenue and profit growth in a way that is
sustainable and that balances the interests
of our key stakeholders: our clients, our
people, our trading partners and our
shareholders. 

Our strategy is founded on the concept of
specialisation. What we mean by this is:

• We centre everything we do on the
client

• We actively choose to operate only in
very specific areas. We do not seek to
be all things to all people

• We choose those areas, be they
markets, industries or products, based
on where:

- We have distinctive expertise and
knowledge that provides us with a
competitive edge

- We see long-term growth potential
supported by fundamental macro-
economic trends (see page 18)

- We are, or believe we can
become, a top 3 player

• As a result, our proposition is based
primarily on client advocacy, deep
knowledge, tailored advice and service
excellence

This is a strategy that we believe is
distinctive compared to our competitors
and that resonates with our clients, our
people and our markets, allowing us to
win market share despite today’s difficult
trading, insurance rating and competitive
conditions.

Driving growth
To deliver our strategy, we
have identified five core
steps to drive us forward
(see page 24). 

The first two steps relate to how we seek
to drive growth:

• Focusing on growing in specialist
areas

• Building our international reach and
relevance

These steps are rooted in the fundamental
macro-economic trends around the
improving prospects of ‘Developed’ world
economies and the continued opportunity
represented by the ‘Developing’ world as
detailed in the Chief Executive’s Review
(page 16) and the Our Markets section
(see page 18).

We are well positioned to continue to
exploit those trends which point to rising
demand for commodities, infrastructure,
transportation and telecommunications,
amongst others. For example, we are
already amongst the world’s largest
construction, offshore energy, aviation and
commodities brokers with solid number
two or three positions in a range of further
areas which are set to benefit from
forecast growth patterns. 

Geographically, we are also very well
positioned in fast growing markets, with
some 760 people in Latin America and
1,550 people in Asia, where we benefit
from our links with Jardine Matheson and
their strong relationships across the region.

These same trends also underpin our
investment in our International Employee
Benefits operations where dynamics
around population growth, ageing and
increasing personal prosperity are also set
to significantly expand the demand for
healthcare, life and other personal lines
products from growing and increasingly
wealthy populations.

Enabling growth
The other three steps of
our strategy relate to
ensuring that we put in
place or strengthen the
critical enablers of our
continued growth:

• Improving our efficiency and
effectiveness

• Providing a distinctive working
environment

• Operating collaboratively as One JLT

JLT has made great strides in the last few
years to improve the way we serve clients
by enhancing the efficiency and
effectiveness of our processes, systems
and operating models to ensure that we
improve our service levels and that our
best people are spending more time with
their clients. We are currently engaged, for
example, in a two year Business
Transformation Programme as part of this
strategic theme that is expected to deliver
£12 million of annual savings for £18
million of total one-off costs while also
having a positive impact on client
outcomes. 

As a people business, it is vital for us to
ensure that we are able to attract and
retain the very best talent in the market.
JLT offers a compelling value proposition
and a distinctive culture that values agility
and entrepreneurial drive, rigour and depth
of thought and a collaborative approach
that puts clients first. 1,500 people joined
JLT in 2013, and our staff numbers have
increased by 67% since 2008.

Our long-term financial progress will be
inextricably linked to our ability to match
opportunities with our market leading
specialist skills, wherever they happen to
be located. Collaboration is one of the
main pillars of our Values and therefore,
we continue to invest heavily in the tools
necessary to facilitate it, to ensure that our
continued growth and geographic spread
does not come at the cost of failing to
ensure that we bring the best of JLT to all
of our clients, all of the time.

On the following pages, we describe in
more detail each element of our strategy
and selected highlights of our progress in
2013 and priorities for 2014.

JLT’s mission is to be a Client First business that always acts in our clients’ best
interests, to be Independent by advising our clients without bias or influence and
valuing innovation and creativity, and to be Results Based in our focus on delivering
to clients and engendering a performance based culture.

Read more on page 6
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5

1
Strategy element Selected key achievements in 2013

Focusing and growing
in specialist areas

• Assembled what is recognised as the leading specialty broking team in the
Australian market

• Established Global ComTech and Agri-Food initiatives to exploit growing
opportunities in these areas 

• Completed a number of acquisitions to deepen our specialty capabilities
including ForVision in Taiwan (High Tech), Insfield in Malaysia (Marine), GESA and
GAMI in Indonesia (healthcare administration), Eluleka in South Africa (Healthcare)
and, in early 2014, SCK in Brazil (Healthcare and Affinity)

• Split Peruvian operations into separate retail and reinsurance businesses to
enable greater focus on clients and key areas of specialty

2 Building our
international reach
and relevance

• Acquired Towers Watson’s reinsurance brokerage business (operations in 
US, UK, Canada, Bermuda, France and Germany) for USD250 million

• Acquired IDB in the Middle East (Dubai, Qatar and Bahrain) covering Insurance
Broking and Employee Benefits and IRS in the Netherlands (Marine)

• Created new Middle East and Africa region bringing together our South Africa
and Middle East operations to better target opportunities from this growing area 

3 Improving our
efficiency and
effectiveness

• Launched new 2 year Business Transformation Programme, aiming to achieve
annualised savings of £12 million for one-off costs of £18 million. £7.3 million of
savings delivered by the Programme in 2013

• Started implementation of GRIT - a single trading platform to meet the
requirements of our global reinsurance broking business

• Opened new Malaysian shared service centre to provide integrated back-office
and processing capability for our Asian operations

• Implemented ‘WorkLife’ HR platform in UK, Hong Kong, Singapore and Malaysia
creating a single platform for the consistent management and reporting of HR
across the Group

• Continued to implement Project Insight, an internal initiative designed to improve
how we capture and share knowledge and information to benefit our clients

4 Providing a distinctive
working environment

• 1,500 additional staff (1,000 from acquisitions and 500 new joiners)

• Enhanced employee engagement in the Group’s Corporate Responsibility
activities

• Brought all 2,000 of our London based colleagues together from across 17 floors
in five separate buildings into one new building

• Merged two Mumbai offices into new state-of-the-art facility housing more than
1,000 people

Operating
collaboratively as
One JLT

• Won a large number of multinational clients through improved collaboration
across the Group

• Launched several key elements of Project Insight including Chatter (on-line
collaboration tool) and enhanced search capability

• Developed and launched JLT WorkSpace, an online platform for all employees to
communicate and share news and updates at both Group and business level
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Priorities for 2014 Objective

Focus and grow in
specialist areas within our
existing operations where
we can offer distinctive
products, services and 
independent choice.

• Continue to focus on deepening our key specialty areas

• Identify new specialty areas which we see as underpinned
by strong drivers and the ability for JLT to establish a
leadership position

• Improve integrated business planning in several of our key
specialty areas across the Group’s businesses

• Drive integration of JLT Towers Re

• Continue to expand our global footprint where we
identify areas of strong growth potential, either
organically or through acquisition

• Support and grow our businesses globally as they
strengthen their standing in the market

• Export Group expertise to local operations to better
serve our global and local clients

• Continue with the build-out of the Group’s new Middle
East and Africa business region

• Continue to focus on improving the operating models
of our businesses, ensuring that the underlying
systems and processes support our people in serving
our clients

• Build out the Malaysian shared service centre and
expand its reach across Asia

• Successfully implement the final phase of the Group’s
Business Transformation Programme

• Continue to implement the ‘WorkLife’ HR platform
across the Group’s businesses

• Develop a global mobility programme to help drive
increased international knowledge sharing and
collaboration in recognition of our increasingly global
client base

• Launch new staff engagement survey

• Increase use of social media for recruitment

Build our international reach
and relevance, especially in
the world’s high growth
economies, to better meet
the needs of local and multi-
national clients and trading
partners.

Improve the way we work
and serve clients through
innovation and by
investing in the efficiency
and effectiveness of our
people, systems and
processes

Provide a distinctive,
entrepreneurial and results-
based working environment
that attracts, develops and
retains the best individuals

Operate collaboratively as
One JLT to bring the best
of JLT to our clients and
trading partners anywhere
in the world.

• Continue to drive the sharing of expertise across
geographies focused on our specialty capabilities

• Bring greater focus on sharing best practice across
teams, by line of business and geography

• Build-out and drive greater use of our online specialty
Knowledge Hubs.

+1,500
ADDITIONAL STAFF

+10
ACQUISITIONS

£7.3m
SAVINGS

1
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Total Revenue Per Employee* Trading Margin** Underlying PBT*** Underlying Diluted EPS***

For the Group, revenue per
employee declined marginally
as we continued to invest in
our specialist capabilities
through the ongoing
recruitment of leading industry
professionals and targeted
acquisitions.

This included some 1,500
new employees joining the
Group in 2013. 

Of particular note in 2013 was
the acquisition of Towers
Watson Re in November
which earns most of its
revenue in the early part of the
financial year.

Trading margin continued to
show improvement, reflecting
strong revenue performance
combined with improved
efficiency and effectiveness
achieved through the Group's
Business Transformation
Programme and our ongoing
focus on cost control.

However, we remain willing to
make investments through the
Income Statement as and
when we identify opportunities 
to build the business for the
long term through new hires.

Underlying diluted EPS grew by
13% in the year.

The performance related
remuneration of the executive
directors and other senior
executives within the Group is
closely aligned to PBT and EPS
performance. This is discussed
in more detail in the
Remuneration Report on pages
54 to 67.

Our continued success in
delivering on the five elements
of our strategy (see pages 23-
25) is evidenced by the 13%
increase in our underlying PBT. 

Total Revenue
Per Employee*
£’000

Trading Margin**
%

* Total revenue (fees, commissions and investment
income) per employee is calculated using the
average number of employees for the year.

** Trading margin represents trading profit, being
total revenue less operating expenses, divided by
total revenue.

*** Underlying results exclude exceptional items.

How we calculate our Key
Performance Indicators

£’000

118.0

11

124.7

12

123.2

13

%

18.9

11

18.0

12

18.2

13

£m

177.4

11

142.0

12

156.4

13

Pence

54.5

11

43.3

12

48.2

13

145.7

12

145.9

13

20.7

12

20.7

13

Risk & Insurance

Total Revenue
Per Employee*
£’000

Trading Margin**
%

92.1

12

99.3

13

21.9

12

21.2

13

Employee Benefits

£118.0 18.9% £177.4 54.5p

Strategic Report

2011 and 2012 results have been restated to reflect the impact of IAS 19 (Revised).
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GROUP EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Front row, left to right

Jonathan Palmer-Brown
Chairman of International Specialty

Jonathan joined JLT and became a member of the
GEC in 2010 and is Chairman of International
Specialty. He is a former Chairman of the London
and International Insurance Brokers' Association
and sits on the London Market Group. 

Martin Hiller
CEO, JLT Specialty

Martin joined JLT in 1988 and was a founding
member of the JLT Construction team.

He became Managing Director of the Construction
team in 1995. Martin joined the GEC in 2006 and
was appointed CEO of JLT Specialty in 2007.

Mark Drummond Brady*
International Chairman Risk & Insurance

Mark joined JLT in 1987 and built JLT's Financial
Solutions operation. Today Mark plays a key role in
developing JLT's Risk & Insurance business
internationally and leading the continued expansion
of the JLT International Network.

Mark joined the GEC in 2006 and was appointed a
Director of the Group in March 2011.

Dominic Burke*
Group Chief Executive

Dominic joined the Group in 2000 when his
business Burke Ford was acquired by JLT. After
joining he became CEO of JLT's UK Retail and
Employee Benefits business. He was appointed
Group COO in January 2005 and subsequently
appointed Group CEO in December 2005.

Mike Reynolds*
Group Finance Director

Mike was appointed Finance Director of the Group and
joined the GEC in November 2012.

He has worked in a number of senior finance roles
in the insurance industry and he joined JLT from
ACE European Group Limited where he was Chief
Financial Officer from 2009. He was previously CFO
of Aon Benfield.

John Lloyd
Chairman and CEO, Lloyd & Partners

John was a founding partner of Lloyd Thompson in
1981 and served as its Chairman from 1993 until
its merger with JIB Group in 1997. He was a
Director of the JLT Group until the creation of Lloyd
& Partners in 2005.

He has been a member of the GEC since 1997.

Leo Demer
CEO, Australia and New Zealand

Leo joined JLT Australia in 1985 and was
appointed Managing Director of the Risk Services
Division in 2000. Leo became Managing Director of
JLT's Australian and New Zealand businesses in
January 2008 and was then appointed CEO and
joined the GEC in January 2010.

Back row, left to right

Alastair Speare-Cole
Co-CEO, JLT Towers Re

Alastair Speare-Cole joined JLT Re in January
2012, as Chief Executive Officer, having begun his
career as a graduate trainee at Jardine Matheson.
Alastair held positions as COO for Aon Benfield UK
and Chairman of Aon Benfield Securities Ltd.

Following the acquisition of Towers Watson Re,
Alastair was appointed Co-CEO of JLT Towers Re
in January 2014.

He was appointed to the GEC in April 2012.

Ross Howard
Executive Chairman and Co-CEO, JLT Towers Re

Ross joined JLT in November 2013 on completion
of the acquisition of Towers Watson Re and joined
the GEC in January 2014.

Ross was formerly the global leader of Towers
Watson’s reinsurance business. He has over 35
years’ experience in the industry and was formerly
Managing Director of the US arm of Denis M.
Clayton & Co. Limited which he joined in 1977 and
which was acquired by Towers Watson in 2002.

Mark Wood
CEO, JLT UK Employee Benefits Group

Mark joined JLT in 2010 as the Non-Executive
Chairman of the UK & Ireland Employee Benefits
business, and on 1st January 2013 he became the
CEO of that business and joined the GEC.

Prior to joining JLT he was CEO of Paternoster and
before that the UK CEO for both Prudential and
AXA.

Mike Methley
Group COO and CEO of Latin America

Mike joined JLT in 1994, and was appointed Chief
Operating Officer for the Group and a member of
the GEC in January 2010. He became CEO of
Latin America on 1st March 2013 and continued as
Group COO. Mike’s previous roles included
Managing Director of JLT Asia.

With effect from 1st April 2014, Mike will assume
the role of Chairman, JLT Canada and JLT
Insurance Management in addition to his existing
role as CEO of Latin America. The role of Group
COO will pass to Bala Viswanathan who will join
the GEC from that date.

James Twining*
Group Commercial Director and International
Chairman of Thistle

James joined JLT from McKinsey & Co. as Group
Strategy Director and was appointed to the GEC in
January 2011.

He was appointed to the Board as Group
Commercial Director in August 2012 and is a
member of the Group Executive Committee. He is
also Chairman of Thistle Insurance Services
Limited and sits on the Board of our UK & Ireland
Employee Benefits and Reinsurance businesses
and our French associate Siaci St Honoré.

Adrian Girling
Chairman of JLT Specialty

Adrian has been with JLT for over 30 years, he was
CEO of Jardine Lloyd Thompson UK Limited before
being appointed Chairman of JLT Specialty in
February 2012. He joined the GEC in 2006.

Duncan Howorth
CEO, JLT Asia and International Chairman of Employee
Benefits

Duncan joined JLT in 2000 when Abbey National
Benefit Consultants was acquired by JLT to expand
its Employee Benefits offering. Duncan was CEO of
JLT Benefit Solutions Ltd until the end of 2012
when he transferred to the role of CEO for JLT Asia.
He joined the GEC in September 2008.

*Executive Director (more
details on pages 48 to 49)
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RISK & INSURANCE

Risk & Insurance comprises our global specialty
insurance and reinsurance broking operations
and our wholesale insurance broking business.

Our global Risk & Insurance businesses achieved
organic revenue growth of 7%, with total
revenues of £723.9 million. Trading profit rose by
7% to £149.9 million with the trading margin
remaining at 21% despite the continuing
significant investment in leading industry
professionals being made across these
businesses, with employee numbers increasing
by some 18% during the year. 

2013 also saw further acquisitions being made to
build-out areas of specialism, the largest of which
was the acquisition of Towers Watson Re.

(2012: £676.4m)

£723.9m
+7%

Revenue contribution by business area

Turnover by client location(2012: £139.7m)

£149.9m
+7%

Trading Profit

(2012: 21%)

21%
Trading Margin 2013

Revenue 2013

Advice and consultancy
Advising our clients on their
insurance and reinsurance
requirements, ensuring that they
understand the likelihood and
potential severity of the risks they
face, the options available to
mitigate them and the potential
cost. This then allows our clients to
make an informed decision that
balances price, coverage and risk
appetite. We also provide capital
raising and corporate finance advice
to insurance market clients and
investors.
Brokerage and placement
Acting as intermediaries with
insurers and reinsurers all over the
world, using our specialist
knowledge to negotiate and place
insurance cover on our clients’
behalf.
Specialist insurance products
Providing our clients with access to
certain facilities and insurance
products through bespoke
agreements that we have struck
with insurers without taking any
balance sheet underwriting risk.
Other services 
Providing a range of related services
to our clients and insurance market
counterparties in areas such as
captive and claims management
and administration.

Our businesses

JLT Specialty 29

JLT Australia & NZ 29

Lloyd & Partners 30

JLT Towers Re 30

JLT Asia 31

JLT Latin America 31

Thistle UK 32

JLT Canada 32

JLT Insurance Management 32

JLT South Africa 32

Our global Risk &
Insurance businesses
provide services
including: 

£719.4m

Turnover excludes investment income

£723.9m

JLT Specialty
£244.8m

JLT Australia & NZ
£124.5m

JLT Towers Re
£76.8m

JLT Latin America
£55.5m

JLT Asia
£67.1m

Lloyd &
Partners
£83.7m

UK
23%

Americas
32%

Asia
13%

Rest of World
2%

Europe
11%

Australia & NZ
19%

Other
£71.5m
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2013 2012 % change

Total Revenue £244.8m £235.9m 4%

Underlying Trading Profit £51.2m £46.8m 9%

Trading Margin 21% 20%

2013 2012 % change

Total Revenue £124.5m £126.5m (2%)

Underlying Trading Profit £37.1m £36.9m -

Trading Margin 30% 29%

JLT Specialty provides advice and insurance broking
services to corporate and public sector clients in selected
specialty areas. Although many of its clients are based in
the UK and Europe, JLT Specialty also works in close
collaboration with all of JLT’s international offices supplying
them with industry expertise, advice and access to
international markets. This allows JLT to provide the best
and most innovative solutions to our clients and to
compete on large tenders and multi-national accounts.

In 2013, the business continued to perform well, despite
the significant economic headwinds which affected a
number of our client segments and territories. Revenue
grew by 4%, or 3% at constant rates of exchange, to
£244.8 million. The trading margin was 21%, an increase
from 20% despite continued investment in both market
leading professionals to drive new business growth and
our operational platform to support our continued focus
on client service and retention.

Particularly strong results were delivered by specialty areas
such as Aviation and Financial Lines, which the business
has targeted and invested in as part of its growth strategy.
Market leading positions in these and other areas such as
Construction have been maintained and the business is
continuing to invest and build its position in other key
areas such as, Credit and Political Risk, Energy and
Marine.

In 2014, JLT Specialty will continue to build-out sub-
segments of its larger businesses while also driving
changes to its operating model to improve its efficiency
and effectiveness. The business continues to invest in new
strategic growth initiatives which will help drive it forward,
and its core UK and mainland European markets show
some encouraging, albeit early signs of improved
economic activity.

Principal lines of business
Accident & Health, Aerospace, Construction, Credit,
Political & Security, Energy, Financial & Professional, 
Marine, Renewables, Real Estate, Risk Practice including
Communications, Technology & Media, Life Science, 
Food and Transportation.

JLT Specialty JLT Australia & New Zealand

The region continues to demonstrate strong growth with
revenues increasing by 4% at constant rates of exchange
to £124.5 million, and organic growth reaching 5%.
Reported revenues were however marginally lower than
2012, as a result of a fall in the value of the Australian
dollar against Sterling, particularly in the second half of the
year. Trading profit for the year was £37.1 million and the
business improved on its already strong trading margin,
which increased to 30%.

The business has been restructured during the year into
three divisions - Public Sector (including Echelon),
Specialty and Enterprise Solutions, all of which contributed
to the performance of the business for the year. 

The investments made in the Specialty division over the 
past 18 months, in areas such as Energy, Mining and
Construction have resulted in a significant improvement to
that division with impressive new business wins and
improved client retention rates. 

Today the business is being invited to participate in larger
tenders than ever before. Meanwhile, the Public Sector
division has maintained its industry-leading position.

The continued focus on growth will drive the business
forward throughout 2014 and we are well positioned to
take advantage of the significant opportunities we see in
the region.

Principal lines of business
Construction, Energy, Entertainment and Leisure, Financial
and Professional Services, Food and Agribusiness,
Government, Manufacturing, Mining, People Risks, Real
Estate, Retail, SME and Consumer Products, Sport,
Transport and Logistics.
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Lloyd & Partners comprises our London and Bermuda
specialist wholesale broking businesses. As a wholesale
broker, Lloyd & Partners provides brokers in the US and
selected other markets, including JLT’s international
offices, with access to insurance capacity in London,
Bermuda and Continental Europe.

The business grew revenues by 5%, or 6% at constant
rates of exchange to £83.7 million, with the business
benefiting from an improving US economy and continued
demand for its specialist London Market placement
capabilities and industry expertise. This increase in
revenues was all delivered through organic growth and
represents a pleasing performance that included strong
performances from its Cargo, Energy, Professional Lines
and Bermuda Property teams. 

Lloyd & Partners continues to attract and retain some of
the best talent in the market, with the strategic
investments made in recent years now gaining increased
momentum. There remains an on-going focus to acquire
leading industry professionals to continue to enhance
existing business areas. The trading margin was
maintained at 22% despite the continued investments
being made in the business.

These on-going initiatives mean that Lloyd & Partners is
well positioned for future growth. 

Principal lines of business
Principal lines of business, Cargo, Fine Art & Specie,
Casualty, Energy & Marine, Healthcare, Professional Lines,
Programmes, Property.

Lloyd & Partners JLT Towers Re

2013 was a significant year for JLT Re with the acquisition
of Towers Watson’s reinsurance broking business and the
creation of JLT Towers Re. 

The transaction did not complete until 6th November
2013, so for the purposes of this section of the report,
details of the financial performance of each of the
businesses are provided separately. 

JLT Re had a strong year with revenues of £66.9 million,
an increase of 25% over the previous year, all of which
was organic. This strong result reflects the increasing
benefits of the investments we made over recent years in
building out the business’s geographic reach and
capabilities. In 2013 for example, headcount increased by
9%.

The contribution for Towers Watson Re, reflects only the 8
week period between completion of the acquisition and
the year end during which time it produced revenues of
£9.9 million and delivered a small trading loss.

The combination of these two businesses to form JLT
Towers Re has created a dynamic new force in the
reinsurance broking industry which contributes towards
the Group’s strategic objectives of both expanding its
reinsurance broking capabilities and increasing its
exposure to the US market. The benefits to both JLT and
its clients and the financial details of the transaction are
set out in more detail in the Chief Executive’s Review on
page 16 and the Finance Director’s Review on page 39.

While this integration will continue through 2014, the
creation of JLT Towers Re means that the business now
has the platform and capabilities to retain and attract the
very best talent in the industry. The focus of the business
is now on driving a programme of further investment in
people and capabilities to capture the significant
opportunities that exist.

Principal lines of business
All classes of Treaty and Facultative Reinsurance
Corporate Finance Advisory.

2013 2012 % change

Total Revenue £83.7m 79.3m 5%

Underlying Trading Profit £18.3m £17.6m 4%

Trading Margin 22% 22%

2013 2012 % change

Total Revenue £76.8m £53.7m 43%

Underlying Trading Profit £11.3m £7.4m 52%

Trading Margin 15% 14%

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
RISK & INSURANCE
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2013 saw further progress in our Asia Risk & Insurance
business. Reported revenue and revenue at CRE
increased by 13% to £67.1 million, with organic growth of
9%, and trading profit growing 14% to £10.4 million.

Organic growth came from a broad spread of business.
The focus on specialty insurance risks and the important
growth sectors of Energy, Construction, Marine and
Financial & Professional Risks helped secure further large
accounts during the period. The investment in commercial
insurance broking in Hong Kong also delivered good
revenue growth. 

The business continues to focus on and invest in our
operations in the high growth areas of the region and
remains encouraged by the relative strength of the
regional economies. During the year the business invested
further in its Marine capability, and in January 2014
completed the acquisition of Lambert Brothers, a Hong
Kong based broker.

The core operations in Hong Kong and Singapore
achieved strong trading performances and further
progress was made in the development of key territories
in Asia. This included acquisitions during the year in
Malaysia and Taiwan, both of which strengthened key
speciality capabilities in these important markets. The
business also continues to work closely with Jardine
Matheson, leveraging its presence in the region.

JLT Asia remains focused on improving its trading margin
and as part of the Group’s Business Transformation
Programme opened a Shared Service Centre in Kuala
Lumpur in October. The migration of functions to this new
facility has already started. 

Principal lines of business
Aviation, Construction, Capital Risks, Energy, Financial &
Professional Risks, Marine, Property, Intellectual Property
and Cyber, SME & Consumer Products.

JLT Asia

Our Latin American Risk & Insurance operations have
performed well with revenues increasing by 10% to £55.5
million, or 14% at constant rates of exchange all of which
was organic. The trading profit increased to £17.2 million
with an unchanged trading margin of 31%.

In our specialty Risk & Insurance businesses we have
continued to benefit from our focus and investments in
areas such as Construction, Aviation, Marine, Energy and
Mining that remain among the more dynamic growth
sectors given their link to continued infrastructure
investment and demographic growth. 

There has been a noticeable increase in the levels of
collaboration between the Group’s Latin American and
London-based businesses, which together represent an
integrated platform that competitors find difficult to
replicate. 

There continue to be significant growth opportunities in
the region and the Group is actively pursuing a number of
bolt-on acquisitions and investments to strengthen its
specialty offering and broaden our distribution capability in
Latin America. 

Principal lines of business
Energy, Oil & Power, Industrial Risks, Aviation, 
Construction, Telecommunications, Reinsurance, 
SME & Consumer Products.

JLT Latin America

2013 2012 % change

Total Revenue £67.1m £59.3m 13%

Underlying Trading Profit £10.4m £9.1m 14%

Trading Margin 15% 15%

2013 2012 % change

Total Revenue £55.5m £50.4m 10%

Underlying Trading Profit £17.2m £15.7m 9%

Trading Margin 31% 31%
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Thistle is a diverse business with a significant range of
products sold and serviced across many different
distribution channels on both a wholesale and on a direct
retail basis, targeting niche products, segments and
groups of customers. Underpinning the retail and
wholesale distribution framework is a set of underwriting
facilities, provided by a core set of Managing General
Underwriter (MGU) arrangements with insurers. This
allows Thistle to share in the underwriting profitability of its
business without taking any capital risk. 

Through 2013 a number of actions were implemented to
strengthen the business including the hire of new senior
personnel and investment in the Thistle brand. 

During the year Thistle continued to be exposed to the
challenging UK economy and a very competitive insurance
rating environment. Against this backdrop the business
did, however, still increase its revenues by 2% to £34.9
million. The trading profit and margin reduced as a
consequence of the investments made to strengthen the
business. 

The design and launch of new products in addition to new
affinity customers and improved sales capabilities provide
the key opportunities for growth in 2014.

Principal lines of business
Caravans and Caravan parks, Leisure including Cycle,
Music & Photography, Recruitment, Housing Associations,
Tenants Risks, Liability, Fleet, Commercial SME Schemes,
Lloyd’s Placement.

Thistle UK

JLT Canada

The business delivered a 15% increase in revenues, 14%
at constant rates of exchange, with organic growth of 4%. 

JLT Insurance Management is one of the leading
insurance management and consulting groups with
operations in Guernsey, Bermuda, US, Barbados and
Singapore.

The business continued to add to its capabilities in 2013
with the recruitment of new talent, particularly in the US,
where the newly acquired JLT Towner business is making
good progress. The business continued its growth in Latin
American sourced business and is focused on other
developing markets whilst continuing to serve the more
established North American and European regions. 

JLT Insurance Management

Our South African operation grew its revenue organically
during the year under review.

Our activities in the Middle East and Africa (MEA) region
have been given further impetus with the recent
acquisition of a controlling stake in IDB. This business has
operations in Dubai, Qatar and Bahrain. Our existing
operation within the Dubai International Finance Centre is
in transition from its current status as a division of JLT
Specialty (London) to a fully transactional standalone entity
reporting into the newly formed MEA structure.

From 2014 onwards our MEA operation will be reported
separately.

JLT South Africa

2013 continued to be a year of transition for the
Canadian management team with the addition of key
executives and specialty leaders to focus and drive the
Canadian business to align with the JLT Global
Specialty model. Consequently, we have strengthened
the specialty structure in the Canadian portfolio
including Public Entity, where we are market leading,
Natural Resources, Construction & Professional.

Achieving growth in the Canadian operation has been
difficult primarily due to the very competitive landscape
in the Canadian insurance marketplace and significant
insurance over-capacity.

Total revenue was £25.8 million an 8% reduction on 2012.
The trading profit for the year also reduced to £1.5 million
(2012: £2.5 million), with the trading margin reducing to
6% (2012: 9%).

The business continues to invest in developing its talent
and expanding its capabilities and resources in its key
speciality areas to drive growth in 2014.

Principal lines of business
General Corporate Industries, Construction, Natural
Resources & Energy, Public Sector Risks, Professional &
Financial Risks, SME & Consumer Products.

2013 2012 % change

Total Revenue £25.8m £28.2m (8%)

Underlying Trading Profit £1.5m £2.5m (40%)  

Trading Margin 6% 9%

2013 2012 % change

Total Revenue £2.8m £1.7m 63%

Underlying Trading Profit (£0.1m) (£0.9m) 93%

Trading Margin (2%) (53%)

2013 2012 % change

Total Revenue £34.9m £34.3m 2%

Underlying Trading Profit £2.4m £4.0m (39%)

Trading Margin 7% 12%

2013 2012 % change

Total Revenue £8.0m £6.9m 15%

Underlying Trading Profit £0.6m £0.6m -

Trading Margin 7% 9%

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
RISK & INSURANCE
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We extended both the depth and reach of our
international Employee Benefits operations during
2013, building upon the investments made in
prior years. 

Our international Employee Benefits operations
delivered a 25% increase in revenues to £255.3
million, of which 14% was organic, and
generated £55.8 million of trading profit, an
increase of 29%. The trading margin for the
division was 22% despite further investment in
people and capabilities to meet clients’ current
and future needs.

Our businesses:

UK & Ireland 34

Asia 34

Latin America 34

Australia & NZ 35

Canada 35

South Africa 35

Pension and retirement services
Providing a range of services,
primarily focused on the UK market,
designed to meet the requirements
of both pension trustees and
corporate sponsors, including
pension scheme administration,
actuarial consultancy, scheme
design and risk transfer consultancy,
governance, independent trustee
services and member
communications.

Health and benefits
Providing advice on and
implementing employee health and
benefit programmes, medical claims
administration, occupational health
services and placement of health
and risk protection policies for
corporate workforces. These health
and benefit programmes are
increasingly managed using JLT’s
own integrated online benefits
platform, BenPal.

Investment services
Advising on all aspects of investment
and discretionary management of
assets for both high net worth
individuals and company pension
schemes.

Wealth management
Offering advice and support to high-
net-worth individuals in respect of
their financial planning, at retirement
support and life protection
requirements.

Our global Employee
Benefits businesses
provide services
including: 

(2012: £203.7m)

£255.3m
+25%

Revenue by business area

Turnover by client location(2012: £43.3m)

£55.8m
+29%

Underlying Trading Profit 2013

(2012: 21%)

22%
Trading Margin 2013

Revenue 2013

Turnover excludes investment income

£255.2m

£255.3m

UK & Ireland
£172.1m

Asia
£55.4m

Australia & NZ
£7.6m

Other
£2.1m

Latin America
£18.1m

UK
66%

Australia & NZ
3%

Asia
22%

Europe
1%

Americas
8%

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
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Our UK & Ireland Employee Benefits business delivered an
18% increase in revenues (4% organic) and a 15%
increase in trading profit for the year producing an
unchanged trading margin of 19%.

The integration of our acquisition of Alexander Forbes
Consultants & Actuaries Limited has proved successful
with expertise in health, investment consulting and
annuities proving to be particularly valuable. 

We are now a leading advisor in the Bulk Annuity market,
advising on one in five of the transactions which took
place during 2013. We expect this market to more than
double in size in 2014 and are investing in order to ensure
we continue to be a leader in this increasingly important
area.

Profund, our pension administration software provider, has
long been the market leader with 3.5 million individuals
administered on the system. In 2013 we launched a
hosted version of the software and see renewed
opportunities to drive growth in this area.

The Retail Distribution Review (RDR) and Auto Enrolment
have fundamentally altered the markets in which we trade.
We have assessed over a million employees for auto
enrolment during 2013 utilising our market leading BenPal
system during the course of 2013. The transition from
commission to fees triggered by RDR has caused little
disruption to our private client business.

We have established our Edinburgh office integrating our
new Aegon and Alexander Forbes colleagues in Scotland
with our existing business. Our combined operation in
Scotland now makes JLT the largest employee benefits
consultant north of the border. 

We exceeded our ambition to grow our investment
platform in 2013. Assets under management at the end of
the year exceed £1.5 billion, doubling the value of our
assets under management over the past twelve months.

Principal lines of business
Trustee Consulting, Corporate Sponsor Consulting,
Investment Consulting, Investment Management, Wealth
Management, Profund, BenPal, Independent Trustee
Services, Pension Scheme administration, Pension
Scheme Wind-up Consulting, Annuities, Data Cleansing.

UK & Ireland

In Asia we have a strong and growing Employee Benefits
business employing some 675 people. This business
grew its revenues by 45%, 38% of which was organic,
during the year. This growth was again underpinned by
our market leading life insurance broking business which
provides solutions to high-net-worth clients, working
closely with most of the largest private banks in the
region. 

We completed two acquisitions in Indonesia to provide us
with healthcare risk and claims management capabilities
to support clients continuing to offer healthcare as a core
benefit, while managing the cost of access to hospital
networks. We hope to extend these capabilities to other
Asian countries in the future.

Asia

We have well established operations in Brazil, Peru and
Colombia. These operations grew revenues by 42% in
2013, producing trading profits of £4.3 million. As these
markets develop, employers are keen to offer employee
benefits programmes, with healthcare as a core benefit.
We continue to focus on assisting our clients to put in
place competitive plans while also managing utilization
and cost.

We made particular progress during the year in Brazil and
in January 2014, we acquired SCK which has further
strengthened our business in this key market.

Latin America

2013 2012 % change

Total Revenue £55.4m £38.2m 45%

Underlying Trading Profit £18.6m £11.7m 60%

Trading Margin 34% 30%

2013 2012 % change

Total Revenue £172.1m £146.0m 18%

Underlying Trading Profit £32.2m £28.0m 15%

Trading Margin 19% 19%

2013 2012 % change

Total Revenue £18.1m £12.7m 42%

Underlying Trading Profit £4.3m £2.3m 85%

Trading Margin 24% 18%

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
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Our Employee Benefits business in Australia & New
Zealand increased total revenues by 49%, or 59% at
constant rates of exchange to £7.6 million building upon
our investment in this business.

During the year the business continued to focus on
delivering bespoke solutions to clients, assisting with
healthcare insurance, and other core benefits, whilst also
delivering occupational health services to improve
absence and productivity.

BenPal is now a core part of our client solution, enhancing
management of data and delivering timely management
information. 

Australia & New Zealand

Canada’s Employee Benefits business delivered strong
revenue growth to £1.9 million, an increase of 13%, or
16% at constant rates of exchange. 

The expansion of our Employee Benefits business in
Canada is at an early stage in its development and we
remain excited about the potential to develop this
business. 

We continue to see good opportunities in Canada and
have recently strengthened our leadership to pursue
further growth.

Canada
2013 2012 % change

Total Revenue £1.9m £1.7m 13%

Underlying Trading Profit - - -

Trading Margin (1%) (1%)

2013 2012 % change

Total Revenue £7.6m £5.1m 49%

Underlying Trading Profit £1.1m £1.3m (18%)

Trading Margin 14% 26%

In 2013 we entered the South African market, both to
support our increasingly international Employee Benefits
client base but also to pursue local market opportunities.
Forthcoming changes to pension legislation will add to the
existing healthcare opportunity, and we also believe the
market will be receptive to BenPal. 

In November, we acquired Eluleka Consulting, a fast
growing benefits adviser. We now have over 45 staff in
South Africa. 

South Africa
2013 2012 % change

Total Revenue £0.2m - -

Underlying Trading Profit (£0.4m) - -

Trading Margin - -
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In 2013 the contribution from
our associates after tax was
£8.1 million compared to
£8.3 million in 2012,
reflecting the somewhat
mixed trading conditions that
have impacted our European
associates in particular. 

Siaci Saint Honoré

Siaci Saint Honoré, based in Paris with 1,465 employees, is a leading
independent provider of insurance broking and employee benefits services to
major French companies and multinational corporations. JLT has a 26%
shareholding. 

Principal specialist areas are Major Corporate Risks, Marine Cargo,
Construction, Energy, Retail Distribution, Luxury Goods, Employee Benefits and
Expatriate Healthcare.

Their International Employee Benefits overseas operations have offices in
Bangkok, Calgary, Dubai and Shanghai. They also have captive management
and brokerage operations in Luxembourg and brokerage operations in Geneva.

March-JLT

JLT has a 25% shareholding in March-JLT, which is the 4th largest commercial
insurance broker in Spain. The joint venture partner is Banca March, Spain’s
leading privately-owned financial institution. 

Its core business is corporate-focused, with specialty capabilities including
Construction, Tourism and Marine & Cargo. The business employs over 100
staff, with offices in Madrid, Mallorca, Seville, Valencia, Bilbao, La Palmas, and
Barcelona. 

GrECo

JLT has a 20% shareholding in the GrECo Group, the leading specialist
insurance broker in Central & Eastern Europe, the Balkans and the CIS regions.
With its headquarters in Vienna, GrECo added offices in Estonia and Turkey
during 2013, and now has 56 offices with 800 employees in 17 countries. Its
operations outside Austria are branded GrECo JLT.

Principal specialist areas are Construction & Real Estate, Energy, Marine &
Marine Cargo, Communications, Technology & Media, and Financial Institutions. 

MAG-JLT

JLT has a 25% shareholding in MAG-JLT, a leading speciality broker in Italy with
200 employees in offices in Milan, Rome, Naples, and offices in a further 6 cities
around the country, as well as a Lloyd’s broking arm in London. 

Key business areas are Corporate (Risk Management, Middle Market), Aviation,
Marine (Hull & Machinery), Marine (Liability & P&I, Cargo), High-Net-Worth (Yacht,
Fine Art, Contingency), and Affinity (Employee Benefits, Motor).

JLT Sterling

JLT has a 36% shareholding in Sterling Re Intermedio de Reaseguro S.A. de
C.V., which trades as JLT Sterling, with the balance of shares being held by
Lorant MMS, a leading independent retail insurance broker, based in Mexico
City.

JLT Sterling has broadened its traditional base of Property and Aviation, to
provide specialist wholesale services also in the Casualty, Construction, Energy,
Marine, Marine Cargo and Specie sectors. 

Siaci Saint Honoré France 26%

GrECo Central & Eastern
Europe/CIS 20%

March-JLT Spain 25%

MAG-JLT Italy 25%

JLT Sterling Mexico 36%

Associate holdings at 31st December 2013

2013 2012 Growth

Total contribution to
JLT after tax £8.1m £8.3m (2%)

Total contribution to JLT after tax

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
ASSOCIATES
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FINANCE DIRECTOR’S REVIEW

It gives me great pleasure 
to present the Finance
Director’s Review for what
has been another successful
year for JLT.

JLT has had a very solid year from a financial standpoint, with strong organic
growth, an increase in the trading margin and a significant increase in
underlying trading profit.

All of this has been achieved whilst continuing to protect our balance sheet,
whether through our hedging programme in relation to foreign exchange
exposure, or our recently announced pension buy-in transactions. Our
operational cash flows have been robust but do reflect significant capital
expenditure in 2013, which included the acquisition of Towers Watson Re.

A more detailed review of the performance of the business can be seen on
pages 28 to 36. This is summarised in the Performance Summary overleaf. 
At a high level, underlying trading profit for the year increased by 16% to
£185.4 million, an increase of 17% at constant rates of exchange (CRE),
reflecting:

• revenue growth of 11% to £979.2 million, an increase of 12% at CRE.
This increase comprised organic growth of 8.5% and 4% from
acquisitions, offset by foreign exchange and investment income.
Investment income on fiduciary funds was £4.5 million (2012: £5.7
million);

• an improvement in the underlying trading margin, which increased from
18.2% to 18.9%, notwithstanding continued investment for growth. 

Reported profit before tax was £154.6 million (2012: £151.5 million) which
includes net exceptional costs of £22.8 million, comprising Business
Transformation Programme costs of £9.5 million, £9.0 million of acquisition
and integration costs and premises consolidation costs of £5.0 million offset
by other exceptional gains of £0.7 million.

The tax charge for the year was £41.8 million, representing an underlying tax
expense of £46.8 million. The underlying effective tax rate for 2013 was 26%
(2012: 26%).

Profit after tax and non-controlling interests was £102.0 million (2012: £102.2
million). Diluted earnings per share were 46.4p on a reported basis (2012:
46.5p).

Operating costs
The Group’s underlying operating costs ratio has improved, reducing by 70
basis points to 81.1% of total revenues. This is despite the fact that we have
continued to invest in the business through recruitment across the Group,
building our global presence, enhancing our IT platform and consolidating our
property footprint in London.

(£m) 2013 2012* Variance

Total revenue 979 100% 880 100% 99

Operating costs:

Staff costs 570 58.2% 516 58.7% 54

Premises 48 4.9% 44 5.0% 4

Depreciation & Amortisation 25 2.5% 21 2.4% 4

Travel & entertainment 37 3.7% 34 3.8% 3

Other operating costs 114 11.8% 105 11.9% 9

794 81.1% 720 81.8% 74

Underlying operating cost ratio

Underlying operating costs (excluding exceptional items) divided by total revenue

* Restated to reflect the impact of IAS 19 (Revised).
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Performance Summary

Notes:

- Organic growth is based on total revenue excluding the effect of currency,
acquisitions, disposals and investment income.

- Total revenue comprises fees, commissions and investment income.

- CRE: Constant rates of exchange.

- Underlying results exclude exceptional items.

- 2012 comparatives have been restated to reflect the impact of IAS 19 (Revised).

Total Revenue Trading Margin Underlying Trading Profit
£m 2013 Growth CRE Organic 2013 CRE 2012 2013 CRE 2012

RISK & INSURANCE
JLT Specialty 244.8 4% 3% 4% 21% 21% 20% 51.2 51.2 46.8
JLT Australia & New Zealand 124.5 (2%) 4% 5% 30% 30% 29% 37.1 39.4 36.9
Lloyd & Partners 83.7 5% 6% 6% 22% 22% 22% 18.3 18.6 17.6
JLT Towers Re 76.8 43% 43% 25% 15% 14% 14% 11.3 11.0 7.4
JLT Asia 67.1 13% 13% 9% 15% 15% 15% 10.4 10.2 9.1
JLT Latin America 55.5 10% 14% 14% 31% 31% 31% 17.2 17.6 15.7
Thistle UK 34.9 2% 2% 1% 7% 7% 12% 2.4 2.4 4.0
JLT Canada 25.8 (8%) (8%) (7%) 6% 5% 9% 1.5 1.3 2.5
JLT Insurance Management 8.0 15% 14% 4% 7% 7% 9% 0.6 0.6 0.6
JLT South Africa 2.8 63% 89% 89% (2%) (2%) (53%) (0.1) (0.1) (0.9)

723.9 7% 8% 7% 21% 21% 21% 149.9 152.2 139.7

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
UK & Ireland 172.1 18% 18% 4% 19% 19% 19% 32.2 32.2 28.0
Asia 55.4 45% 43% 38% 34% 33% 30% 18.6 18.2 11.7
Latin America 18.1 42% 47% 47% 24% 24% 18% 4.3 4.4 2.3
Australia & New Zealand 7.6 49% 59% 59% 14% 14% 26% 1.1 1.1 1.3
Canada 1.9 13% 16% 12% (1%) (1%) (1%) - - -
South Africa 0.2 - - - - - - (0.4) (0.3) -

255.3 25% 26% 14% 22% 22% 21% 55.8 55.6 43.3
Central Costs - - - - - - - (20.3) (20.4) (22.8)

979.2 11% 12% 8.5% 18.9% 18.9% 18.2% 185.4 187.4 160.2

2013 2012

Underlying trading profit 185.4 160.2

Associates 8.1 8.3

Net finance costs (16.1) (12.1)

Underlying profit before taxation 177.4 156.4

Exceptional items (22.8) (4.9)

Profit before taxation 154.6 151.5

Underlying tax expense (46.8) (40.8)

Tax on exceptional items 5.0 1.1

Non-controlling interests (10.8) (9.6)

Profit after taxation (after non-controlling interest) 102.0 102.2

Underlying Profit after taxation (after non-controlling interest) 119.8 106.0

Diluted earnings per share 46.4p 46.5p

Underlying diluted earnings per share 54.5p 48.2p

Total dividend per share 27.2p 25.5p

FINANCE DIRECTOR’S REVIEW
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Acquisitions
The material acquisitions during the year were as follows:

On 1st February 2013 the Group announced the acquisition of Insfield
Insurance Brokers Sdn Bhd, a business within the insurance sector in
Malaysia, covering a range of classes: Marine, Energy, Media,
Manufacturing, Financial Lines and Employee Benefits, for total
consideration of £3.5 million. The acquired business contributed
revenue of £1,461,000 and a net profit of £159,000 to the Group for
the period since acquisition.

On 16th October 2013 the Group announced the acquisition of
ForVision Risk Services Ltd, a leading Taiwan-based broker providing
insurance, reinsurance and risk management services for companies
with local and international operations, for total consideration of £3.5
million. The acquired business contributed revenue of £161,000 and a
net profit of £122,000 to the Group for the period since acquisition.

On 6th November 2013 the Group acquired Towers Watson’s
reinsurance brokerage operations, a business operating in the United
States, the United Kingdom, Bermuda, Canada, France and
Germany, for total consideration of £177.0 million (including some £19
million of net assets acquired). The acquired business contributed
revenue of £9,939,000 and a net loss of £592,000 to the Group for
the period since acquisition. 

On 28th November 2013, the Group announced the acquisition of
Eluleka Consulting (Pty) Ltd, a South African Employee Benefits and
Healthcare broker and consultant to corporates, for total
consideration of £4.9 million. The acquired business contributed
revenue of £141,000 and a net profit of £54,000 to the Group for the
period since acquisition.

On 31st December 2013, the Group gained control of Insure Direct
(Brokers) LLC and Independent Risk Solutions Holding BV for total
consideration of £8.3 million. Insure Direct (Brokers) LLC is a leading
Dubai-based insurance broker and Employee Benefits advisor with
operations in Bahrain and Qatar. Independent Risk Solutions Holding
BV is a marine specialty broker based in the Netherlands. No
contribution towards the revenue and net profit to the Group has been
recognised in 2013.

Business Transformation Programme
Our two year Business Transformation Programme is proceeding well.
During the year we have opened a new shared service centre in
Malaysia to support our businesses in Asia and we have continued to
implement a number of efficiency improvement projects to support our
businesses across Latin America. For 2013, the Group has incurred
£9.5 million one-off costs to secure recurring benefits of £7.3 million.
The projected total one-off costs and recurring annualised savings for
the two year programme are £18.0 million and £12.0 million
respectively.

Dividends
The Board is recommending a final dividend in respect of 2013 of
17.1p per share. Together with the interim dividend of 10.1p per share,
this brings the total dividend to 27.2p per share, an increase of 7%.
This represents improved dividend cover of 2.0 times, based on
underlying diluted earnings per share, compared to 1.9 times in 2012.

Balance sheet and cash flow
Net debt at 31st December 2013 was £345 million. The net debt
increase of £203 million compared to 2012 primarily reflects our
continuing acquisition programme, in particular the USD250 million
cost of the Towers Watson acquisition.

In 2013 the Group took steps to reduce the volatility in the deficit of its
UK defined benefit pension scheme by entering into annuity buy-in
contracts with Prudential which secure the future benefits relating to
over £200 million of pensioner liabilities. This has resulted in the
pension scheme holding assets which closely match a portion of its

liabilities, thereby reducing exposure to ongoing longevity and asset
risk arising from that portion of the pension scheme liabilities. 

Financing and liquidity 
At 31st December 2013, the Group had committed long-term
unsecured bank facilities of £350 million and drawn private placement
loan notes equivalent to £214 million, resulting in total debt facilities
equivalent to £564 million with maturities between 2015 and 2025.
Gross borrowings as at 31st December 2013 were £460 million, which
includes £447 million of borrowings under the Group’s committed
facilities, leaving unutilised committed facilities headroom in excess of
£115 million.

Foreign exchange management and currency risk
The Group has transactional and translational foreign exchange
exposures. The transactional exposure arises primarily in the London
Market businesses, which have a Sterling cost base but which have a
significant proportion of US Dollar-denominated revenues
(approximately USD300 million in 2013, representing some 20% of
the Group’s revenue).

The Group continues to operate a US Dollar hedging programme to
reduce the volatility caused by exchange rate movements, by entering
into forward foreign exchange contracts.

In 2013, the Group achieved an average rate of USD1.55 compared
to an average market rate of USD1.57.

The Group’s hedging position as at 28th February 2014 is set out in
the table below, along with an indication of the potential year-on-year
revenue impact based on current market rates and an assumed
USD350 million of revenue on a pro-forma basis including the full year
effect of Towers Watson Re. 

As a guide, each 1 cent movement in the achieved rate (taking into
account the hedges in place) currently translates into a change of
approximately £1.5 million in revenue, with a corresponding impact on
trading profit equal to approximately 65% of the revenue change.
Based on current hedging levels, in 2014 it would take a movement
of 4 cents in the spot rate to create a 1 cent movement in the
achieved rate. The Group does not hedge exposure to currency
movements that affect the translation of the profits of overseas
subsidiaries earned in foreign currencies.
The current strength of Sterling coupled with the volatility in foreign
exchange markets is likely to have an effect on JLT’s 2014 results,
when compared to 2013. By way of an example, if the 2013 profits of
our major overseas businesses were translated at the 28th February
2014 spot rate rather than average rates achieved during 2013, this
would have reduced our reported profits by some £6.7 million during
the year; the Australian dollar being the most material component of
this number, comprising £4.2 million of the total £6.7 million effect.

* Note: 2013 restated to illustrate proforma full year impact of acquired Towers Watson Re USD revenue

Full year Projections
Forward Rates

Actual
2013

2014 2015 2016

USD hedging rates achieved as at 28th
Feb 2014

1.54 1.56 1.53 1.54

Current USD hedged positions - 74% 47% 25%

Forward USD rates as at 28th Feb 2014 - 1.67 1.67 1.66

Blended USD rates post hedging 1.55 1.59 1.60 1.63

Value of 2013 revenue (USD350m)* £226m £220m £219m £215m

Illustrative year-on-year revenue impact - (£6m) (£1m) (£4m)

USD Revenue Protection
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The Group has significant investments in overseas operations.
Movements in exchange rates between balance sheet dates will
affect the Sterling value of the Group’s consolidated balance sheet.

The currency profile of the Group’s borrowings is managed to mitigate
exposure to translation exposures where practical and cost effective.

Interest rate risk
The Group has both interest bearing assets and interest bearing
liabilities that give rise to net exposures to changes in interest rates,
primarily in US Dollars and Sterling. Where appropriate, the Group
uses interest rate swaps to hedge or match these interest rate
exposures. The Group’s policy is to continue to manage net interest
rate exposures arising from the Group’s cash and borrowings.

Each 1% movement in the average achieved rate of return impacts
interest income receivable by approximately £7.0 million, based on
average invested balances.

Counterparty credit risk
The Group's gross exposure to credit risk at 31st December 2013 is
£1,071 million, representing own cash, fiduciary funds, investments
and deposits, derivative assets and trade receivables. The Group
maintains a counterparty policy based on credit analysis, market data
and published ratings criteria to manage the concentration of funds
and its exposure to individual counterparties. Deposit limits are
assigned to each counterparty appropriate to its credit rating and
overall financial profile.

The Group manages its own cash and invested fiduciary funds in the
form of deposits with investment grade banks, AAA money market
funds and other secure short-term money market instruments.

All deposit counterparties are subject to regular review at Board level.

The Group’s counterparty approval criteria include a requirement that
financial institutions maintain a minimum long-term rating of A, except
where this is not possible or practical due to local operating or
regulatory requirements.

The Group’s credit criteria also includes reference to credit default
swap spreads and capital base and Tier 1 capital ratios. All
exposures to individual counterparties are subject to a formal credit
limit to control concentrations of credit exposure and limit the impact
of default risk. Counterparty limits, ratings, credit default spread rates
and capital base, together with utilisation levels, are reviewed regularly
and reported to the Group Board and Audit & Risk Committee.

The respective credit quality by rating of each class of financial asset is
included within the notes to these accounts.

Capital risk and liquidity 
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
ability to continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an efficient capital structure to
ensure an optimal cost of capital. In order to achieve these objectives,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group manages its balance sheet through monthly reviews,
controls and financial reporting.

The Group continues to maintain adequate, committed, long-term
credit facilities to ensure that it is well positioned to meet seasonal
capital requirements and to support the strategic growth of the
business. There are no restrictions on the use of these facilities in the
normal course of business.

The insurance broking operations within the Group operate in a
number of jurisdictions where local regulation requires a minimum
level of capital to be maintained. The total regulatory capital to be
held by the Group is not considered significant in the context of the
total available capital.

The total capital of the Group at 31st December 2013 and 2012
was as follows:

Price risk
The Group does not have a material exposure to commodity price
risk.

Pension scheme risk 
The Group has exposure to movements in the balance sheet, income
statement and statement of comprehensive income as a
consequence of changes in the valuation of retirement benefit liabilities
and the impact of such changes on the Group’s defined benefit
pension scheme positions.

The Group seeks to manage this exposure through regular monitoring
and reporting of scheme asset performance and liability positions,
suitable scheme investment and risk mitigation strategies, such as the
2013 annuity buy-in, and appropriate funding arrangements based on
periodic actuarial valuations. 

2014 exceptional costs
It is currently anticipated that exceptional costs in 2014 will be in the
region of £21 million. These are driven by acquisition and integration
costs principally associated with Towers Watson Re (£12.5 million)
and the second and final year of the Business Transformation
Programme (£8.5 million).

Amendments to International Accounting Standard 19 (IAS 19) 
Following a change to IAS 19 which took effect from 1st January
2013, the expected rate of return assumed for scheme assets was
limited to the same AA corporate bond discount rate applied to the
scheme liabilities. Accordingly, we have re-stated the Group’s 2012
net pensions finance charge on this new basis and this had the effect
of increasing the net pensions finance charge in respect of 2012 from
£0.5 million to £5.6 million. The 2013 finance charge was broadly
similar to the re-stated 2012 charge at £5.7 million.

Basis of presentation
The Group's 2013 financial statements include a consolidated income
statement, statement of comprehensive income, balance sheet,
statement of changes in equity and a statement of cash flows. These
statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Statutory accounts of individual Group companies are prepared, as
required, in accordance with applicable local accounting standards. 

The balance sheet of the Company, Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group
plc, which is included in this Annual Report, has been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting practice in the UK.

Mike Reynolds
Finance Director
14th March 2014

£m 2013 2012

Total own funds (115.3) (111.4)

Borrowings 460.2 253.7

Net debt 344.9 142.3

Total equity 360.5 348.2

Total capital 705.4 490.5
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RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT

As a global company, JLT faces a range of
risks, each of which has the potential to
impact on the achievement of our strategic
business objectives as well as providing
opportunity in the right circumstances.

JLT’s Corporate Governance
The Group’s risk & control framework 
was extensively reviewed during 2013. 
The recommendations included: 

• Investing further in the Risk,
Compliance and Internal Audit teams

• Adding further non-executive directors
to the organisation’s Boards and Audit
& Risk Committees (ARCs)

• Revising the Group’s risk, compliance
and audit methodologies

• Enhancing accountability, ownership
and reporting for the risks the
organisation chooses to take

A standard framework and principles are
used across the Group.

The Group operates a ‘three lines of
defence’ governance model. The first line
(the business) is responsible for the
identification and management of all the
risks inherent in its operations; the second

line (Group Risk & Compliance) provide
advice, guidance and challenge to the
business; the third line (Group Internal
Audit) independently assesses and reports
on the effectiveness of governance, risk
management and internal controls.

Each operating company maintains
controls and procedures appropriate to its
own business and regulatory environment
while conforming to Group standards and
guidelines. The responsibility for internal
controls within associated undertakings
rests with the senior management of those
operations, the role of the Group being to
monitor its investments and to exert
influence, normally through Board
representation.

Where relevant entity Boards delegate
authority to their ARCs. Each ARC has two
non-executive directors, many of whom
are independent of the Group, one of
which is Chair of the committee. The first,
second and third lines of defence are
represented. Each provides a focused
report to the ARC to promote discussion
and agreement on the treatment of the
business’s key risks, with reference to their
appetite for those risks. This approach
allows for open, challenging dialogue

about the key issues and opportunities for
each business.

However, the directors acknowledge that
they are responsible for the Group’s risk
management, internal control systems and
for reviewing their effectiveness. 

Principal risks
The principal risks faced by the Group are
summarised in the table below.

Financial risks
The principal financial risks are also
discussed in more detail in the Finance
Director’s Review on pages 39 and 40.

Mike Reynolds
Finance Director
14th March 2014

Principal Risks Nature of Risk Risk Mitigation

STRATEGIC RISKS

Economic instability JLT’s business is more tied to economic
activity and growth rather than market rates,
since greater levels of corporate activity drive
greater demand for the Group’s services.

• Fee versus commission strategy
• Natural diversification through Group companies
• Regular review at GEC and at Board level

Strategic Risks There are risks to the business model arising
from changes in external events, our markets
and customer behaviour as well as risks
arising from mergers and acquisitions.

• Board review of strategic risks
• Strategic review and planning process
• Global efficiency initiative
• Acquisition due diligence and risk assessment processes

OPERATIONAL RISKS

Loss of Key Staff The Group’s core asset is its people. Therefore
there is a risk that the organisation may no
longer be able to attract and retain market
leading talent.

• Succession planning processes
• Effective appraisal and development programmes
• Robust contracts of employment
• Effective remuneration strategies

Business Interruption The Group operates out of 115 offices in 39
territories across the world, each with a unique
local environment. There is a risk of a business
interruption due to a large external event.

• Dedicated Group Business Continuity Management
function

• Detailed Group business continuity policy and
procedures 

• Regular independent review and testing of business
continuity plans

Loss of IT Environment The JLT businesses are reliant on the ability to
process its transactions on behalf of its clients.
Risks arising from non-performance of an IT
supplier, malicious act, cyber crime and staff
not following group IT policies and procedures.

• Detailed IT policy and procedures in place

• Strong governance procedures over IT outsourcing and
service level agreements in place 

• Monitoring of compliance with Group IT security policy
and service level agreements

• Limits of authority in place.

• Annual IT Disaster Recovery Plan test by each business
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Principal Risks Nature of Risk Risk Mitigation

Information Security Intermediaries and pension administrators
retain confidential data in the normal course of
business. Risk of loss of records, breach of
confidentiality or inadequate security measures
need to be managed.

• Group Information Security Policy
• Dedicated information risk and data protection functions
• Risk based monitoring and reviews performed by Group

Information Security Officer and Internal Audit

Errors & Omissions Intermediaries run a risk of incurring a loss if
the operating procedures in place across the
Group are not complied with or alleged
negligence in provision of services/advice
becomes apparent.

• Common operating procedures and compliance policy
• Continuous training in errors and omissions avoidance
• Central and regional risk and compliance monitoring
• Strong procedural and systems controls including

workflow management  
• Regular and ongoing quality assurance programmes
• Professional indemnity insurance programme

Regulatory Sanctions/
Financial Crime

The JLT Group operates in a regulated
environment in many jurisdictions across the
world. Risks arise from non-compliance with or
misinterpretation of local and international
regulations and failure to meet regulatory
standards.

• Common operating procedures and compliance policy
• Regular sanctions and third party payments screening

programme
• Continuous staff training programmes
• Central and regional risk and compliance resource

FINANCIAL RISKS

Capital Risk and
Liquidity 

Risks arising from an inability to maintain an
efficient capital structure and ensure an
optimal cost of capital.

• Monthly management reviews of Group balance sheet
• Management of refinancing and liquidity risk including

maintenance of adequate, committed credit facilities
• Compliance with regulatory minimum capital resources

and regular stress testing

Foreign Currency The Group operates in 39 territories and incurs
foreign exchange exposures in the normal
course of business.

• Prudent management of currency exposures through the
maintenance of rolling hedging programme using forward
foreign currency transactions and derivatives where
appropriate

• Regular review and sensitivity analysis

Interest Rate Risk Risk of adverse impact on earnings from net
exposure to changes in interest rates.

• Prudent use of interest rate hedging instruments where
appropriate to hedge future interest rate exposures

Counterparty Risk There is a risk to JLT if there is a failure of a
key counterparty resulting in a loss of own
cash, fiduciary funds, investments & deposits,
derivative assets and trade receivables.

• Board approved investment and counterparty policy to: 
- limit the concentration of funds and exposure with any
one party
- define cash and investments policy  

• Active management and monitoring of counterparty
limits, financial strength and credit profile of key
counterparties

• Regular review by Board and Audit & Risk Committee of
counterparty limits, ratings, credit default swap spread
rates, utilisation levels and compliance with applicable
regulation

Defined Benefit Pension
Scheme

Risk of adverse impact on the Balance Sheet
and Income Statement as a consequence of
increase in Defined Benefit Pension Scheme
deficit.

• Regular monitoring and reporting of scheme asset
performance and liability positions

• Appropriate scheme investment strategy and
diversification

• Rolling triennial actuarial valuations and regular trustee
funding updates

• Appropriate deficit funding basis
• Regular review of long term de-risking strategy
• Regular scheme membership data verification
• Effective independent trustee governance
• Regular review of employee covenant

RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT



Financial S
tatem

ents
C
orporate G

overnance
O
verview

S
trategic R

eport

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc Annual Report 2013

43

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

 We continue to support a number of charitable projects, alongside employee contributions. In 2013 these
included:

2011-2013
Charitable donations

£’000

650.6

480.0

201320122011

407.9

Udaan Foundation - India

The Udaan Foundation, located near
our Mumbai office, provides
education for disadvantaged children
living in Mumbai. The charity consider
themselves to be a stepping stone for
children and young adults towards
better employment and a better
quality of life, as well as emphasising
the importance of education to
children and their families.

JLT has engaged staff worldwide to
help raise money to support the
school through a number of
fundraising channels. We have also
been a key provider of volunteers for
teaching English to students.

Action on Addiction - UK

Action on Addiction work to better
understand the causes and treatment
of addiction. Action on Addiction
support a variety of research projects,
investigating the effectiveness of new
and existing treatments and
prevention techniques in order to
reduce the number of addiction
problems in our society. Addiction will
affect one in three people in their
lives. 

In 2012, JLT announced a three year
agreement with Action on Addiction
to help fund activities and support the
organisation’s development. 

Westmead Children’s Hospital
- Australia

JLT Australia continues to hold an
annual golf day in support of the
Cystic Fibrosis Clinic at the children’s
hospital in the Sydney suburb of
Westmead. The event has raised
more than AUD1.4 million since it
started in 2004. Money raised helps
fund a part-time dietician for patients,
as well as annual learning and the JLT
Fellowship research programme for
cystic fibrosis doctors.

Lighthouse Club - UK

The Lighthouse Club is a charity
which has benefited significantly from
the JLT CR programme throughout
2013, receiving over £32,000 to date.
The charity provides financial and
emotional support to families of those
injured or killed whilst working in the
construction industry. 

In 2013, JLT contributed
£650,620 to charitable causes.

In 2013 a new Corporate Responsibility
Committee met for the first time to review our
corporate responsibility activities and during
2014 we will consider further how we:

• embed our CR activities within the overall
Group strategy, particularly in respect of
creating a distinctive workplace

• gather further employee feedback to
identify CR priorities

• improve understanding and communication
of current community-related activities 

• deepen support for organisations more
closely aligned to our business activities

• review the scope and outcomes of the
Group’s Greenhouse Gas Emissions report
for 2013 with the objective of continuing to
manage JLT’s impact on the environment 

• produce a global framework to coordinate
future CR activities.

Our communities
We believe we can positively influence, improve
and support communities local to where we
work.

The JLT Group Charities Committee makes
donations to organisations based on:

• organisational merit

• similarities to our own company vision and
values

• alignment with our location

• employee interest and enthusiasm. 

Organisations and employees can apply for
support which we provide where possible in
conjunction with the employee’s own
fundraising activities. Our UK Charity Matching
Scheme matches every pound raised by an
employee up to £2,500. Employees are also
entitled to take one day per year for volunteer
work.

We recognise that our corporate responsibility (CR) activities are an important
way for us to deliver upon our strategic aims (see pages 6 and 23) and of
creating a distinctive working environment for our people (see page 7).
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Jardine Lloyd Thompson GHG Emissions Report

JLT’s GHG Emissions by Scope and Intensity Ratio JLT’s GHG Emissions by Scope

Scope Source Details

Sub Total
Tonnes

CO2e

Total
Tonnes

CO2e
Intensity

Ratio

Scope 1

Purchased Fuels
Natural gas purchased directly
by JLT 468.92

2,368.55 0.29Fugitive emissions
Refrigerant leaks and top ups
for equipment under direct
responsibility of JLT

276.04

Transport
Transport owned or controlled
by JLT 1,623.59

Scope 2
Purchased
electricity

Electricity purchased directly
by JLT 3,842.87 3,842.87 0.46

Scope 3

Air Travel
Flights taken by JLT employees
for business purposes 10,435.79

11,908.57 1.44Rail Travel (UK only)
Rail Travel by JLT employees for
business purposes 262.79

Non purchased
electricity (UK only)

Electricity used by JLT but
purchased by the landlord 1,209,99

Total 18,119.99 18,119.99 2.18

The methodology employed to calculate the GHG emissions is in
accordance with the GHG Protocol Corporate Reporting and
Accounting Standard (revised edition). Data has been collated from
JLT’s global offices for electricity, fuels, refrigerants and transport
directly purchased or controlled by JLT, in line with the Mandatory
Scopes 1 and 2. With regard to the optional scope 3, JLT has
included within its report emissions relating to air travel by its
employees for business use as this is recognised as a significant
contributor to carbon emissions. 

For the UK only, JLT has also reported on non purchased electricity
usage (i.e. used by JLT but purchased by the landlord) and rail
travel. The relevant UK or international emissions factors have been
applied.

There were some limitations to the reporting due to gaps in data,
and where necessary every reasonable effort has been made to fill
these and estimate data as accurately as possible. For air travel,
some countries were excluded as this data is not available for this
reporting period. JLT will be working with its global offices to
improve data availability for the 2014 reporting period.

As this is the first year of reporting no year on year comparison has
been provided, however, this will be included in the submission for
subsequent years’ reporting.

Scope 3
66%

Scope 1
13%

Scope 2
21%

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

Environment

We are committed to minimising the impact our businesses may have on the environment. In line with the
Mandatory Carbon Reporting (MCR) requirements within the Companies Act 2006 the Group has for the first time
included a Greenhouse Gas Emissions (GHG) report within this Annual Report.

Executive Summary

Methodology

*What is tCO2e?

It is standard practice to report GHG emissions in tonnes of CO2 equivalents (tCO2e). This is a universal unit of measurement used to indicate the global warming potential
of the GHG in relation to the global warming potential of one unit of carbon dioxide. The six main greenhouse gases that are converted into tCO2e are carbon dioxide (CO2),
Methane (CH4), Hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs), Nitrous oxide (N2O), Perfluorocarbons (PFCs) and Sulphur hexafluoride (SF6).

In line with MCR requirements within the Companies Act 2006, this
report outlines JLT’s GHG emissions covering the period 1st
January 2013 to 31st December 2013.

The scope of JLT’s reporting encompasses its operational boundary
and includes emissions associated with all of JLT’s owned offices
worldwide during the period. JLT has reported on the mandatory
scopes 1 and 2, and for the optional scope 3 has opted to include
global business travel (given that air travel in particular is
acknowledged as a large contributor to greenhouse gas emissions)
and non-purchased electricity for the UK only.

JLT’s total GHG emissions for 2013 were 18,120 tCO2e*. The
biggest proportion of JLT’s GHG emissions can be accounted for
by air travel which comprises 58% of the total emissions, equating
to 10,436 tCO2e.

In order to demonstrate JLT’s emissions in relation to a quantifiable
factor relating to its business activities, JLT has calculated its
intensity ratio on the basis of number of employees, as this is
considered to relate to company growth and GHG emissions.
The intensity ratio for 2013 is 2.18 tCO2e/employee.
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Our unified mission, strategy, values and
culture provides JLT employees with a
common identity and focus for the future
direction of the business. The diversity of our
ideas, experiences and perspective enables
us to differentiate ourselves from our
competitors, by valuing and respecting our
clients’ diverse needs and driving the growth
and development of our business.

We aim to be the best at what we do and
that means we recruit the most talented
candidates for our roles, regardless of
background. 

JLT is an equal opportunities employer and is
engaging in programmes to attract greater
diversity of talent through increasing the
number of apprenticeships in the business,
broadening the intake of graduates and
establishing targeted management
programmes to support diversity initiatives at
all levels of the organisation.

Employee Diversity

The value of our business is
driven by the quality of advice
and level of service we
provide to clients. The
specialist nature of our
business attracts a diverse
client base and a diverse
employee base enables us to
better understand and tailor
our services to meet the
requirements of our clients.

Human Rights

As a global business, we
recognise and see many of
the economic and social
challenges facing the
countries we and our clients,
operate in around the world. 

As an employer in the ‘Developing’ and
‘Developed’ worlds and with clients who have
diverse business practices in some of the
most remote and poor as well as the most
affluent corners of the world, we recognise
and support the need to work together to
ensure that principles of respect, fairness and
integrity remain at the heart of how we run our
business.

Whilst JLT does not have a human rights
policy, it does have other policies that adhere
to internationally proclaimed human rights
principles. A respect for consistent high
standards, which includes human rights, is
implicit in our employment practices and
within the practices we expect of our
suppliers. Our commitment to doing things
the right way is reflected in our Values and our
Code of Conduct. 

53%
47%

84%

16%

All Employees Senior Management

Breakdown of JLT employee gender diversity in 2013

Female Male Female Male

The Strategic Report on pages 11 to 45 was approved by the Board on 14th
March 2014 and signed on its behalf by:

Mike Reynolds
Finance Director
14th March 2014
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Read more on
page 71

Read more on
page 54

This Corporate Governance section provides a summary of the responsibilities and activities of the Board and its
Committees through 2013 and details of their membership.

The chart below shows the composition of the Board and its committees at 14th March 2014.

JLT Group Board
Geoffrey Howe
(Non-Executive Chairman) 

Non-Executive Directors
Lord Leach of Fairford
(Deputy Chairman) 

Annette Court  

Jonathan Dawson 

Richard Harvey 

Nick MacAndrew
(Senior Independent Director)

Lord Sassoon

Executive Directors
Dominic Burke
(Chief Executive)  

Mark Drummond Brady

Mike Reynolds
(Finance Director)  

James Twining

Remuneration Committee

Richard Harvey (Chairman)

Annette Court

Jonathan Dawson

Lord Leach of Fairford

Nick MacAndrew

Lord Sassoon (from 30th April 2013)

JLT Group Read more on
page 50Audit & Risk Committee

Jonathan Dawson
(Chairman from 5th March 2013)

Nick MacAndrew
(Chairman to 5th March 2013)

Annette Court

Richard Harvey

Lord Sassoon (from 30th April 2013)

Nominations Committee

Lord Leach of Fairford (Chairman)

Annette Court

Jonathan Dawson

Richard Harvey

Geoffrey Howe

Nick MacAndrew

Lord Sassoon (from 30th April 2013)
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G M T Howe
Chairman, Non-Executive

Geoffrey Howe was appointed a Non-Executive
Director in January 2002 and became Joint
Deputy Chairman in November 2004. 

He was appointed Chairman in April 2006 and is
a member of the Nominations Committee.

He is Chairman of the Nationwide Building
Society and a non-executive director of Close
Brothers Group Plc. He was formerly Chairman of
Railtrack Group plc, a director of Investec plc,
group general counsel of Robert Fleming Holdings
and managing partner of Clifford Chance.

A E Court
Non-Executive

Annette Court was appointed a Non-Executive
Director in August 2012. 

She is a member of the Audit & Risk,
Nominations and Remuneration Committees.

Annette has extensive insurance experience.
Between 2007 and 2010 Annette was Chief
Executive Officer for Europe General Insurance for
Zurich Financial Services and a member of the
Group Executive Committee. She is a former
Chief Executive Officer of RBS Insurance, the
insurance division of RBS Group which owned
the Direct Line and Churchill brands. In this role
she was also a member of the RBS Group
Executive Management Committee. Annette is a
non-executive director of Admiral Group plc and
Foxtons Group plc and has previously served as
a member on the board of the Association of
British Insurers (ABI).

D J Burke
Chief Executive

Dominic Burke joined Jardine Lloyd Thompson
in 2000, when the Burke Ford Group of compa-
nies, of which he was Chief Executive and co-
founder, became part of JLT.

He was appointed Chief Executive of the UK &
Ireland Insurance Broking and the Group’s
Employee Benefits businesses in 2000 and was
appointed a Director and Chief Operating Officer
of Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc in
January 2005.

He was appointed Group Chief Executive in
December 2005. He was appointed a non-
executive director and Deputy Chairman of
Newbury Racecourse plc in November 2010
and became Chairman in June 2011.

J D S Dawson
Non-Executive

Jonathan Dawson was appointed a Non-
Executive Director in August 2012. He is a mem-
ber of the Nominations and Remuneration
Committees and, with effect from 5th March
2013, was appointed Chairman of the Audit &
Risk Committee.

Jonathan is senior independent non-executive
director of Next plc, a non-executive director of
National Grid plc and a partner in Penfida
Partners LLP. His career experience includes
eight years in the UK Ministry of Defence and
over 20 years in investment banking with Lazard.
In recent years he has served as a non-executive
director of Galliford Try plc, National Australia
Group Europe Ltd and Standard Life Investments
(Holdings) Limited.

Lord Leach of Fairford 
Deputy Chairman, Non-Executive

Lord Leach was Chairman of Jardine Insurance
Brokers, latterly JIB Group plc, between 1988 and
1997. He was appointed Deputy Chairman of the
Company in February 1997.

He is Chairman of the Nominations Committee and
a member of the Remuneration Committee.

His other directorships include Jardine Matheson
Holdings, Rothschild Continuation AG and other
Jardine Matheson Group companies.

M F G Drummond Brady

Mark Drummond Brady has been with the JLT
Group since 1987 and has held a number of senior
posts in the Group.

He is currently the Group’s International Chairman
of Risk & Insurance. 

He was appointed a Director of Jardine Lloyd
Thompson Group plc in March 2011 and is a
member of the Group Executive Committee.
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R J Harvey
Non-Executive

Richard Harvey was appointed a Non-Executive
Director in December 2009.

He is Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and is a member of the Audit & Risk and
Nominations Committees. 

He enjoyed a long and successful career in the
insurance industry principally with Norwich Union
where he was Chief Executive from 1998 to
2000 and subsequently with Aviva plc where he
was Group Chief Executive from 2001 to 2007.

He was also Chair of the Association of British
Insurers from 2003 to 2005. He is non-executive
Chairman of PZ Cussons Plc and is a fellow of
the Institute of Actuaries.

Lord Sassoon, Kt
Non-Executive Director

Lord Sassoon joined the Board in April 2013. He is
a member of the Audit & Risk, Remuneration and
Nominations Committees.

He began his career at KPMG, before joining
Warburg (later UBS Warburg) in 1985. From 2002
to 2006 he was in the United Kingdom Treasury as
a civil servant, where he had responsibility for
financial services and enterprise policy. Following
this, he chaired the Financial Action Task Force;
and conducted a review of the UK’s system of
financial regulation. 

From 2010 to 2013 Lord Sassoon was the first
Commercial Secretary to the Treasury and acted
as the Government’s Front Bench Treasury
spokesman in the House of Lords. 

He is a director of Jardine Matheson Holdings
Limited and other Jardine Matheson Group com-
panies, having joined the Jardine Matheson Group
in January 2013. He is also Chairman of the China-
Britain Business Council, a Trustee of the British
Museum and is a member of the Global Advisory
Board of Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group.

N R MacAndrew
Non-Executive

Nick MacAndrew was appointed a Non-Executive
Director in July 2005.

He is a member of the Audit & Risk, Remuneration
and Nominations Committees and is Senior
Independent Director. He was Chairman of the
Audit & Risk Committee from July 2005 to March
2013.

A chartered accountant, he was previously Finance
Director of Schroders plc, Chairman of F&C Asset
Management plc and of Save the Children and a
non-executive director of Fuller Smith & Turner plc
and of Wates Group Limited.

J D R Twining

James Twining joined JLT from McKinsey & Co. as
Group Strategy Director in January 2011.

He was appointed to the Board as Group
Commercial Director in August 2012 and is a
member of the Group Executive Committee. He is
also Chairman of Thistle Insurance Services
Limited and sits on the Board of our UK & Ireland
Employee Benefits and Reinsurance businesses
and our French associate Siaci St Honoré. 

M T Reynolds
Finance Director

Mike Reynolds, a Chartered Certified
Accountant, was appointed Finance Director of
the Group in November 2012.

He is a member of the Group Executive
Committee. He has worked in a number of sen-
ior finance roles in the insurance industry and he
joined JLT from ACE European Group Limited
where he was Chief Financial Officer from 2009.
He was previously CFO of Aon Benfield.
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I am pleased to introduce the report of the
Audit & Risk Committee for the year,
having taken over the Chair from Nick
MacAndrew in March 2013.

Jonathan Dawson
Chairman, Audit & Risk Committee

I am pleased to introduce the report of the Audit & Risk Committee for the year, having
taken over the Chair from Nick MacAndrew in March 2013.

The activities of the Committee continue to be focused on:

• the integrity of the financial statements of the Group; 

• the Group’s Risk Management Framework and processes; 

• the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls; and

• the effectiveness of the external audit process and of both our Group Risk &
Compliance and Group Internal Audit functions, being the second and third lines of
defence in the Group’s Risk Management Framework (as illustrated in the chart on page
52).

2013 has been a year of considerable progress in terms of building out our resources in
both our Group Risk & Compliance and Group Internal Audit functions and we enter 2014
with a full complement of resource to deliver on our plans for the Group in 2014 and in the
years ahead.

Looking ahead, in addition to the matters of regular review which are detailed in the report,
the Committee is broadening its agenda to take a thematic approach on particular topics
both on a geographic and a business line basis, together with presentations from the
Chairs of regional and subsidiary company Audit & Risk committees which have been
established in the past few years.

The report below includes a detailed look at the significant issues considered by the
Committee in relation to the financial statements for the year ended 31st December 2013.

Jonathan Dawson
Chairman, Audit & Risk Committee
14th March 2014
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Committee membership and meetings
The Board considers that the members of the committee, both
individually and collectively, possess the necessary range of skills
and experience to enable it to properly discharge its responsibilities.
Lord Sassoon and Nick MacAndrew are Chartered Accountants and
Richard Harvey is a fellow of the Institute of Actuaries.

In view of the growth of the business in recent years, the Committee
has increased the number of its regular meetings from four to six per
annum. 

Ad hoc meetings are held as and when necessary. Those normally
attending by invitation are the Chairman, Group Chief Executive,
external auditors, the Group Head of Internal Audit, the Group Head
of Risk, the Group Finance Director, the Group Commercial Director
and the Group Chief Operating Officer. Meetings are also held with
the internal and external auditors without management present.
Attendance of committee members is detailed in the table on page
72.

As part of the structure of governance across the Group’s business
units, JLT has established some 18 subsidiary company and regional
Audit & Risk Committees (ARCs), designed to assist local Boards of
all material businesses to govern their businesses effectively. Local
company ARCs specifically focus on the oversight of significant risk,
audit and internal control matters affecting their companies. Each
ARC is chaired by a non-executive director, many of whom are
independent of the Group. In addition to formal reporting, the Group
has established a regular informal forum for local company ARC
Chairs to meet together throughout the year.

Responsibilities
The responsibilities of the Committee include monitoring and
reviewing the following key areas in the ordinary course of business:

• the integrity of the financial statements of the Group, any formal
announcements relating to the Group’s financial performance
and significant financial reporting judgements contained therein;

• the Group’s risk management framework, risk appetite and risk
strategy to ensure that these are appropriate to the activities of
the Group; 

• the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management; the effectiveness of the Group’s Internal Audit
function;

• the effectiveness of the external audit process, taking into
consideration relevant professional and regulatory requirements,
the external auditors’ independence and objectivity; and

• the policy on the engagement of the external auditors to supply
non-audit services, taking into account relevant guidance
regarding the provision of non-audit services by the external
auditors.

The Committee, through its Chairman, reports its findings to the
Board after each meeting, identifying any matters in respect of which
it considers that action or improvement is needed, and makes
recommendations as to the steps to be taken.

The Committee’s terms of reference, which cover all matters required
under the UK Corporate Governance Code 2012 are available from
the Company Secretary or on the Group’s website at
www.jltgroup.com. The UK Corporate Governance Code can be
found on the FRC website (www.frc.org.uk).

Activities 
During 2013 and to the date of this Report the Committee reviewed
in the ordinary course:

• its terms of reference, which were revised during the year.

• the drafting of the interim report, preliminary announcement and
the annual report and accounts before their submission to the
Board;

• regular reports from the Group Finance Director, including
updates on currency exposures, bank exposures and the
treatment of exceptional items;

• regular reports from the Group Chief Operating Officer, including
updates on the Group’s existing and planned information
technology resource, human resources, and the Business
Transformation Programme;

• regular reports from the Head of Internal Audit on the activities
within the function and resourcing matters;

• regular reports from the Head of Group Risk and Compliance
including updates on dealings with the UK and other regulators;

• areas where control weaknesses had been identified by the
internal or external auditors together with the
mitigation/remediation plans of management;

• the regular reports of the external auditors, including internal
control issues;

• Group errors and omissions provisions; and

• the effectiveness of the Committee.

Specifically during 2013 and to the date of this report, the
Committee focused on:

• approval of the JLT Group Risk Appetite Statement;

• the implementation of the enhanced Group Risk Management
Framework for the UK regulated entities and subsidiary
companies worldwide;

• the implications of the change of Regulator in the UK (from the
FSA to the FCA);

• entities which were new to the Group through acquisition;

• matters raised by regulators in the UK as requiring particular
focus and progress reports on workstreams arising therefrom.
This included work in relation to the Group Risk Framework and
Third Party Payment controls; and

• areas where the committee considered it appropriate to
strengthen controls.
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1st Line
The Business

2nd Line
Control Functions

3rd Line
Internal Audit

The chart below illustrates the JLT Group “3 lines of defence” model operated under the enhanced Group Risk Management Framework:

Risk Management Framework & Governance

Reporting Key:

Primary reporting line
Secondary/dual reporting line
Attendance at the meeting

JLT Group Audit & Risk CommitteeJLT PLC Board

Entity Audit & Risk
Committees

Entity Boards Group Internal AuditGroup Risk & Compliance
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Significant issues considered by the Committee
The Committee pays particular attention to matters it considers to be important by virtue of their impact on the Group’s results and
remuneration of senior management, or the level of complexity, judgement or estimation involved in their application on the consolidated
financial results. The main areas of focus for the year are set out below:

Matters considered Action

Provision for errors and omissions
This was an area of focus due to the
inherent uncertainty which can surround
legal disputes and consequently the
judgemental nature of estimating the level of
provision required.

These are addressed through the Committee members receiving and reviewing errors and
omissions reports addressing key disputes, and discussing with management the key judgements
made, including relevant legal advice that may have been received. We also discuss those
provisions with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Risk of material misstatement in the
initial measurement of goodwill and
intangibles
This was an area of focus due to the
significant acquisition during the year of the
Towers Watson Reinsurance business,
completed on 6th November 2013.

The Committee members address these matters through review with management outlining the
basis for the conclusions management have reached. In addition, this area is a prime source of
audit focus and accordingly PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP provided detailed comments to the
Committee.

External auditors
The Committee is accountable to the Board in relation to the
appointment of the external auditors and for overseeing the
relationship with the external auditors. During the year, the
Committee:

• approved their remuneration for both audit and non-audit
services, including satisfying itself that the level of audit fee was
appropriate to enable an adequate audit to be conducted;

• approved the external audit plan and ensured that it was
consistent with the scope of the audit engagement;

• approved the terms of engagement, including the engagement
letter issued at the start of each audit, and the scope of the
audit;

• assessed their independence, including in relation to non-audit
services provided;

• reviewed the findings of the audit, including discussion of any
major issues arising, and any accounting and audit judgements;

• evaluated the effectiveness of the external auditors by way of a
questionnaire distributed to senior finance staff across the
Group; and

• held meetings with the external auditors without management
present. The Committee scheduled this into its timetable as a
matter of course and the Chairman of the Committee met
privately with the external auditors at other times.

The external auditors also report regularly on the actions that they
have taken to comply with professional and regulatory requirements
and current best practice in order to maintain their independence.

PricewaterhouseCoopers have been the Group’s external auditors
since 1997.

Under the proposed EU legislation governing auditor rotation, it is
anticipated that the last year that PricewaterhouseCoopers could
audit the Group’s accounts would be 31st December 2019.

There are no contractual obligations that would restrict the
Company’s ability to select an alternative provider should that be
required.

Internal audit function
The Committee is accountable to the Board in relation to the
adequacy of the resourcing and plans of the Internal Audit function.
During 2013, the Committee reviewed: 

• the annual internal audit plan;

• summaries of the internal auditors reports on the Group;

• co-ordination between the internal and external auditors;

• management’s responsiveness to the findings and
recommendations of the internal auditors and the monitoring of
follow up actions relating thereto; and

• the adequacy of the resources of the internal audit function
including plans for increasing and enhancing that resource to
meet the increasing demands of the business.

Jonathan Dawson
Chairman, Audit & Risk Committee
14th March 2014
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I am pleased to introduce our
Directors’ Remuneration Report for
the year ending 31st December
2013.

Richard Harvey
Chairman, Remuneration Committee

Based on these principles, the key elements of
our remuneration framework continue to be:

Salary Market competitive.

Benefits & Appropriate for the nature and location of 
pension the role.

Pension contributions at a relatively low level
compared to the market to reflect our focus
on performance-related reward.

Bonus Target 100% of salary (150% for CEO).

Linked to challenging profit and individual
performance targets.

Designed to be competitive in the market,
particularly in the insurance industry, to retain
and incentivise key executives to deliver
performance for shareholders.

Deferral mechanism above 100% to achieve
alignment with long term shareholder returns.

LTIP 150% of salary (300% for the CEO).

Shares vest after three years based on the
delivery of stretching EPS growth targets 
(6-12% p.a., being 18% to 36% over 3 years).

A renewed LTIP was approved by
shareholders at the 2013 AGM (see below). 

Our Remuneration Framework for
Executive Directors

appropriate remuneration data relevant to UK public
companies of a similar size and complexity but also
recognises that there are no directly comparable UK
companies and that its principal international competitors
are often businesses which are part of much larger groups,
primarily in the US.

The Committee believes that the consistent application of
these principles has served the business well in recent
years, supporting the delivery of strong earnings and share
price performance in what have been very difficult markets.

This is our first report prepared under the new
remuneration reporting regulations which came into effect
last year. The report is split into two parts, in accordance
with these regulations: 

• The Remuneration Policy (pages 56-60) sets out our
policies on directors’ remuneration. It will be submitted
to a binding shareholder vote at the 2014 AGM. 

• The Annual Report on Remuneration (pages 61-67)
provides details on the remuneration we paid in 2013,
as well as how we intend to operate our policies in
2014. It will be submitted to an advisory shareholder
vote at the 2014 AGM. 

As context for considering the report, set out below are the
principles which underpin our remuneration framework, as
well as a summary of the key activities and decisions of the
Committee in 2013. 

Key principles 
Our remuneration policies continue to be based on the
following key principles:

• Simple, consistent and transparent

• A commitment to pay for performance. Incentive
payments should reflect continuing strong financial
performance of the Group, the contribution individual
employees make to that performance and the creation
of long term sustainable value for our shareholders

• Incentives should strike the right balance between
rewarding good performance in any one year and
encouraging the necessary focus on long term
stewardship and performance. The balance of the
overall package should not encourage inappropriate
risk taking. Share incentives are used throughout the
Group as an essential tool to align the interests of staff
with shareholders

• We must have sufficient flexibility to offer remuneration
packages which enable us to recruit, retain and
motivate the calibre of individual which we need to
operate successfully in the highly competitive global
talent markets in which our business operates. Equally,
we do not want to pay more than is necessary to
achieve this

In setting remuneration levels, the Committee is mindful of
the fact that our business operates in a highly competitive
global environment. The Committee takes into account

The framework above is codified in our Remuneration
Policy (pages 56-60), which also sets out our policies on
the recruitment or exit of directors. In both of these areas,
the Committee’s overriding objective is to determine
remuneration arrangements which are in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders, taking into account
the specific circumstances of the individual. 
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In addition, our shareholding guidelines include an objective
for Executive Directors to build a long term shareholding of at
least one times salary (two times salary for the Chief
Executive) through retaining ownership of vested shares. 

The Remuneration Policy was circulated ahead of the AGM
to major shareholders for comment. Their views were taken
into account in finalising the Policy.

We will continue to keep our policies under review to ensure
they remain appropriate in the face of evolving best practice,
regulatory developments and market data. 

Major activities and decisions in 2013
Renewing the LTIP
• The Committee renewed the Long Term Incentive Plan

(LTIP) in 2013 as the LTIP (2004) had been due to expire.
In reviewing the LTIP, the Committee considered that the
plan had played an important role in driving annual
earnings growth and total shareholder return of c.15% in
the period since 2006, and concluded that the 2013 LTIP
should be the same as the 2004 Plan, subject to minor
updating to reflect current law and best practice (e.g. the
inclusion of a malus provision).

• We undertook an extensive consultation with key
shareholders, and I would like to thank them for their
input into the final proposal. 

• The maximum award size under the LTIP was maintained
at 200% of salary, with the exception of the Chief
Executive where the maximum was increased to 300% of
salary. The Committee concluded that this was
appropriate to reflect the delivery of significant and
sustained increases in earnings and shareholder value
which has positioned our Chief Executive as one of the
most highly regarded executives in a highly competitive
global insurance broking sector. Award policy for other
Executive Directors will remain at 150% of salary. 

• The Committee is aware that some shareholders have
indicated a preference for vesting periods which are
longer than the conventional three years. However, on
balance, the Committee concluded that in a broking
business, three years remains appropriate to be market
competitive and consistent with our business cycle.

• Earnings per share (EPS) was retained by the Committee
as the right performance measure for the LTIP. To reflect
our significant international exposure, the link to UK RPI
was removed and the target range was calibrated as 6-
12% per annum (18% - 36% over 3 years). The
Committee believes that this is an appropriately
stretching performance range in the current environment.

Changes to policies
• The Committee increased the shareholding guideline for

the Chief Executive from 100% to 200% of salary. 

• In line with the commitment made previously, a malus
provision was also introduced for deferred bonus and
LTIP awards made from 2013 onwards. Under this
provision, the Committee may reduce or cancel an award
in circumstances of material and significant misstatement
or gross misconduct.

2013 events and outturns 

• Building on the momentum of previous years, JLT has
delivered another strong set of results. As discussed on
page 12, Underlying Group PBT grew by 13% during

2013 to £177.4 million, representing strong performance
ahead of the stretching target that had been set. The
Committee determined that the Executive Directors
would receive Target bonus for 2013 in respect of the
financial measures (PBT) which represented 75% of their
award.

• Based on the delivery of strong basic EPS growth
(excluding exceptional items and impairment charges,
and adjusted to neutralise the impact of IAS 19) over the
three year performance period to 31st December 2013
(see chart), the Committee determined that the target for
the 2011 LTIP award had been met and the award will
vest in full. Around 40% of the value delivered from
vesting is from share price appreciation and dividends.

• The Committee determined the termination arrangements
for Vyvienne Wade. As disclosed in this report, the
incentive elements of these arrangements reflected
performance and were pro-rated for time.

• Following the first review since 2011, the Chairman’s fee
increased from £250,000 to £270,000 on 1st April 2013
to reflect market data and time commitment. 

2014 decisions
• Recognising the increase in size and complexity of the

business, personal performance and, where appropriate,
changes in responsibility, the Committee awarded salary
increases for 2014 of 5% to D J Burke, M F G
Drummond Brady and M T Reynolds.

• The structure and quantum of our incentive opportunities
will remain unchanged and will continue to be based on
the same kind of stretching performance targets which
have driven the growth of the business over recent years. 

The Committee appreciates dialogue with, and feedback
from, shareholders and hopes to receive your support for
both resolutions at the AGM on 29th April 2014.

I would like to thank my colleagues on the Committee for
their continued support during the year. 

Richard Harvey
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
14th March 2014

38.7

08* 13

54.7Basic earnings per share

54.7p
* Adjusted for IAS 19
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This report has been prepared by the Remuneration Committee in line with the UK Corporate Governance Code, Listing Rules and
Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013. 

Remuneration Policy
This Remuneration Policy, determined by the Company’s Remuneration Committee (“the Committee”), will be effective following shareholder
approval at the 2014 Annual General Meeting. 

Policy Table for Executive Directors

Component Purpose / link to strategy Operation

Base Salary

To provide fixed remuneration
which is competitive in the
markets in which the
Company operates. 

Contractual fixed cash amount paid monthly.

Normally reviewed annually and any changes made effective from 1st April. 

Salaries are set by the Committee, taking into account all relevant factors which include: the
scale and complexity of the Group and/or business unit, the scope and responsibilities of the
role, the skills and experience of the individual, performance in role, the level of increase within
the business, and the Committee’s assessment of the competitive environment including
consideration of appropriate market data. 

Salaries to be effective at 1st April 2014 are shown on page 62 of the Annual Remuneration
Report. 

Benefits Incorporates various cash/non-cash benefits which are competitive in the relevant market,
and which may include: a company car (or equivalent cash allowance), subscriptions, life
assurance, private medical, permanent health cover and, where necessary, other benefits to
reflect specific individual circumstances, such as housing, relocation, travel, or other
expatriate allowances. Executive Directors may also participate in the Save As You Earn
(SAYE) and Share Incentive Plan (SIP) on the same basis as other employees. 

Pensions Provided via contributions to the Defined Contribution (DC) section of the JLT UK Pension
Scheme or as a cash salary supplement. Contributions are made by reference to pensionable
earnings for the Scheme (currently £140,000 but reviewed annually). 

Members of the Defined Benefit (DB) section of the scheme will continue to receive benefits in
accordance with the terms of this plan, although it is closed to further accrual or to new
members. Since the closure of the DB scheme in 2006, affected employees, including some
Executive Directors, receive a fixed salary supplement, which was determined at the time the
scheme was closed based on each individual’s circumstances.

Annual
bonus

A variable pay opportunity,
competitive in the markets in
which the Company operates,
which motivates and rewards
annual performance. Deferral
aligns reward with long term
value of JLT shares.

Provides an opportunity for additional reward (up to a maximum specified as a percentage of
salary) based on annual performance against targets set and assessed by the Committee. 

Paid in cash, except that any bonus in excess of a limit, normally 100% of salary, is deferred
into Company shares in accordance with the terms of the Deferred Bonus Share Plan (DBSP). 

Under the DBSP, participants are granted a conditional award of shares which normally vest
over three years, subject to continued employment. Malus and dividend equivalent provisions
apply (see explanatory notes on page 58).

Bonus payments are not pensionable. 

Long term
incentive
Plan (LTIP)

A variable pay opportunity,
competitive in the markets in
which the Company operates,
which motivates and rewards
long-term performance, and 
is aligned with the value of 
JLT shares. 

Awards are made under the terms of the JLT Long Term Incentive Plan 2013, approved by
shareholders at the 2013 Annual General Meeting. 

Awards are normally in the form of a right to acquire shares in the Company for a zero or
nominal amount. Subject to the satisfaction of a performance condition. 

Malus and dividend equivalent provisions apply (see explanatory notes). 

Note
The Committee reserves the right to make any remuneration payments and payments for loss of office (including exercising any discretions available
to it in connection with such payments) notwithstanding that they are not in line with the policy set out above where the terms of the payment were
agreed (i) before the policy came into effect or (ii) at a time when the relevant individual was not a director of the Company and, in the opinion of the
Committee, the payment was not in consideration for the individual becoming a director of the Company. For these purposes “payments” includes
the Committee satisfying awards of variable remuneration and, in relation to an award over shares, the terms of the payment are “agreed” at the time
the award is granted.

Amendments to policy
The Committee may make minor amendments to the policy set out above (for regulatory, exchange control, tax or administrative purposes or to take
account of a change in legislation) without obtaining shareholder approval.
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Maximum Performance framework

There is no prescribed maximum
salary. Any increases will be at the
discretion of the Committee, taking
into account factors such as:
changes in the size and complexity of
the business, scope of the role,
competitive positioning against the
market and the level of salary
increase within the business.

N/A

Benefit provision, for which there is no
prescribed monetary maximum, is set
at an appropriate level for the specific
nature and location of the role.
Participation in all employee share
plans subject to statutory limits. 

The maximum DC/cash supplement
is 15% of pensionable earnings. 

The maximum additional fixed salary
supplement for current Executive
Directors impacted by the closure of
the DB scheme are: £79,000 for D J
Burke; £24,000 for M F G Drummond
Brady.

200% of salary Payment is determined by reference to performance
assessed over one financial year using a combination
of financial and personal performance measures,
weighted towards the financial measures. 

“Target” bonus, is set at 150% of salary for the Chief
Executive and 100% of salary for the other Executive
Directors. 

Maximum awards under the plan
rules are: 

300% of salary for the Chief Executive 

200% of salary for other Executive
Directors

Vesting is determined by reference to performance
assessed over a period of at least three years, against
key measures of financial performance, which for 2014
will be earnings per share (EPS). 

The threshold level of vesting is 20% of the maximum
award. 
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Policy Table for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

Component Approach of the Company

Chairman fees Determined by the Remuneration Committee. 
A single fee which reflects all Board and Committee duties. 
Set at a level which reflects skills, experience, time commitment and appropriate market data. 

Non-
Executive fees

Determined by the Board excluding the Non-Executive Directors. 
The fee encompasses a basic fee and may also include supplementary fees for committee or other
duties. Set at a level which reflects skills, experience, time commitment and appropriate market data. 

Benefits The current Chairman receives a club subscription, private medical insurance and health screen.
Lord Leach is provided with a company car. 

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors do not participate in any bonus or share incentive scheme, nor do they
participate in any pension arrangements. 

Explanatory notes to Policy Tables
Malus provisions
DBSP and LTIP awards granted since 1st January 2013
are subject to a malus clause such that unvested awards
may be reduced, cancelled or made subject to additional
conditions at the Committee’s discretion, in the event of
material misstatement of results or gross misconduct. 

Dividends
Upon vesting of DBSP and LTIP awards, participants will
receive income (in the form of shares or cash) equal in
value to the dividends payable on the relevant number of
vested shares during the performance period (plus
interest).

Performance measures and target setting
The annual bonus is assessed against both financial and
personal targets determined by the Committee. This
enables the Committee to reward both annual financial
performance delivered for shareholders and performance
against specific financial, operational or strategic
objectives set for each director. 

The LTIP is based on long-term financial performance,
using performance measures which the Committee feel
are most appropriate for the Company (EPS for 2014

awards). The performance targets for LTIP awards are
determined by the Committee at the time of grant. 

Differences in the Company’s policy on the
remuneration of employees across the Group 
JLT operates in a number of different sectors and
countries and therefore employee remuneration practices
vary widely across the employee population within the
Group. However, employee remuneration policies are
normally based on the same broad principles:

• Sufficient to attract and retain the calibre of talent
necessary to deliver the strategy for shareholders

• Where appropriate, a proportion should be aligned to
results and performance, based on relevant specific
and measurable criteria. A significant number of Group
employees are eligible to participate in bonus or
incentive arrangements. 

• In addition to the DBSP and LTIP, the Group operates
a number of other share incentive schemes to
encourage employee share ownership. These include
the Senior Executive Share Scheme (SESS) and
Sharesave/Share Incentive Plan all employee schemes
(within which all employees, including Executive
Directors, in the UK and certain overseas jurisdictions
are eligible to participate). 



Group Commercial Director
James Twining

Minimum Target Maximum

£365

£827

£1,685

100% 37% 22%

45% 39%
18%

39%

£,000
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Illustration of remuneration policy
The charts opposite illustrate the
potential value of the remuneration
packages under the following
performance scenarios (no share
price growth is assumed): 

• Minimum – reflects fixed pay only
(base salary as at 1st April 2014
and benefits / pension included
using the disclosed values for the
year ending 31 December 2013)

• Target – reflects fixed pay, target
bonus (CEO: 150% of salary,
other Executive Directors 100%
of salary) and LTIP awards (CEO:
300% of salary, other Executive
Directors 200% of salary) vesting
at 20% of maximum

• Maximum – reflects, maximum
bonus (200% of salary) and LTIP
awards vesting in full. 

Approach to recruitment remuneration
When determining the remuneration package for a newly
appointed Executive Director, the Committee would seek
to apply the following principles: 

• The package should be market competitive to
facilitate the recruitment of individuals of sufficient
calibre to lead the business. At the same time, the
Committee would intend to pay no more than it
believes is necessary to secure the required talent. 

• The structure of the on-going remuneration package
would normally include the components set out in the
Policy Table for Executive Directors. Salaries would
typically be set at an appropriately competitive level to
reflect skills and experience. They may be set at a
level to allow future salary progression to reflect
performance in role.

• The maximum level of variable remuneration which
may be awarded (excluding any compensatory
awards referred to below) is five times salary. 

• The Committee considers that having flexibility to
respond to specific commercial realities of a
recruitment scenario is in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. Therefore, the
Committee has discretion, in exceptional or
unexpected circumstances, to include other fixed
remuneration components (e.g. to reflect local market
practice in pension provision) or performance-related
awards which it believes are appropriate taking into
account the specific circumstances of the individual,
and always subject to the five times salary limit on

variable remuneration set out above. The rationale for
any such component would be disclosed.

• Where an individual forfeits remuneration with a
previous employer as a result of appointment to the
Company, the Committee may offer compensatory
payments or awards to facilitate recruitment. Such
payments or awards could include cash as well as
performance and non-performance related share
awards, and would be in such form as the Committee
considers appropriate considering all relevant factors
such as the form, expected value, anticipated vesting
and timing of forfeited remuneration. There is no limit
on the value of such compensatory awards, but the
Committee’s intention is that broadly the value
awarded would be no higher than the value forfeited.
While cash may be included to reflect the forfeiture of
cash-based remuneration, the Committee does not
envisage that substantial “golden hello” type cash
payments would generally be offered.

• Any share awards referred to in this section will be
granted as far as possible under the Company’s
existing approved share plans. If necessary, awards
may be granted outside of these plans as currently
permitted under the Listing Rules, but within the limits
set out in this section. 

The remuneration package for a newly appointed Non-
Executive Director would normally be in line with the
structure set out in the Policy Table for Non-Executive
Directors.

Finance Director
Mike Reynolds

Minimum Target Maximum

£458

£1,046

£2,138

100% 44% 22%

40% 39%
16%

39%

£,000

Chief Executive
Dominic Burke

Minimum Target Maximum

£863

£2,340

£4,380

100% 37% 20%

45% 32%

18%

48%

£,000

International Chairman of Risk & Insurance
Mark Drummond-Brady

Minimum Target Maximum

£424

£938

£1,894

100% 45% 22%

39% 39%
16%

39%

£,000

LTIP

Annual bonus

Fixed pay (salary, benefits, pension)



Corporate Governance

REMUNERATION REPORT

60

Service contracts 
It is the Company’s standard policy that Executive Directors should
have service contracts with an indefinite term which can be
terminated by the Company or the director by giving notice not
exceeding 12 months. This applies to all current Executive Directors
and would normally be applied to future appointments. The
Committee retains discretion to offer service agreements with notice
periods which exceed 12 months (up to a maximum of 24 months).
If such a contract was offered, the notice period would normally be
reduced during the first year of employment to the standard 12
month notice period.

Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a three year term, which
is renewable, with three months’ notice on either side. The contract
for the Chairman is subject to a six month notice provision on either
side. For both Non-Executive Directors and the Chairman, no
contractual termination payments would be due and both are
subject to retirement pursuant to the Articles of Association at the
Annual General Meeting. 

Under all the current Executive Director service contracts, the
Company may terminate employment by making a payment in lieu of
notice which would not exceed 12 months’ salary, benefits and
pension contributions. This policy would be applied to future
appointments.

Policy on payment for loss of office
Where an Executive Director leaves employment, the Committee’s
approach to determining any payment for loss of office will normally
be based on the following principles: 

• The Committee’s objective is to find an outcome which is in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders, taking into
account the specific circumstances and performance of the
individual. 

• Relevant contractual obligations (referred to in the section above)
are observed or taken into account should an Executive Director
leave employment by mutual consent. While not a contractual
obligation, the Committee may make termination payments on a
phased basis and subject to reduction in the event that
alternative employment is found.

• The Committee has discretion to make a payment under the
annual bonus in respect of the year of leaving employment,
subject to performance. 

• The treatment of outstanding share awards would be
determined by the relevant plan rules. The table shown
summarises the treatment of awards if a participant ceases to
be an employee of the Group for any of the reasons shown.
To the extent that an award does not vest in accordance with
these terms, the award will lapse.

• Members of the defined benefit section of the JLT UK Pension
Scheme will receive benefits in accordance with the terms of
that scheme.

• The Committee reserves the right to make additional exit
payments where such payments are made in good faith in
discharge of an existing legal obligation (or by way of damages
for breach of such an obligation) or by way of settlement or
compromise of any claim arising in connection with the
termination of a director’s office or employment. In doing so, the
Committee will recognise and balance the interests of
shareholders and the departing Executive Director, as well as the
interests of the remaining Directors. 

Change of control of the Company
Where there is a takeover of the Company, awards will only vest to
the extent that any applicable performance conditions have been
satisfied. The Committee has discretion to determine that the extent
to which LTIP awards vest in these circumstances shall be reduced
to reflect the proportion of the performance period that has elapsed.

Consideration of conditions elsewhere in the Company
When setting the policy for the remuneration of the Executive
Directors, the Committee will have regard to the pay and
employment conditions of employees within the Company. 

The Committee does not consult directly with employees when
formulating the Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors. The
Committee considers salary increases within the business but does
not formally consider any other comparison metrics.

Consideration of shareholder views
Views expressed by the Company’s shareholders were taken into
account by the Committee in the development of the Company’s
remuneration framework. 

The Company’s largest shareholder (Jardine Matheson) is
represented on the Remuneration Committee. The Committee
undertook an extensive consultation between the Remuneration
Committee Chairman and key independent shareholders (and
shareholder representative bodies) in 2013 in respect of the renewal
of the LTIP prior to shareholder approval of the plan at the 2013
AGM. The Committee also regularly reviews the policies in the
context of published shareholder guidelines. 

Reasons for leaving Treatment

• ill-health, injury or disability;

• death;

• retirement with the
agreement of the Company;

• the participant’s employing
company ceasing to be
under the control of the
Company;

• a sale of the business or
entity for which the
participant works out of the
Group;

• redundancy; and

• any other reason, if the
Committee so decide in any
particular case.

Awards will normally vest on the
original vesting date subject to
the original performance
conditions. Alternatively, the
Committee has discretion to vest
the awards on an earlier date,
subject to performance. 

The Committee also has
discretion to reduce the award
to reflect the proportion of the
performance period that has
elapsed. 
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Annual Report on Remuneration
The table below summarises the remuneration for the directors in respect 2013. Further discussion of each of the components, including the
intended operation of the policy for 2014, is set out on the pages which follow. Some of the disclosures in these sections, where indicated,
have been audited by PwC. 

Single Total Figure of Remuneration Table (audited)
The remuneration in respect of the year ending 31st December 2013 of the Executive Directors who served during the year is shown in the
table below (with the prior year comparative). 

£’000
Salary Benefits Pension Annual bonus LTIP Other Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

D J Burke 665 650 67 67 92 92 1,005 975 2,055 2,037 - - 3,884 3,821

M F G Drummond Brady 345 330 19 14 37 37 341 318 783 492 - - 1,525 1,191

M T Reynolds 400 49 25 3 13 - 393 - - - - 700 831 752

J D R Twining 328 133 23 7 12 4 318 131 - - - - 681 275

V Y A C Wade 133 385 7 24 14 38 128 378 483 980 - - 765 1,805

Benefits include: a company car (or equivalent cash allowance),
subscriptions, life assurance, private medical, health screen and
permanent health cover.

Pension includes all forms of cash contribution paid in respect of
pension entitlements, including contributions to the Defined
Contribution section of the JLT UK Pension Scheme (or a cash
salary supplement) and, where relevant, the fixed cash salary
supplement paid to those directors impacted by the closure of the
DB Scheme in 2006. Further details are set out in the Pensions
section on page 65. 

Annual bonus includes the full value of the annual bonus awarded in
respect of the relevant financial year. For D J Burke, one third of the
amount shown in the Annual bonus column (2012: one third) is
deferred into shares which will vest after three years subject to
continued employment and the terms of the Deferred Bonus Share
Plan. 

LTIP includes (unless stated otherwise) the value of the 2011 LTIP
award which will vest on 23 March 2014. The value is calculated
using the average share price over the final quarter of 2013 of 999p
and includes the value of the dividends on the shares which will
vest.

J D R Twining was appointed to the Board on 1st August 2012. 

M T Reynolds was appointed to the Board on 26th November 2012.
His recruitment package included a cash bonus award of £250,000
(repayable to the Company on a pro-rata basis in the case of
resignation or other circumstances occurring in the first year of
employment) and an additional joining award payment of £450,000
to be used, after deductions for tax and National Insurance, for the
purchase of shares in the Company by Mr Reynolds to be held in
accordance with the Company’s share ownership guidelines. Neither
of these payments were subject to additional performance and are
included in the Other column for 2012. 

V Y A C Wade stepped down from the Board and left the Group on
7th May 2013. The figures in the Salary, Benefits, Pension and
Annual bonus columns for 2013 represent amounts in respect of the
period of employment. The LTIP column includes the value of the
2011 and 2012 LTIP awards which vested on termination, reduced
pro-rata for time and subject to performance assessment in
accordance with the rules of the LTIP (2011 LTIP: 36,811 shares,
2012 LTIP: 15,803 shares), calculated using the share price on the
date of vesting and including the value of dividends on the vested
shares. Full details of the termination arrangements are set out in the
section on page 65. 

The remuneration in respect of the year ending 31st December
2013 of the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors who served
during the year is shown in the table below (with the prior year
comparative). 

£’000
Fees Benefits Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

G M T Howe 265 250 2 2 267 252

A E Court 55 23 - - 55 23

J D S Dawson 71 23 - - 71 23

R J Harvey 70 65 - - 70 65

S L Keswick 18 55 - - 18 55

Lord Leach 55 55 6 6 61 61

Lord Sassoon 37 - - - 37 -

N R MacAndrew 63 80 - - 63 80

Benefits include: GMT Howe: a club subscription and medical insurance; Lord
Leach: a company car. 

Simon Keswick stepped down from the Board and Lord Sassoon joined the
Board on 30th April 2013. 



In setting salaries, the Committee takes into account the
scale and complexity of the Group, the scope and
responsibilities of the role, the skills and experience of the
individual, performance in role, the level of increase within
the business, and the Committee’s assessment of the
competitive environment including consideration of
appropriate market data. The Committee takes into
account appropriate remuneration data relevant to UK
public companies of a similar size and complexity but also
recognises that there are no directly comparable UK
companies and that the Company’s principal international
competitors are often businesses which are part of much
larger groups, primarily in the US.

To recognise the increase in size and complexity of the
business, personal performance and, where appropriate,
changes in responsibility, the Committee awarded salary
increases for 2014 of 5% to D J Burke, M F G Drummond
Brady and M T Reynolds.

The base salaries of the Executive Directors effective 1st
April 2014 are set out in the table below together with the
prior year comparative.

Annual bonus
In 2013, the Executive Directors had a target bonus
opportunity of 100% of salary (150% of salary for the
Chief Executive). In exceptional circumstances, the
Committee could award a maximum of 200% of salary.

In 2013, the bonus was based on a combination of both
financial and personal performance measures, requiring
the achievement of stretching performance targets, as
follows:

• 75% on Group Underlying Profit Before Tax (PBT)
performance. As described in more detail on page 12,
2013 saw growth of 13% in Group Underlying PBT to
£177.4 million. This was ahead of the stretching target
set at the beginning of the year (£174.9 million) and
builds on the momentum of previous years.

• 25% on the achievement of personal objectives.
The personal objectives for 2013 related to the
achievement of the Company strategy and concern
driving growth, international reach and relevance, and
improving operational efficiency and effectiveness.
Performance in these areas was strong during the
year.

Based on performance against the targets, the
Committee determined that the Executive Directors would
receive the bonus for the year as shown in the Single
Total Figure of Remuneration Table.

The Committee is responsible for the setting, monitoring
and final assessment of annual bonus performance
targets, under a robust process involving careful scrutiny
at each stage. The Committee firmly believes that the
targets are stretching and have helped to drive the strong
PBT growth performance delivered for shareholders in
recent years.

Any bonus awarded in excess of 100% of salary must be
deferred into Company shares for three years in
accordance with the terms of the Remuneration Policy.
Since the amount payable to the Chief Executive exceeds
100% of base salary, the excess (50% of salary) will be
delivered in the form of deferred shares under the terms
of the DBSP. Full details on the number of shares
awarded will be disclosed when made and in next year’s
report. However, the full value of the bonus for the year
(including the deferred amount) is shown in the annual
bonus column of the Single Total Figure of Remuneration
Table.

For 2014, the annual bonus will operate on the same
basis as for 2013, based on an appropriate consideration
of stretching Group PBT targets and personal objectives
related to the enablement and achievement of the
Company strategy of driving growth, international reach
and relevance, and improving operational efficiency and
effectiveness. 

The Committee and Board of JLT believe the specific
performance targets and weightings are commercially
sensitive and therefore it is inappropriate to publish further
detail here. It is the current intention that they will be
disclosed next year provided the Committee is
comfortable that they are no longer sensitive.

LTIP – 2011 award, vesting in respect of 2013
The 2011 LTIP was based on basic EPS growth
(excluding exceptional items and impairment charges) in
the three financial years to 31st December 2013 in
accordance with the following targets determined by the
Committee at the time of grant. 
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2013 2014 Change

Dominic Burke £670,000 £703,500 5%

Mark Drummond Brady £350,000 £367,500 5%

Mike Reynolds £400,000 £420,000 5%

James Twining £330,000 £330,000 0%

EPS growth over a three year period Vesting
(% of maximum)

Below RPI+5% per annum (RPI + 15% over 3 years) 0%

RPI+5% per annum (RPI + 15% over 3 years) 16.67%

RPI+10% per annum or above (RPI + 30% over 3 years) 100%

Vesting on a pro-rata basis between these points

Based upon achieved EPS growth in the period (as
adjusted by the Committee to neutralise the impact of IAS
19 (Revised)) the Committee determined that the 2011
LTIP awards will vest in full on 23rd March 2014. 

Key components of remuneration
The following sections describe how the Committee implemented key elements of the policy in the year
ending 31st December 2013 and how it is intended to operate in the year ending 31st December 2014. 

Salary
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The value of these vested 2011 awards to Dominic Burke
and Mark Drummond Brady is shown in the Single Total
Figure of Remuneration Table. The chart below illustrates
the proportion of the vested value which reflects the
performance element (i.e. the shares vesting at the share
price when awarded) and the proportion of the vested
value as a result of share price appreciation and
dividends since grant. 

£2,500,000£2,000,000£1,500,000£1,000,000£500,000£0

M F G
Drummond

Brady

D J Burke

Performance element Shareholder return element*

LTIP – 2013 award, will vest in 2016
Following shareholder approval of the LTIP at the 2013
AGM, the Executive Directors received awards of 150%
of salary (300% of salary for the Chief Executive). These
awards are shown in the Share Interests Awarded Table
below and will vest after three years subject to a
performance target based on growth in EPS, as follows:

EPS growth over a three year
period

Vesting
(% of maximum)

Below 6% per annum (18% over 3
years) 0%

6% per annum (18% over 3 years) 20%

12% per annum or above (36%
over 3 years) 100%

Vesting on a pro-rata basis between these points

The calculation of EPS is basic EPS, excluding
exceptional items and impairment charges, and
measured on actual achieved exchange rates, and will
be verified by the Company’s auditors. 

Executive Director Type of interest Basis of award Face value
Threshold

vesting
End of performance

period

D J Burke LTIP 300%  of salary £2,010k 20% 31st December 2015

M F G Drummond Brady LTIP 150% of salary £525k 20% 31st December 2015

M T Reynolds LTIP 150% of salary £600k 20% 31st December 2015

J D R Twining LTIP 150% of salary £495k 20% 31st December 2015

Share Interests Awarded Table (audited)
The following table sets out details of LTIP awards made during the year ending 31st December 2013 for Executive
Directors who served during the year.

Awards under the LTIP are made in the form of nil-cost options.

The face value has been calculated using the average share price used to determine the number of shares awarded, being 850p (the average
over the three days to 2nd May 2013). 

D J Burke also received an award of 38,800 shares under the Deferred Bonus Share Plan in respect of the deferred portion of his 2012 annual
bonus (the value of which is included in the annual bonus 2012 column of the Single Total Figure of Remuneration Table and shown in the share
interests tables below.

No share interests were awarded to V Y A C Wade during the year ending 31st December 2013. 

LTIP – policy for 2014
Awards under the LTIP will be made on the same basis as those in 2013, as described above. Full details on the
number of shares awarded will be disclosed when made and in next year’s report.

Shareholding guidelines and share interests
The JLT Share Ownership Guidelines have an objective for Executive Directors to build up long term share interests
equivalent to 100% of base salary (200% of base salary for the Chief Executive). In summary, the guidelines are for
Executive Directors to retain 50% of shares acquired on the vesting of share awards after the payment of income tax
and national insurance, until such time as the guideline has been met. The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are
not subject to the share ownership guidelines.

* includes value from share price appreciation and dividends
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Shareholding Current share interests (unvested)

Number of
shares

Shareholding
as a % of salary Guideline met? LTIP DBSP

Executive Directors

D J Burke 305,213 455% Yes 614,600 125,300

M F G Drummond Brady 50,254 143% Yes 205,800 -

M T Reynolds 26,092 65% No 70,600 -

J D R Twining 540 2% No 148,300 -

V Y A C Wade 48,061 N/A N/A - -

Non-Executive Directors

A E Court 0

J D S Dawson 5,000

R J Harvey 11,569

G M T Howe 25,709

S L Keswick 1,927

Lord Leach 19,282

N R MacAndrew 4,284

Lord Sassoon 0

--
Plan

Grant
date

Number of
shares (1st
Jan 2013)

Award/
(exercised)
during 2013

Lapsed
Shares

Number of
shares (31st
Dec 2013)

Share price
on grant
(pence)

Date from
which

exercisable

D J Burke 2010 SAYE 01.07.10 1,671 (1,671) - 445.20 01.07.13

2010 DBSP 23.03.10 48,600 (48,600) - 539.83 23.03.13

2011 DBSP 23.03.11 44,200 - 44,200 678.00 23.03.14

2012 DBSP 29.03.12 42,300 - 42,300 697.50 29.03.15

2013 DBSP 28.03.13 - 38,800 38,800 838.00 28.03.16

2010 LTIP 23.03.10 222,300 (222,300) - 539.83 23.03.13

2011 LTIP 23 03 11 191,700 - 191,700 678.00 23 03 14

2012 LTIP 29 03 12 186,400 - 186,400 697.50 29 03 15

2013 LTIP 08 05 13 - 236,500 236,500 850.00 08 05 16

M F G Drummond Brady 2010 SAYE 01.07.10 1,671 (1,671) - 445.20 01.07.13

2009 LTIP 05.08.09 64,400 (64,400) - 434.83 05.08.12

2010 LTIP 23.03.10 53,700 (53,700) - 539.83 23.03.13

2011 LTIP 23.03.11 73,000 - 73,000 678.00 23.03.14

2012 LTIP 29 03 12 71,000 - 71,000 697.50 29 03 15

2013 LTIP 08 05 13 - 61,800 61,800 850.00 08 05 16

M T Reynolds 2013 LTIP 08 05 13 - 70,600 70,600 850.00 08 05 16

J D R Twining 2011 LTIP 23 03 11 44,200 - 44,200 678.00 23 03 14

2012 LTIP 29 03 12 45,900 - 45,900 697.50 29 03 15

2013 LTIP 08 05 13 - 58,200 58,200 850.00 08 05 16
V Y A C Wade 2010 LTIP 23.03.10 107,000 (107,000) - - 539.83 23.03.13

2011 LTIP 23.03.11 85,200 (36,811) (48,389) - 678.00 07.05.13/
7.11.13

2012 LTIP 29.03.12 82,800 (15,803) (66,997) - 697.50 07.05.13/
7.11.13

With the exception of the directors’ interests disclosed in the table above, no director had any additional interest in the share capital of the
Company during the year. Between 1st January 2014 and 13th March 2014 (being the latest practicable date prior to the posting of this report)
the trustees of the Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc All Employee Share Plan have acquired 38 shares each on behalf of D J Burke and J D R
Twining. No further changes of directors’ interest have been notified since the end of the year.

The table below provides details of the interests of the Executive Directors in long-term incentives during the year. As discussed above, 100% of
the 2011 LTIP will vest on 23rd March 2014 based on performance. 

Statement of shareholding and share interests (audited)
The following table sets out for Directors who served during the year, the shareholding (including connected persons) in
the Company as at 31st December 2013 (or at the date of resignation) and current interests in long-term incentives.

V Y A C Wade stepped down from the Board and left the Group on 7th May 2013.
Simon Keswick stepped down from the Board and Lord Sassoon was appointed to
the Board on 30th April 2013.

Shareholding as a percentage of salary is calculated using the shareholding and base
salary as at 31st December 2013 and the average share price for the final quarter of
2013.
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SAYE: Options held under the Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group Sharesave Option Plan 2008. This is an all employee HMRC approved scheme to which
performance conditions are not attached.
DBSP: Awards under the Deferred Bonus Share Plan made in the form of conditional shares and are not subject to any further performance
conditions. 
LTIP: Awards under the Long Term Incentive Plan made in the form of nil-cost options subject to EPS growth performance conditions. For the 2011
and 2012 LTIP awards, the performance condition requires EPS growth over a three year period of RPI plus 5% pa (RPI +15% over 3 years) for
16.67% vesting to RPI plus 10% pa (RPI +30% over 3 years) for full vesting. 2013 LTIP awards are based on the performance condition set out on
page 63. 

Pension
Pension benefits are provided to Executive Directors via the Defined Contribution (DC) section of the JLT UK Pension
Scheme or as a cash salary supplement. Member contributions are matched by a Company contribution equivalent to
2.5 times the amount paid by the member subject to a maximum of 5% to 15% of pensionable earnings for the
Scheme (in 2013, £130,000 increasing to £140,000 from 1st January 2014 and reviewed annually). Contributions in
respect of 2013 are included in the Single Total Figure of Remuneration Table on page 61. 

Some Executive Directors are deferred members of the Defined Benefit (DB) section of the Scheme, which has been
closed to further accrual or to new members since 2006, with members’ benefits based on their final pensionable
salary at that time. Details of these defined benefit entitlements are set out in the Total Pension Entitlements table
below.

To reflect the closure of the DB scheme in 2006, affected employees, including some Executive Directors, also receive
a fixed cash supplement, which was calculated as a percentage of salary determined at the time the scheme was
closed based on each individual’s circumstances. These cash supplements are included in the Single Total Figure of
Remuneration table on page 61.

Total Pension Entitlements (audited)
The following table provides details, where applicable, of entitlements under the Company’s defined benefit pension
arrangements in respect of Executive Directors who served during the year ending 31st December 2013.

£’000

Normal
retirement

age

Accrued
benefit at
31 Dec
2013 

Transfer value of
accrued benefits
at 31 Dec 2013

Increase in
accrued benefits

(excluding
inflation)

Increase in
accrued benefits
(due to inflation)

Transfer value of
increase in

accrued benefits
(excluding
inflation)

M F G Drummond Brady 60 102.8 3,508.5 Nil 2.2 Nil

V Y A C Wade 60 124.6 2,908.3 Nil 2.6 Nil

D J Burke, M T Reynolds and J D R Twining do not have any entitlement under a Company defined benefit pension arrangement. 

V Y A C Wade stepped down from the Board and left the Group on 7th May 2013. No further pension benefit accrued following the date of
termination. 

The accrued benefit is the amount that the director would receive from retirement age if they left service on that date. The increase in the
accrued benefit is the difference between the accrued benefit at the year end and that at the previous year end.

Transfer values have been calculated on the basis of actuarial advice and approved by the Scheme Trustees. The transfer value of the accrued
entitlement represents the ‘cash equivalent’ of the directors’ pension benefits which would be offered by the Trustees of Jardine Lloyd Thompson
Pension Scheme to another pension scheme as consideration for the other scheme taking on the liability for providing the directors’ pension
benefits at retirement. The transfer value itself does not represent an actual sum payable to the individual director as part of pay and, therefore,
cannot be added meaningfully to annual remuneration. There are no discretionary benefits taken into account when calculating transfer values.

The directors have no guaranteed right to early retirement. No additional benefit will become receivable by a director in the event that they retire
before their normal retirement date.

Payments for loss of office – Vyvienne Wade
On 7th May 2013, Vyvienne Wade stepped down from her role as an Executive Director and left the Group. 

The Committee agreed the following termination arrangements: 

• Salary, benefits, and pension payments (and accrual of benefit) were paid up to the date of termination and are
included in the Single Total Figure of Remuneration table. Private medical insurance and life assurance benefits were
maintained for a period of four months following termination.

• Based on performance to the date of termination, the Committee determined that a pro-rata bonus payment of
£128,000, representing target bonus, would be paid in cash. To reflect service and performance delivered over the
long term, the Committee exercised discretion to apply “good leaver” treatment to the outstanding 2011 and 2012
LTIP awards, which were both reduced pro-rata for time served and remained subject to an assessment of
performance against the EPS targets. 50% was paid on leaving and 50% six months later. The values for both are
included in the Single Total Figure of Remuneration Table on page 61.

• A termination payment amounting to £270,000 was also made. This amount was below the contractual entitlement
to salary and benefits over a one year notice period. 
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Chairman and Non-Executive Director fees
The fees of the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors
were reviewed during the year, with the previous review
having taken place in 2011. Following this review, the
fees of the Chairman were increased by 8% effective 1st
April 2013. The fees for the Non-Executive directors
were not increased. The current fee levels are set out in
the table below. Fees are not generally reviewed on an
annual basis.

Supporting disclosures and additional context
Percentage change in remuneration of Chief Executive
The table below shows the percentage change in salary,
benefits and annual bonus of the Chief Executive (as
shown in the Single Total Figure of Remuneration Table)
and all of JLT UK employees between the year ending
31st December 2012 and the year ending 31st December
2013. 

2014

Non-Executive Chairman £270,000

Basic fee for Non-Executive Director £55,000

Supplementary fees for: 
Chairman of Audit & Risk Committee

Chairman of Remuneration Committee

Senior Independent Director

£20,000

£15,000

£5,000

Chief
Executive

All JLT UK
employees

Salary 2.3% 3.4%

Benefits 0.0% 9.6%

Annual bonus 3.1% 2.6%

Performance graph
The chart shows the Total Shareholder
Return (TSR) of JLT in the five year
period to 31st December 2013 against
the TSR of the FTSE 100, 250 and All
Share Indices. TSR refers to share price
growth and assumes dividends are
reinvested over the relevant period. The
Committee believes the FTSE 100, 250
and All Share Indices are the most
appropriate indices against which the
TSR of JLT should be measured, as
there is no directly comparable quoted
peer group for the Company in the UK.

Over the past five years, JLT was ranked
114 out of the remaining 261 FTSE 350
companies which were still listed at 31st
December 2013 with a TSR of 178%.
This compared to a TSR of 83% for the
FTSE 100, 188% for the FTSE 250 and
95% for the All Share Indices.

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Single Total Figure of Remuneration £2,836k £3,728k £3,831k £3,821k £3,884k

Bonus (% of Maximum) 75% 75% 73% 75% 75%

LTIP vesting (% of Maximum) 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

The table below provides remuneration data for the Chief Executive for each of the five financial years over the equivalent
period. 

2013 2012 Change (%)

Total employee remuneration £581.0m £519.1m 11.9%

Distributions to shareholders £59.7m £55.8m 7.0%

Total employee remuneration represents amounts included in note 6 to the accounts in respect of wages, social security,
pension and incentive costs for all Group employees. Distributions to shareholders includes the total dividend in respect of
each financial year (see note 10 to the accounts). 

31-Dec-08 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc FTSE 100 Index

FTSE 250 Index FTSE All Share Index
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Relative importance of spend on pay
The chart below shows total employee remuneration and distributions to shareholders, in respect of the years ending
31st December 2013 and 2012 (and the difference between the two). 

Source: Datastream
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External non-executive directorships held by Executive
Directors
Mr Burke is Non-Executive Chairman of Newbury
Racecourse plc. He retained the fee of £20,000 paid by
Newbury Racecourse in respect of 2013. No other
Executive Directors hold outside posts.

Dilution
The Company continues to operate its share schemes in
line with the ABI guidelines on dilution. The Company
follows a conservative approach to hedging for share
awards made under LTIP, DBSP and other share-based
incentives, whereby shares to satisfy such awards are
normally purchased in the market and held in an
employee trust. The Company seeks to be fully hedged
against awards made as far as possible. At 31st
December 2013 the total awards outstanding in respect of
the LTIP, DBSP and SESS totalled 7,746,542 shares
representing 3.5% of the Company’s issued share capital.
This comprised 0.5% in respect of Awards which were
fully vested and 3.0% in respect of awards which have not
yet vested.

Consideration of directors’ remuneration –
Remuneration Committee and advisors
The principal purpose of the Committee is to determine
the Company’s policy on the remuneration of the
Chairman, Executive Directors and other members of the
Group Executive Committee and to approve specific
remuneration packages for each of them. The full terms of
reference of the Committee are available on the Group’s
website. 

The Remuneration Committee is comprised of Non-
Executive Directors, a majority of whom are independent.
The membership of the committee during the year
comprised: Richard Harvey (Chairman), Annette Court,
Jonathan Dawson, Lord Leach, Simon Keswick (to 30th
April 2013), Nick MacAndrew and Lord Sassoon (from
30th April 2013).

Geoffrey Howe, Dominic Burke and Robert Potter (Group
HR Strategy Director) attended by invitation of the
Committee but did not participate in any discussions

regarding or affecting their own remuneration.

In addition to several ad hoc meetings throughout the
year, the Committee met formally three times in 2013 and
the attendance of the Committee members at those
formal meetings is shown in the table on page 72. 

Deloitte LLP provided independent advice to the
Committee during the year. Deloitte LLP was originally
appointed by the Committee in 2011 following a selection
process undertaken by the Committee. Deloitte LLP is a
member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and as
such voluntarily operates under the Code of Conduct in
relation to executive remuneration consulting in the UK.
The Committee is comfortable that the Deloitte LLP
engagement partner and team that provide remuneration
advice to the Committee, do not have connections with
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc that may impair their
objectivity and independence. The fees charged by
Deloitte LLP for the provision of independent advice to the
Committee during 2013 were £54,000. Deloitte LLP also
provides services to the Group in respect of corporate tax
advice, internal audit assistance, regulatory reporting and
in relation to the winding up of dormant companies within
the Group. 

Statement of voting at Annual General Meeting
The Committee is directly accountable to shareholders
and, in this context, is committed to an open and
transparent dialogue with shareholders on the issue of
executive remuneration. During 2013, the Committee
actively engaged widely with key shareholders and
shareholder representative bodies on the overall
remuneration framework and the renewed LTIP, and the
views expressed in consultation were taken into account
by the Committee in shaping the final proposals. The
Remuneration Committee Chairman is available to answer
questions from shareholders regarding remuneration at the
AGM.

At the Annual General Meeting held on 30th April 2013,
votes cast by proxy and at the meeting in respect of
directors’ remuneration are shown in the table below.

Votes For Votes Against Total votes
cast

Votes
withheldNo. of shares % No. of shares %

Approval of remuneration report for year
ending 31st December 2012

177,960,394 94.85% 9,662,313 5.15% 187,622,707 447,407

Adopt the Long Term Incentive Plan 2013 152,041,427 81.39% 34,774,793 18.61% 186,816,220 1,253,894

For and on behalf of the Board

Richard Harvey
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
14th March 2014

Votes For include votes registered as “Discretion”
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69 Principal activities and Strategic Report

An introduction to JLT’s business and details of the
business review contents. 

69 Results and dividends

A summary of the financial statements for the year,
including details of dividends and payments to
shareholders. 

69 The Board

• Appointments and retirements

• Board performance

• Director’s interests and potential conflicts 

• Relationships with shareholders 

• Relationship with Jardine Matheson Group 

71 Committees of the Board

An overview of membership, activities and responsibilities
of the Audit & Risk, Nominations and Remuneration
Committees.

71 Corporate Governance

Reporting on the Group’s compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code. 

• Accountability and audit

• Statement of Director’s responsibilities 

73 Risk management 

73 Going concern 

73 Share capital and shareholder rights

A detailed explanation of all shareholder matters, including
voting and transferring shares. 

• Dividends and distributions

• Voting rights

• Restrictions on voting

• Deadlines for exercising voting rights

• Variation of rights

• Transfer of shares

74 Corporate Responsibility

74 Annual General Meeting

Details of the AGM and the ordinary and special business
to be covered.

The Directors’ report includes the following:

REPORT
DIRECTORS’
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31st December
2013.

Principal activities and Strategic Report
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc (JLT) is a holding company
domiciled and incorporated in the UK (with the Registered Number
1679424) and is an international group of risk specialists and
employee benefits consultants.

The Strategic Report on pages 11 to 45 covers the activities of the
Group and its performance during the year.

Results and dividends
The financial statements set out the Group’s consolidated results for
the year ended 31st December 2013. These are shown on pages
79 to 134.

The financial statements for the Company to 31st December 2013
are detailed on pages 137 to 140. These are prepared in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in the UK,
also known as UK GAAP. 

The Directors recommend that a final dividend of 17.1 pence per
share is payable on 1st May 2014 to shareholders on the register at
4th April 2014. This brings the total dividend for the year to 27.2
pence per share compared to 25.5 pence in 2012, an increase of
6.7%.

The Board
The Chairman’s Statement on pages 12 to 14 includes an overview
of the Group’s position on Corporate Governance matters.

The Board’s key responsibilities are to approve the strategy of the
Group and oversee its implementation, to review the performance of
management, to ensure there are appropriate systems of internal
controls and risk management and to ensure that the right
resources are in place throughout the Group to achieve the delivery
of long-term value to shareholders. 

Other matters reserved for decision by the Board include, material
acquisitions and disposals, approval of financial results
announcements, approval of the Annual Report and shareholder
circulars, share and other capitalisation issues and dividend
recommendations.

Certain matters are delegated to Board Committees and to
management with clearly defined terms of reference or written limits.
The terms of reference of the principal Board Committees can be
found on the Group’s website.

The Board met seven times in 2013 and Board attendance is noted
on the table on page 72.

Appointments and retirements
The Articles of Association outline how the Directors are appointed
and replaced. Directors appointed by the Board during the year must
stand for election at the next Annual General Meeting (AGM) and in
line with the UK Corporate Governance Code 2012 (The Code) all
Directors will retire at the forthcoming AGM and stand for election or
re-election.

Board performance 
The Board’s performance is reviewed annually. An external facilitator,
Dr Tracy Long of Boardroom Review Limited, assisted with the
Board and Committee review exercise for 2013 which included

interviews with the directors and attendance at meetings by Dr Long
and the report was discussed with the Board and relevant
committees. 

The overall finding from this review was that the Board operated
very effectively and in particular with regard to reviewing the Group’s
strategy.

Board composition is under review in light of the forthcoming
retirement of Nick MacAndrew and the search for a new
independent non-executive director is under way.

Talent management is also an ongoing priority for the Board in terms
of how best to manage our human resources across the Group.
The Board are also agreed that going forward a more structured
approach should be taken in relation to site visits by our
Non–Executive Directors.

Following the review, the Board remains satisfied that it continues to
operate effectively and constructively, with the appropriate balance
of expertise, experience, independence and knowledge to deliver
long-term shareholder value. 

The non-executive directors, led by the senior independent director,
also carried out a performance evaluation of the Chairman during
this period. 

The table on page 70 illustrates the breadth of experience of the
Board. 

Directors’ interests and potential conflicts
Section 175 of the Companies Act 2006 states that the Directors
must declare certain material interests. The Board has formal conflict
management procedures which have been in place for the year and,
following review, no conflicts of interest have been reported. 

Relationship with shareholders
The Board communicates regularly with shareholders through
meetings and presentations. These are held after the publication of
interim and final results, as well as at other appropriate times. The
Chairman, Senior Independent Director and members of the Board
are also available to answer questions at the AGM. 

Relationship with Jardine Matheson Group
The Group continued to have a number of arm’s length trading links
with the Jardine Matheson Group of companies during the financial
year, which are set out in note 32 on page 132. At 13th March 2014,
(being the latest practicable date prior to the date of this report)
Jardine Matheson Holdings Limited (Jardine Matheson) has an
interest in 40.16% of JLT’s issued capital. This interest is held
through JMH Investments Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Jardine Matheson.

Directors during the year
The Directors in position at the date of this report are profiled on
pages 48 and 49. At the date of this report, the Board is comprised
of four executive directors and seven non-executive directors,
including the Chairman.

Simon Keswick retired at the Annual General Meeting on 30th April
2013 and Lord Sassoon joined the Board at the conclusion of that
meeting as one of the two representatives of Jardine Matheson
Holdings Limited on the Board. Vyvienne Wade resigned as a
director of the Company on 7th May 2013.

Nick MacAndrew will be retiring at the Annual General Meeting on
29th April 2014 having served on the Board since July 2005.
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An experienced and balanced Board
Following review, the Board remains satisfied that it continues to have the appropriate balance of expertise, experience,
independence and knowledge to deliver long-term shareholder value.

An overview of the Directors’ experience is summarised below.

Board Overview

Name Position / Committee
Membership

Length of service as
board member

as at 31 Dec 2013

Independent Other Public
Board

experience

Operational
experience

Insurance
Industry

experience

International
experience

Legal / M&A
experience

Finance
experience

Government
experience

G M T Howe Non-Executive Chairman
Member of NC

12 years N/A     

A E Court Non-Executive Director
Member of ARC, RC, NC

1 year, 5 months      

J D S Dawson Non-Executive Director,
Chairman ARC
Member of RC, NC

1 year, 5 months      

R J Harvey Non-Executive Director,
Chairman RC
Member of ARC, NC

4 years       

Lord Leach Non-Executive Director,
Chairman NC
Member of RC

16 years, 11 months N/A     

N R MacAndrew Non-Executive Director
Member ARC, RC, NC

8 years, 6 months      

Lord Sassoon Non-Executive Director
Member ARC, RC, NC

8 months N/A      

D J Burke Chief Executive Officer 9 years N/A     
M F G Drummond
Brady

International Chairman - Risk &
Insurance

2 years, 10 months N/A    

M T Reynolds Finance Director 1 year, 1 month N/A     
J D R Twining Commercial Director 1 year, 5 months N/A    

Key: ARC – Audit & Risk Committee

RC – Remuneration Committee

NC – Nominations Committee

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Group Executive Committee
The GEC acts as an advisory group to the Chief Executive on the day-to-day management of the Group’s operations.
Profiles of GEC members are set out on page 27.

Substantial shareholders
At 31st December 2013 and at 13th March 2014 (the latest practicable date prior to the date of this report) the
Company had been notified of the following substantial shareholdings.

31st December 2013 13th March 2014

Shareholder No of shares % interest in
voting rights No of shares % interest in

voting rights

JMH Investments Limited* 87,939,443 40.17% 87,939,443 40.16%

Massachusetts Financial Services Company 16,314,833 7.45% 16,867,459 7.70%

Royal Bank of Canada 8,113,926 3.70% 7,978,210 3.64%

*JMH Investments Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Jardine Matheson Holdings Limited. Jardine Strategic
Holdings Limited is interested in the shares of Jardine Matheson Holdings Limited under S.823(1)(b) of the Companies
Act 2006.

The highest percentage held by JMH Investments Limited in JLT in the 12 months preceding the date of this report
was 40.17%.



Financial S
tatem

ents
C
orporate G

overnance
O
verview

S
trategic R

eport

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc Annual Report 2013

71

Committees of the Board 
Audit & Risk Committee
The report of the Audit & Risk Committee for the year is
set out on pages 50 to 53.

Remuneration Committee

Activities
In addition to a number of ad hoc meetings, the
Remuneration Committee met formally three times during
the year. It is responsible, inter alia, for setting the
remuneration and terms and conditions of the executive
directors and setting overall remuneration policy for senior
management of the Group.

It also approves the allocations under all long term
incentive plans and share option schemes.

Assistance was provided to the Committee by the
Chairman, Chief Executive and HR Strategy Director, but
not in relation to their own remuneration, and by Deloitte
LLP.

Deloitte LLP has been appointed by the Remuneration
Committee to act as independent advisers to the
Committee during the year.

The Remuneration Report is set out on pages 54 to 67.

Nominations Committee

Activities
The Committee met once during the year. Its purpose is to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
of directors of the Company and to consider succession
plans for senior management positions in the Company. 

Board diversity
The Board supports the Code’s recommendation that
diversity and gender should be considered when making
Board appointments. The Board believes that diversity
should be considered broadly and our primary objective is
to achieve the right balance of skills, experience,
independence and knowledge to enable each board
member, and the Board as a whole, to discharge their
duties and responsibilities effectively. Selection of the best
candidate, irrespective of background is the JLT
philosophy. 

The Group’s approach on employee diversity and
disclosures are set out in the Corporate Responsibility
section on page 45 and on page 74.

The terms of reference of the Audit & Risk, Remuneration
and Nominations Committees are available on JLT’s
website.

Corporate Governance
Code Compliance
During the year the Company has complied with the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2012
(the Code), except for the following: 

Since 1997 Jardine Matheson (JM) have appointed two
representatives onto the Board of JLT Group. JM currently
has a 40.16% interest in the Company. The relationship
with JM is maintained on an arm’s length basis as
detailed in note 32 on page 132.

For many years these appointees were Lord Leach and
Simon Keswick. Simon Keswick retired at the AGM in
2013 and was replaced by Lord Sassoon. For that reason
only Lord Leach stood for re-election in 2013 but both he
and Lord Sassoon will be standing for re-election at the
2014 AGM.

In addition to their board roles, the JM appointed
directors have always held committee memberships. Lord
Leach is a member of the Remuneration Committee and
Chairman of the Nominations Committee. Lord Sassoon
is a member of each of the Audit & Risk, Remuneration
and Nominations Committees.

As a consequence of the above, JLT has, for a number of
years, not been in full compliance with the relevant UK
Corporate Governance guidelines but have sought to
satisfy shareholders with appropriate explanations. In
particular:

(a) Our Board does not comprise a majority of
independent non-executive directors; and

(b) Some of the committee memberships of the JM
representative are not in accordance with the
guidelines.

The Board strongly believes that the continuation of these
arrangements, although not complying fully with the
guidelines, is in the interest of all of our shareholders for
the following reasons:

• To achieve a majority of independent non-executive
directors JLT would have to appoint a further two or
three independent non-executives (the number
depending on the number of executives on the Board)
which would lead to an unnecessarily large and
unwieldy Board.

• JM have clearly demonstrated that they are a
committed long term shareholder and as such we
believe their interests are fundamentally aligned to the
interests of shareholders in general. In the Board’s
experience over the years, conflicts of interest are
extremely rare and when they arise (such as in 2011
when JM acquired an additional 10% stake in the
business), are handled with great awareness and
sensitivity by all concerned.

• The JM nominees are extremely able and experienced
in their own right as their reputations bear testimony.
In addition, Lord Leach has great historical knowledge
of JLT and the insurance industry. They therefore
provide significant value to the deliberations of all
Boards and Committees of which they are members.

• The Board therefore believes that its Committees
would be less effective if the JM representatives were
to be excluded.

The Board has given careful consideration to these
matters over recent years and, in particular, as part of the
external board effectiveness review which we have
recently completed. All individual members of the Board,
both executive and non-executive, are fully supportive of
the current arrangements.
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Audit & Risk Remuneration Nominations
Board meeting Committee Committee Committee

G M T Howe - -

D J Burke - - -

A E Court

J D S Dawson

M F G Drummond Brady - - -

R J Harvey

S L Keswick (to 30th April 2013) -

Lord Leach - -

N R MacAndrew

M T Reynolds - - -

Lord Sassoon (from 30th April 2013) -

J D R Twining - - -

V Y A C Wade (to 7th May 2013) - - -

Number of meetings during year -

Board Attendance
The number of Board and Committee meetings attended by Board or appropriate Committee members in the year is shown
below.

Finally, with regard to the table below, it should be noted that Lord
Leach was unable to attend the meetings of the Board and
Remuneration Committee in July due to an unavoidable prior
commitment and, in December, the meetings of the Board,
Remuneration and Nominations Committees as he was unwell at the
time of those meetings.

Other Matters
The Directors are able to consult the Company’s legal, financial and
other professional advisers on any matter relating to the Company’s
affairs.

Any Director may make use of this facility subject to notifying the
Chairman or Finance Director.

If independent advice is sought, this is subject to prior consultation
with the Chairman or a Non-Executive Director as appropriate.

All Directors also have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary.

The Company maintains appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance in respect of legal actions against its directors.

Accountability and audit
The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s systems of
internal control and for reviewing their effectiveness.

The implementation and maintenance of the risk management and
internal control systems are the responsibility of the Executive
Directors and senior management. The systems are designed to
mitigate, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can provide only reasonable assurance, but not
absolute assurance, against material mis-statement or loss.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the
Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year. Under that law the directors have prepared
the Group financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union, and the parent Company financial statements in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under
company law the directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and the company and of the profit or
loss of the Group for that period. 

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

• make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;

• state whether IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and
applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
Group and parent company financial statements respectively;

• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and the Group and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements and the Directors’ Remuneration
Report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the
Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions. 

The directors consider that the annual report and accounts, taken as
a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’s
performance, business model and strategy. 

Each of the directors, whose names and functions are listed on
pages 48 and 49 confirm that, to the best of their knowledge:

• the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and
fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit of the
Group; and

• the Strategic Report contained in pages 11 to 45 of the Annual
Report includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Group,
together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that it faces.

In accordance with Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006,
directors’ reports shall include a statement, in the case of each
director in office at the date the directors’ report is approved, that:

(a) so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the company’s auditors are unaware; and

(b) he has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a
director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the company’s auditors are
aware of that information.

Risk management
The Group’s approach to Risk Management is discussed in the
Finance Director’s Review and the Risk Management Report on
pages 39 to 42.

The Group takes a holistic approach to risk management and the
control environment. Responsibility and accountability are shared
across all Group companies, with ultimate responsibility resting with
the Board.

Each operating company maintains controls and procedures
appropriate to its own business and regulatory environment while
conforming to Group standards and guidelines.

The identification and mitigation of major business risks is the
responsibility of operational management and the Board.

Going concern
The Directors consider that the Group and the Company have
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Consequently, the financial statements have been
prepared on a going-concern basis.

Share capital and Shareholder rights 
Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
ended 31st December 2013 are set out in note 24 on page 116.

At 31st December 2013 the issued share capital consisted of
218,941,471 ordinary shares of 5 pence each with voting rights and
1,143,131 shares are held as treasury shares for which voting rights
would not be exercised.

The Company has one class of share capital being ordinary shares of
5 pence each and all the shares rank pari passu.

There are no special control rights in respect of the Company’s
shares.

The Board has the power to implement the purchase by the
Company of its own shares in accordance with the power granted at
the AGM each year, and will be seeking renewal of that power at the
forthcoming AGM within the limits set out in the notice of that
meeting.

All the Company’s share schemes contain provisions relating to a
change of control. Outstanding options and awards would normally
vest and become exercisable on a change of control, subject to the
satisfaction of any performance conditions as may be appropriate at
that time.

At 31st December 2013, the Jardine Lloyd Thompson Employee
Share Trusts (‘the trusts’) held 7,787,035 shares in the Company
representing 3.56% of the issued capital (less treasury shares). At
13th March 2014, (being the latest practicable date prior to the
posting of this report) the trusts held 7,651,319 shares 3.49%.

Dividends and distributions
Shareholders can declare final dividends by passing an ordinary
resolution but the amount of the dividend cannot exceed the amount
recommended by the Board.

The Board can pay interim dividends whenever the financial position
of the Company, in the opinion of the Board, justifies such payment. 

The Board can withhold payment of all or any part of any dividend or
other monies payable in respect of the Company’s shares from any
person with a 0.25 per cent interest (as set out in the Articles) if that
person has been served with a notice after failure to provide the
Company with information concerning interest in those shares
required to be provided under the Companies Act. The Directors
may also retain any dividends payable on shares on which the
Company has a lien, and may apply the same in or towards
satisfaction of the debts, liabilities or engagements in respect of
which the lien exists.

Voting rights
On a show of hands at a general meeting, every member present in
person has one vote and on a poll every member who is present in
person or by proxy has one vote for each share held. In the case of
joint holders of a share the vote of the senior who tenders a vote
whether in person or by proxy will be accepted to the exclusion of
the votes of the other joint holders and, for this purpose, seniority will
be determined by the order in which the names stand in the Register
of Members in respect of the share. Voting rights in relation to
Treasury shares are suspended and the voting rights are not normally
exercised in respect of the shares held in the employee benefit
trusts.

Restrictions on voting
No member, unless the Directors otherwise determine, is entitled to
vote either in person or by proxy at any general meeting in respect of
any shares held by him if any call or other sum then payable by him
in respect of that share remains unpaid. In addition, no member is
entitled to vote if he has been served with a notice after failure to
provide the Company with information concerning interests in those
shares required to be provided under the Companies Act.
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Deadlines for exercising voting rights
Votes may be exercised in person, by proxy, or in relation to
corporate members, by corporate representative. The Articles
provide a deadline for submission of proxy forms of not less than 48
hours before the time appointed for the holding of the meeting or
adjourned meeting and the notice of Annual General Meeting will
specify the deadline for exercising voting rights.
Variation of rights
If at any time the capital of the Company is divided into different
classes of shares then, subject to statute, the Articles specify that
rights attached to any class of shares may be varied with the written
consent of the holders of at least 75% (nominal value) of the issued
shares of that class, or with the sanction of a special resolution
passed at a separate general meeting of the holders of those shares.
At every such separate general meeting the quorum is two persons
holding or representing by proxy at least one third in nominal value of
the issued shares of the class (calculated excluding any shares held
as treasury shares).

A member that is a corporation may appoint an individual to act on
its behalf at a general meeting or class meetings as a corporate
representative. The person so authorised shall be entitled to exercise
the same powers on behalf of such corporation as the corporation
could exercise if it were an individual member of the Company.
Transfer of shares
All transfers of shares which are in certificated form may be effected
by transfer in writing in any usual or common form or in any other
form acceptable to the Directors. The instrument of transfer must be
signed by or on behalf of the transferor and (except in the case of
fully-paid shares) by or on behalf of the transferee. The transferor
shall remain the holder of the shares concerned until the name of the
transferee is entered in the Register of Members of the Company.
Transfers of shares which are in uncertificated form are effected by
means of the CREST system.

The Directors may refuse to register a transfer of certificated shares
that are not fully paid provided that partly paid shares must be
transferable free from restrictions and investors must be provided
with sufficient information to allow dealing on an open and proper
basis. The Directors may also refuse to register an allotment or
transfer of shares (whether fully-paid or not) in favour of more than
four persons jointly. If the directors refuse to register an allotment or
transfer they must give the transferee notice of the refusal as soon as
is practicable and in any event within two months after the date on
which the letter of allotment or transfer was lodged with the
Company.

The Directors may decline to recognise any instrument of transfer
unless the instrument of transfer is in respect of only one class of
share and when submitted for registration is accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and such other evidence as the Directors
may reasonably require.

Subject to statutes and applicable CREST rules, the Directors may
determine that any class of shares may be held in uncertificated form
and that title to such shares may be transferred by means of the
CREST system or that shares of any class should cease to be so
held and transferred.

A shareholder does not need to obtain the approval of the Company,
or of other shareholders of shares in the Company, for a transfer of
shares to take place.

Corporate responsibility 
Employment policies
The Group aims to provide an environment where individuals can
excel. Wide share ownership and share option schemes encourage
employee engagement. Regular briefings and consultation, using the
JLT intranet where possible, keep employees informed about the
Group’s performance and matters that affect them as employees. 

The Group is an equal opportunities employer and encourages
diversity. Applications from disabled people will always be fully
considered having proper regard to their aptitudes and abilities. If
existing employees become disabled, every effort is made to make
sure their employment with the Group continues. If such employees
are unable to continue work, every effort is made to safeguard their
financial interests. The Group aims to provide training, development
and promotion opportunities that are identical, as far as possible, for
disabled and non-disabled employees. 

Employee diversity and environmental reporting
The Group’s Corporate Responsibility statement is set out on pages
43 to 45. This includes the Group’s position on employee diversity
and the environment and also the Group’s first Greenhouse Gas
emissions report for the year ended 31st December 2013.

Annual General Meeting
The AGM notice is included in the Circular that accompanies this
report. The meeting will be held at 12 noon on 29th April 2014 at The
St Botolph Building, 138 Houndsditch, London, EC3A 7AW.

The special business includes the renewal, within prescribed limits,
of:

• the directors’ authority to allot Company securities within
Association of British Insurers guidelines;

• the disapplication of statutory pre-emption rights; and

• the authority of the Company to purchase its own shares by way
of market purchases; 

The directors would only consider making purchases of the
Company’s shares if they believe it would be in the best interests of
shareholders and would result in an increase in earnings per share.

Independent Auditors
Following review, the Board proposes that PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP are reappointed as the Company auditors. 

A resolution proposing this will be put to the AGM. 

By order of the Board

David Hickman
Company Secretary
14th March 2014
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Includes the report of the Independent Auditor
and the primary reporting statements as well as
the accounting policies under which the financial
statements have been prepared.

76 Independent Auditors’ Report

79 Consolidated Income Statement

80 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

81 Consolidated Balance Sheet
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to the members of the Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc

Report on the Group financial statements
Our opinion 
In our opinion the Group financial statements, defined below:

• give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at
31 December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended;

• have been properly prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union; and

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

This opinion is to be read in the context of what we say in the
remainder of this report.

What we have audited
The Group financial statements, which are prepared by Jardine
Lloyd Thompson Group plc, comprise:

• the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2013;

• the consolidated income statement and statement of
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

• the consolidated statement of changes in equity and statement
of cash flows for the year then ended; and

• the summary of significant accounting policies and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, which includes other
explanatory information.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation comprises applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union.

Certain disclosures required by the financial reporting framework
have been presented elsewhere in the Annual Report, rather than in
the notes to the financial statements. These are cross referenced
from the financial statements and are identified as audited.

What an audit of financial statements involves 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (‘ISAs (UK & Ireland). An audit involves
obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:

• whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed;

• the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
the directors; and 

• the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in
the Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies with the
audited Group financial statements and to identify any information
that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for
our report.

Overview of our audit approach
Materiality
We set certain thresholds for materiality. These helped us to
determine the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and
to evaluate the effect of misstatements both individually and on the
financial statements as a whole. 

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for
the Group financial statements as a whole to be £8.9m. In arriving at
this judgement we have had regard to profit before tax adjusted for
non-recurring exceptional items (refer to note 3 in the financial
statements) because, in our view, this is the most relevant measure
of underlying performance. 

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them
misstatements identified during our audit above £0.5 million as well
as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted
reporting for qualitative reasons. 

Overview of the scope of our audit
The Group is organised on a worldwide basis into three main
segments, based on the services and products offered: ‘Risk &
Insurance’, ‘Employee Benefits’ and ‘Head Office & Other
operations’. These segments are consistent with the internal
reporting structure of the Group.

In establishing the overall approach to the group audit, we
determined the type of work that needed to be performed at the
reporting units by us, as the group engagement team, or
component auditors from other PwC network firms operating under
our instruction. Where the work was performed by component
auditors, we determined the level of involvement we needed to have
in the audit work at those reporting units to be able to conclude
whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence had been obtained as
a basis for our opinion on the Group financial statements as a
whole. 

Certain components within the segments lines required an audit of
their complete financial information, either due to their size or to
ensure we obtained appropriate coverage across all account
balances. 

The work performed on the components, together with additional
procedures performed at the Group level gave us the evidence we
needed for our opinion on the Group financial statements as a whole.

Areas of particular audit focus
In preparing the financial statements, the directors made a number
of subjective judgements, for example in respect of significant
accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and
considering future events that are inherently uncertain. We primarily
focused our work in these areas by assessing the directors’
judgements against available evidence, forming our own
judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial
statements.

In our audit, we tested and examined information, using sampling
and other auditing techniques, to the extent we considered
necessary to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions,
We obtained audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of
controls and substantive procedures or a combination of both.

We considered the following areas to be those that required
particular focus in the current year.  This is not a complete list of all
risks or areas of focus identified by our audit. We discussed these
areas of focus with the Audit & Risk Committee. Their report on
those matters they considered to be significant issues in relation to
the financial statements is set out on page 53. 
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Area of focus How the scope of our audit addressed the area
of focus

Risk of management override
of internal controls 
ISAs (UK & Ireland) require that
we consider this. 

We assessed the overall control environment
of the Group, including the arrangements for
staff to “whistle-blow” inappropriate actions,
and interviewed senior management and the
Group’s internal audit function. We examined
the significant accounting estimates and
judgements relevant to the financial
statements for evidence of bias by the
directors that may represent a risk of material
misstatement due to fraud. We also tested
journal entries.

Risk of fraud in revenue
recognition 
ISAs (UK & Ireland) presume
there is a risk of fraud in
revenue recognition because of
the pressure the directors may
feel to achieve the planned
results. We focused on the
timing of revenue recognition,
the treatment of discounts,
incentives and commissions
and the accounting for multiple
element arrangements.

We evaluated the relevant IT systems and
tested the internal controls over cut-off,
existence and accuracy of revenue
recognised in the financial statements.

We tested a selection of revenue transactions
and performed testing of accrued income. In
addition, we have assessed the
appropriateness of all significant estimates
within the revenue balance having regard to
the potential for bias and taking account of
the accuracy of prior period estimates.

Provision for errors and
omissions (E&O)
We focused on this area
because of the inherent
uncertainty which can surround
legal disputes and
consequently the judgemental
nature in estimating the level of
provision required.

We reviewed the director’s process for the
identification and evaluation of provisions for
the Group’s outstanding E&O cases. 

We evaluated the Group’s E&O insurance
programme and whether any related
insurance assets booked are in line with the
E&O programme. 

We reviewed the adequacy of the provision
by considering the status of the known and
potential claims, including the underlying
assumptions and sensitivities having regard to
the potential for bias.

Initial measurement of
goodwill and intangibles 
During the year the Group
acquired Towers Watson’s
reinsurance business for a
consideration of £177 million
(refer to note 29 to the financial
statements). 

We focused on this transaction
due to the magnitude of the
acquisition and the extent of
the judgements involved in
estimating the value of goodwill
and intangible assets acquired.

We have assessed the directors’ estimates of
goodwill and intangible assets arising on the
acquisition based on the methodology and
assumptions made in relation to retention
rates and discount rates. 

We read the sale and purchase agreement to
confirm that the rights and obligations under
the contract have been appropriately reflected
in the financial statements. 

We performed testing of the completion
balance sheet of the acquired business to
ensure that appropriate amounts had been
included in the goodwill calculation. 

Going Concern
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the
directors’ statement, set out on page 73 in relation to
going concern. We have nothing to report having
performed our review.

As noted in the directors’ statement, the directors have
concluded that it is appropriate to prepare the Group’s
financial statements using the going concern basis of
accounting. The going concern basis presumes that the
Group has adequate resources to remain in operation,
and that the directors intend it to do so, for at least one
year from the date the financial statements were signed.
As part of our audit we have concluded that the directors’
use of the going concern basis is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can
be predicted, these statements are not a guarantee as to
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

Opinion on other matter prescribed by
the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, the information given in the Strategic
Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for
which the Group financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the Group financial statements.

Other matters on which we are required
to report by exception
Adequacy of information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report
to you if, in our opinion we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit. We
have no exceptions to report arising from this
responsibility.

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report
to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law have not been made. We
have no exceptions to report arising from this
responsibility. 

Corporate Governance Statement
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the part
of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the
Parent Company’s compliance with nine provisions of the
UK Corporate Governance Code (‘the Code’). We have
nothing to report having performed our review.

On page 73 of the Annual Report, as required by the
Code Provision C.1.1, the directors state that they
consider the Annual Report taken as a whole to be fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for members to assess the Group’s
performance, business model and strategy. On page 53,
as required by C.3.8 of the Code, the Audit & Risk
Committee has set out the significant issues that it
considered in relation to the financial statements, and
how they were addressed. Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we
are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
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• the statement given by the directors is materially
inconsistent with our knowledge of the Group
acquired in the course of performing our audit; or

• the section of the Annual Report describing the work
of the Audit & Risk Committee does not appropriately
address matters communicated by us to the Audit &
Risk Committee.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this
responsibility.

Other information in the Annual Report
Under ISAs (UK and Ireland), we are required to report to
you if, in our opinion, information in the Annual Report is:

• materially inconsistent with the information in the
audited Group financial statements; or

• apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Group
acquired in the course of performing our audit; or

• is otherwise misleading.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this
responsibility.

Responsibilities for the financial
statements and the audit
Our responsibilities and those of the directors 
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities
Statement set out on pages 72 and 73, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the Group financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view. 

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on
the Group financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and ISAs (UK and Ireland). Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for
and only for the Company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report
is shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other Matter
We have reported separately on the Parent Company
financial statements of Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc
for the year ended 31 December 2013 and on the
information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is
described as having been audited.

Richard Weaver (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London
14th March 2014

Notes:

The maintenance and integrity of the Jardine Lloyd
Thompson Group plc website is the responsibility of the
directors; the work carried out by the auditors does not
involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly,
the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that
may have occurred to the financial statements since they
were initially presented on the website.

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31st December 2013

2013 2012
Notes £’000 £’000

restated

Fees and commissions 2 974,623 874,320
Investment income 2,4 4,529 5,744

Total revenue 2 979,152 880,064

Salaries and associated expenses 6 (580,968) (519,119)
Premises (53,638) (44,408)
Other operating costs (157,386) (140,179)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges 3 (24,667) (21,037)

Operating profit 2,3 162,493 155,321

Analysed as:
Operating profit before exceptional items 185,365 160,184
Business Transformation Programme 3 (9,521) (3,794) 
Acquisition and integration costs 3 (9,020) (1,875)
Premises consolidation costs 3 (5,022) -
Other non-recurring items 3 691 806

Operating profit 2,3 162,493 155,321

Finance costs 5 (17,476) (13,672)
Finance income 5 1,441 1,621

Finance costs - net 5 (16,035) (12,051) 
Share of results of associates 14 8,106 8,271

Profit before taxation 2 154,564 151,541
Income tax expense 8 (41,789) (39,814)

Profit for the year 112,775 111,727

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent 2 101,960 102,153
Non-controlling interests 25 10,815 9,574

112,775 111,727

Earnings per share attributable to the owners of the parent 9
during the year (expressed in pence per share)
Basic earnings per share 46.6p 46.7p
Diluted earnings per share 46.4p 46.5p

The notes on pages 84 to 134 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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for the year ended 31st December 2013
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2013 2012
Notes £’000 £’000

restated

Profit for the year 112,775 111,727

Other comprehensive (expense)/income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations 31 (9,370) (10,956)
Taxation thereon 22 1,364 1,182

Total items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (8,006) (9,774)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Fair value gains net of tax:
- available-for-sale 26 48 43
- cash flow and fair value hedges 26 1,720 21,074
Currency translation differences (24,332) (9,664)

Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (22,564) 11,453

Other comprehensive (expense)/income net of tax (30,570) 1,679

Total comprehensive income for the year 82,205 113,406

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent 72,830 104,258
Non-controlling interests 9,375 9,148

82,205 113,406

The notes on pages 84 to 134 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Financial Statements



2013 2012
Notes £’000 £’000

NET OPERATING ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill 11 429,450 276,388
Other intangible assets 12 69,092 55,399
Property, plant and equipment 13 59,715 28,227
Investments in associates 14 101,445 91,167
Available-for-sale financial assets 15,20 22,346 17,398
Derivative financial instruments 16,20 16,906 21,551
Deferred tax assets 22 51,809 54,659

750,763 544,789

Current assets
Trade and other receivables 17 411,428 348,452
Derivative financial instruments 16,20 9,826 9,107
Available-for-sale financial assets 15,20 1,421 252
Cash and cash equivalents 18,20 753,164 624,321

1,175,839 982,132

Current liabilities
Borrowings 20,21 (12,995) (16,954)
Trade and other payables 19 (909,595) (736,809)
Derivative financial instruments 16,20 (2,344) (2,094)
Current tax liabilities (5,201) (11,508)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 23 (10,158) (12,241)

(940,293) (779,606)

Net current assets 235,546 202,526

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 20,21 (447,188) (236,702)
Derivative financial instruments 16,20 (30,543) (14,699)
Deferred tax liabilities 22 (12,542) (12,416)
Retirement benefit obligations 31 (130,627) (131,391)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 23 (4,952) (3,889)

(625,852) (399,097)

360,457 348,218

TOTAL EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to the owners of the parent
Ordinary shares 24 11,003 10,997
Share premium 24,26 103,739 103,188
Fair value and hedging reserves 26 17,224 15,456
Exchange reserves 26 (1,999) 20,893
Retained earnings 211,009 182,775

Shareholders’ equity 340,976 333,309
Non-controlling interests 25 19,481 14,909

360,457 348,218

The notes on pages 84 to 134 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

The consolidated financial statements on pages 79 to 134 were approved by the Board on 14th March 2014 and signed on its behalf by:

Mike Reynolds

Finance Director
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for the year ended 31st December 2013

Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Non-
Ordinary Other Retained Shareholders' controlling Total
shares reserves earnings equity interests equity

Notes £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance at 1st January 2013 10,997 139,537 182,775 333,309 14,909 348,218

Profit for the year - - 101,960 101,960 10,815 112,775
Other comprehensive income for the year - (21,124) (8,006) (29,130) (1,440) (30,570)

Total comprehensive income for the year - (21,124) 93,954 72,830 9,375 82,205
Dividends 10,25 - - (57,092) (57,092) (5,475) (62,567)
Amounts in respect of share based payments:

- reversal of amortisation - - 18,306 18,306 - 18,306
- shares acquired - - (21,704) (21,704) - (21,704)

Acquisitions 25,29 - - - - 685 685
Disposals 25,30 - - - - (48) (48)
Additions 25 - - - - 35 35
Change in non-controlling interests - - (5,230) (5,230) - (5,230)
Issue of share capital 24 6 551 - 557 - 557

Balance at 31st December 2013 11,003 118,964 211,009 340,976 19,481 360,457

Non-
Ordinary Other Retained Shareholders' controlling Total
shares reserves earnings equity interests equity
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Notes restated restated restated
Balance at 1st January 2012 10,960 124,140 151,007 286,107 12,327 298,434

Profit for the year - - 102,153 102,153 9,574 111,727
Other comprehensive income for the year - 11,879 (9,774) 2,105 (426) 1,679

Total comprehensive income for the year - 11,879 92,379 104,258 9,148 113,406
Dividends 10,25 - - (53,571) (53,571) (5,679) (59,250)
Amounts in respect of share based payments:

- reversal of amortisation - - 14,720 14,720 - 14,720
- shares acquired - - (18,200) (18,200) - (18,200)

Acquisitions 25 - - - - (1,176) (1,176)
Disposals 25 - - - - 289 289
Change in non-controlling interests - - (3,560) (3,560) - (3,560)
Issue of share capital 24 37 3,518 - 3,555 - 3,555

Balance at 31st December 2012 10,997 139,537 182,775 333,309 14,909 348,218

The notes on pages 84 to 134 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



2013 2012
Notes £’000 £’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 28 163,430 133,399
Interest paid (8,772) (7,924)
Interest received 5,538 7,469
Taxation paid (41,380) (35,190)
Increase in net insurance broking payables 106,203 45,005

225,019 142,759
Dividend received from associates 1,732 1,140

Net cash generated from operating activities 226,751 143,899

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 13 (44,788) (12,820)
Purchase of other intangible fixed assets 12 (27,354) (20,671)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 596 1,508
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired 29 (150,874) (25,779)
Acquisition of associates (230) (14,690)
Proceeds from disposal of businesses, net of cash disposed 30 (2,089) (736)
Purchase of available-for-sale other investments 15 (3,264) -
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale other investments 1,317 -

Net cash used in investing activities (226,686) (73,188)

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to owners of the parent (57,582) (53,533)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets 15 (6,439) (14,852)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 15 269 158
Purchase of shares (21,704) (18,200)
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 24 557 3,555
Proceeds from borrowings 230,403 74,626
Repayments of borrowings (4,711) (1,206)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 25 (5,475) (5,679)

Net cash generated/(used) from financing activities 135,318 (15,131)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 135,383 55,580
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 624,321 573,616
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents (6,540) (4,875)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 18 753,164 624,321

The notes on pages 84 to 134 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU), IFRIC
interpretations and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to Companies
reporting under IFRSs. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale assets and derivative
financial instruments.

Standards, amendments and
interpretations effective in 2013
The following standards have been adopted by the group for the first time
for the financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and have a
material impact on the group:

Amendment to IAS 1, ‘Financial statement presentation’ regarding other
comprehensive income. The main change resulting from these
amendments is a requirement for entities to group items presented in
‘other comprehensive income’ (OCI) on the basis of whether they are
potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification
adjustments).

IAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’ was revised in June 2011. The changes on
the group’s accounting policies has been as follows: to replace interest
cost and expected return on plan assets with a net interest amount that
is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit
liability (asset). The restatement of the prior year has increased the
income statement charge by £5,049,000 as the discount rate applied to
assets is lower than the expected return on assets.  The revision to the
standard also requires that administration expenses borne by the
schemes not related to the administration of plan assets be recognised in
the income statement; the impact of this is £200,000.  The total effect
has been that the income statement charge for the year to 31st
December 2012 has increased by £5,249,000 (net of tax: £4,294,000).
The restatement of the prior year has reduced the basic and diluted
earnings per share by 2p. This has no effect on total comprehensive
income as the increased charge in profit or loss is offset by a credit in
other comprehensive income.

IFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’, aims to improve consistency and
reduce complexity by providing a precise definition of fair value and a
single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for
use across IFRSs. The requirements, which are largely aligned between
IFRSs and US GAAP, do not extend the use of fair value accounting but
provide guidance on how it should be applied where its use is already
required or permitted by other standards within IFRSs.

Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies so as to obtain economic benefits and
generally accompany a shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity. 

The Group also recognises control where it does not have more than
50% of the voting power but is able to govern the financial and operating
policies by virtue of de-facto control. De-facto control may arise in
circumstances where the size of the Group’s voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of other shareholders give the Group the
power to govern the financial and operating policies.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets. 

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If a business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to
the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an
asset or liability is recognised in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or
loss or as a charge to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of
consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Transactions with non-controlling interests
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions – that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners.

The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries
When the Group ceases to have control any retained interest in the entity
is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss.

The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Associates
Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting.



Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost,
and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the
investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition.

The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill identified on
acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the
income statement, and its share of post acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the associates have been modified where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as
the Chief Executive Officer.

Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency 
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Sterling, which is
the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.
Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities
classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are included in other
comprehensive income.

Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

ii) income and expenses for each income statement are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated
at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation exchange differences arising from the translation of net
investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to
other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill arising on consolidation
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair
value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired
subsidiary/associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is shown separately on the Balance Sheet. Goodwill on
acquisitions of associates is included in investments in associates.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions completed prior to 1st January 1998 was
written off directly to reserves. Following the adoption of IFRS this
goodwill remains written off to reserves and no adjustment would be
made on subsequent disposal. For acquisitions completed on or after 1st
January 1998 and before 1st January 2004, goodwill is stated on the
balance sheet at its previously amortised net book value.

For acquisitions completed on or after 1st January 2004, goodwill is
tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold. Goodwill is
allocated to cash generating units, or groups of cash generating units, for
the purpose of impairment testing. Cash generating units represent the
lowest level of geographical and business segment combinations that the
Group uses for internal reporting purposes.

Other intangible assets
Computer software
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the
costs incurred to acquire them and bring them to use. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives. Costs associated with
developing or maintaining computer software programmes are
recognised as an expense as incurred. 

Costs that are directly associated with the production of identifiable and
unique software products controlled by the Group, and that will generate
economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as
intangible assets. Direct costs include the software development
employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
Computer software development costs recognised as assets are
amortised over their estimated useful lives.

The rates of amortisation are between 14% and 100% per annum.

Capitalised employment contract payments
The Group makes payments to certain key employees in recognition of
them signing a long-term employment contact, usually three to five years.
These payments are capitalised as intangible assets since legal rights
protect the expected benefits that the Group will derive from the
contracts.
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The asset recognised is then amortised over the duration of the
underlying contract within salaries and associated expenses.

Other
For acquisitions completed after 1st January 2004, the business acquired
is reviewed to identify assets that meet the definition of an intangible
asset per IAS 38. Examples of such assets include customer contracts,
expectations of business renewal and contract related customer
relationships. These assets are valued on the basis of the present value
of future cash flows and are amortised to the income statement over the
life of the contract or their estimated economic life. The current maximum
estimated economic life is fifteen years.

Impairment of assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value-in-use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units).

Property, plant and equipment
Assets are stated at their net book value (historical cost less accumulated
depreciation). Cost includes the original purchase price of the asset and
the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of such
assets over their estimated useful lives.

The principal rates of depreciation are as follows:

• Freehold land and buildings - between 0% and 2% per annum.

• Leasehold improvements - between 10% and 20% per annum or
over the life of the lease.

• Furniture and office equipment - between 10% and 20% per annum.

• Computer hardware - between 20% and 100% per annum.

• Motor vehicles - between 25% and 33 1/3% per annum.

The depreciation rates are reviewed on an annual basis.

Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables and
available-for-sale investments. The classification depends upon the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date.

The Group's loans and receivables comprise trade and other receivables
and cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet. Loans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are categorised according to their
nature into one of two categories:

1) Investments and deposits, which consist mainly of fixed deposits,
bonds and certificates of deposit. These investments are held at fair
value and are classified between current and non-current assets
according to maturity date.

2) Other investments include securities and other investments held for
strategic purposes. These investments are held at fair value unless a
fair value cannot be accurately determined in which case they are
held at cost less any provision for impairment. 

Interest on deposits and interest-bearing investments is credited as it is
earned.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-
sale assets are subsequently carried at fair value.

The fair values of quoted investments are determined based upon current
bid price.

Changes in the value of securities classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income. 

Insurance broking receivables and payables
Insurance brokers act as agents in placing the insurable risks of their
clients with insurers and, as such, are not liable as principals for amounts
arising from such transactions. In recognition of this relationship, debtors
from insurance broking transactions are not included as an asset of the
Group. Other than the receivable for fees and commissions earned on a
transaction, no recognition of the insurance transaction occurs until the
Group receives cash in respect of premiums or claims, at which time a
corresponding liability is established in favour of the insurer or the client.

In certain circumstances, the Group advances premiums, refunds or
claims to insurance underwriters or clients prior to collection.

These advances are reflected in the consolidated balance sheet as part
of trade receivables.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently at
amortised cost, less provision for impairment.

A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, dispute, default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the receivable is impaired. 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
income statement.

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for trade receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Trade payables
Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

Borrowings
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date. Borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. They are subsequently
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.



Deferred income tax
The charge for taxation is based on the result for the year at current rates
of tax and takes into account deferred tax. 

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, if the deferred income tax arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss, it is not recognised. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited to equity in respect of any
items, which is itself either charged or credited directly to equity.

Any subsequent recognition of the deferred gain or loss in the
consolidated income statement is accompanied by the corresponding
deferred income tax.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group
controls the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Employee benefits
Pension costs
The Group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes, and a
number of employees are members of defined contribution pension
schemes.

Full actuarial valuations of the Group’s main defined benefit schemes are
carried out at least every three years.

A qualified actuary updates these valuations to 31st December each year.
For the purposes of these annual updates, scheme assets are included at
market value and scheme liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis
using the projected unit credit method; these liabilities are discounted at
the current rate of return of an AA corporate bond of equivalent currency
and term. The defined benefit surplus or deficit is calculated as the
present value of defined benefit obligations less the fair value of the plan
assets and is included on the Group’s balance sheet. Surpluses are
included only to the extent that they are recoverable through reduced
contributions in the future or through refunds from the schemes. The net
interest on the defined benefit liability (asset) is included within finance
costs. Actuarial gains and losses, including differences between the
expected and actual return on scheme assets, are recognised through
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. 

The costs of the Group’s defined contribution pension schemes are
charged to the income statement in the period in which they fall due.

Share-based compensation
The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans. The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense.

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact
of any non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. At each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to become exercisable. It
recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the
income statement, and a corresponding adjustment to equity. 

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs
are credited to share capital (at nominal value) and share premium (excess
over nominal value) when the options are exercised.

Provisions for liabilities and charges
A provision is recognised where there is a present obligation, whether
legal or constructive, as a result of a past event for which it is probable
that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reasonable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Where appropriate the Group discounts provisions to their present value.
The unwinding of the provision discounting is included as an ‘interest
charge’ within finance costs in the income statement.

Revenue
Fees and commissions
Fees and commissions are derived from three principal sources:

Insurance broking

Income relating to insurance broking is accounted for at the later of policy
inception date or when the policy placement has been completed and
confirmed. 

Where there is an expectation of future servicing requirements an element
of income relating to the policy is deferred to cover the associated
contractual obligation.

Employee benefits

Income relating to employee benefit services includes fees and
commissions. Fees are charged on a time-cost or fixed-fee basis and are
recognised in line with the performance of the underlying service.
Commission is recognised upon confirmation of the underlying policy or
product.

Other services

Fees and other income receivable are recognised in the period to which
they relate and when they can be measured with reasonable certainty.

Investment Income
Investment income arises from the holding of cash and investments
relating to fiduciary funds and is recognised on an accruals basis.

Exceptional items
Exceptional items are separately identified to provide greater
understanding of the Group’s underlying performance. Items classified as
exceptional items include: gains or losses arising from the sale of
businesses and investments; closure costs for businesses; restructuring
costs; professional fees in respect of acquisitions; post acquisition
integration costs; and other credits and charges of non-recurring nature
that require inclusion in order to provide additional insight into the
underlying business performance. Items of a non-recurring and material
nature are charged or credited to operating profit and are classified to the
appropriate income statement headings.
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To assist in the analysis and understanding of the underlying trading
position of the Group these items are summarised within the operating
profit, note 3 on page 94, under the heading of “Exceptional items”.

Leases
Assets held under leasing agreements, which transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are included in property,
plant and equipment. The capital elements of the related lease obligations
are included in liabilities. The interest elements of the lease obligations are
charged to the income statement over the period of the lease term.

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease
term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Derivative financial instruments
The Group only enters into derivative financial instruments in order to
hedge underlying financial and commercial exposures.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. The method of recognising the resulting gain
or loss is dependent on the nature of the item being hedged.

The Group designates derivatives as either a hedge of the fair value of a
recognised asset or liability (fair value hedge), or a hedge of a forecasted
transaction or of the foreign currency risk on a firm commitment (cash
flow hedge), or a hedge of a net investment in a foreign entity (net
investment hedges).

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
fair value hedges and that are highly effective, are recorded in the
consolidated income statement, along with any changes in the fair value
of the hedged asset or liability that is attributable to the hedged risk. 

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
cash flow hedges and that are highly effective, are recognised in equity.
Where the forecasted transaction or firm commitment results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or of a non-financial liability, the gains
and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and
included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset or liability.
Otherwise, amounts deferred in equity are transferred to the consolidated
income statement and classified as income or expense in the same
periods during which the hedged firm commitment or forecasted
transaction affects the consolidated income statement.

The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer
meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss
existing in equity at that time remains in the hedging reserves and is
recognised when the committed or forecasted transaction ultimately is
recognised in the consolidated income statement. When a committed or
forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative
gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Dividend distribution
Dividends proposed or declared after the balance sheet date are not
recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date. Final dividends are
recognised as a charge to equity once approved and interim dividends
are charged once paid.

Financial and capital risk
management
The Group’s exposure to financial risks and its financial and capital
management policies are detailed in the Finance Director’s Review and
the Risk Management Report on pages 39 to 42.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments
Estimates and judgments used in preparing the financial statements are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant effect on the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are discussed below.

a) Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as
available-for-sale) is based upon quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and
payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair values of
financial liabilities is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for
similar financial instruments.

The fair value of acquired intangible assets is estimated based upon the
present value of modelled related expected future cash flows.

b) Impairment of assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and other assets that have
indefinite useful lives suffered any impairment. Other assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash generating unit is
determined based on value-in-use calculations prepared on the basis of
management’s assumptions and estimates. This determination requires
significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates,
among other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost; and the financial health of and near-term
business outlook for the investment, including factors such as industry
and sector performance, changes in regional economies and operational
and financing cash flow.

A 1% increase in the relevant discount rate would not have created an
impairment.

c) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

d) Pension obligations

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of
assumptions.

The assumption used in determining the net cost or income for pension
obligations is a discount rate based upon AA corporate bonds.

Any changes in the assumptions may impact the carrying amount of
pension obligations, the charge in the income statement, or statement of
comprehensive income.



The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each
year. This is the interest rate that should be used to determine the
present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required
to settle the pension obligations.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group considers the
interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability. Other key
assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market
conditions.

e) Errors and omissions liability

During the ordinary course of business the Group can be subject to
claims for errors and omissions made in connection with its broking
activities.

A balance sheet provision is established in respect of such claims when it
is probable that the liability has been incurred and the amount of the
liability can be reasonably estimated.

The Group analyses its litigation exposures based on available
information, including external legal consultation where appropriate, to
assess its potential liability.

The outcome of the currently pending and future proceedings cannot be
predicted with certainty. Thus, an adverse decision in a current or future
lawsuit could result in additional costs that are not covered, either wholly
or partially, under insurance policies and are in excess of the presently
established provisions. It is possible therefore that the financial position,
results of operations or cash flows of the Group could be materially
affected by the unfavourable outcome of litigation.

Future developments
The following standards and amendments to existing standards have
been published and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1st January 2014 or later periods, but the Group
has not adopted them early. None of the changes are expected to have a
significant impact on the Group:

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.
IFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and October 2010. It replaces the
parts of IAS 39 that relate to the classification and measurement of
financial instruments. IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified into
two measurement categories: those measured as at fair value and those
measured at amortised cost. The determination is made at initial
recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the instrument. For financial liabilities, the standard
retains most of the IAS 39 requirements. The main change is that, in
cases where the fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of
a fair value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other
comprehensive income rather than the income statement, unless this
creates an accounting mismatch. The Group is yet to assess IFRS 9’s full
impact and intends to adopt IFRS 9 no later than the accounting period
beginning on 1st January 2015. The Group will also consider the impact
of the remaining phases of IFRS 9 when completed by the Board.

IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial statements’ builds on existing principles
by identifying the concept of control as the determining factor in whether
an entity should be included within the consolidated financial statements
of the parent company. The standard provides additional guidance to
assist in the determination of control where this is difficult to assess. The
Group is yet to assess IFRS 10’s full impact and intends to adopt IFRS
10 no later than the accounting period beginning on 1st January 2014.

IFRS 11, ‘Joint arrangements’ focuses on the rights and obligations of
the parties to the arrangement rather than its legal form. There are two
types of joint arrangements, joint operations and joint ventures. Joint
operations arise where the investors have rights to the assets and
obligations for the liabilities of an arrangement. A joint operator accounts
for its share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Joint
ventures arise where the investors have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement; joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method.
Proportional consolidation of joint arrangements is no longer permitted.
The Group is yet to assess IFRS 11’s full impact and intends to adopt
IFRS 11 no later than the accounting period beginning on 1st January
2014.

IFRS 12, ‘Disclosures of interests in other entities’ includes the disclosure
requirements for all forms of interests in other entities, including joint
arrangements, associates, structured entities and other off balance sheet
vehicles. The Group is yet to assess IFRS 12’s full impact and intends to
adopt IFRS 12 no later than the accounting period beginning on 1st
January 2014.

Amendments to IAS 36, ‘Impairment of assets’, on the recoverable
amount disclosures for non-financial assets. This amendment removed
certain disclosures of the recoverable amount of CGUs which had been
included in IAS 36 by the issue of IFRS 13.

IFRIC 21, ‘Levies’, sets out the accounting for an obligation to pay a levy
that is not income tax. The interpretation addresses what the obligating
event is that gives rise to pay a levy and when should a liability be
recognised. The Group is not currently subjected to significant levies so
the impact on the Group is not material.
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for the year ended 31st December 2013

Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.  Alternative income statement
The format of the consolidated income statement on page 79 conforms to the requirements of IFRS. The alternative income statement set out below, which is
provided by way of additional information, has been prepared on a basis that conforms more closely to the approach adopted by the Group in assessing its
performance. The statement provides a reconciliation between the underlying results used by the Group to assess performance and the IFRS income statement.

Year ended 31st December 2013
Underlying Exceptional

profit items Total
£’000 £’000 £’000

Fees and commissions 974,623 - 974,623
Investment income 4,529 - 4,529
Salaries and associated expenses (569,716) (11,252) (580,968)
Premises (48,229) (5,409) (53,638)
Other operating costs (151,175) (6,211) (157,386)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (24,667) - (24,667)

Trading profit 185,365 (22,872) 162,493
Finance costs - net (16,035) - (16,035)
Share of results of associates 8,106 - 8,106

Profit before taxation 177,436 (22,872) 154,564

Year ended 31st December 2012
Underlying Exceptional

profit items Total
£’000 £’000 £’000

restated restated
Fees and commissions 874,320 - 874,320
Investment income 5,744 - 5,744
Salaries and associated expenses (516,296) (2,823) (519,119)
Premises (44,313) (95) (44,408)
Other operating costs (138,234) (1,945) (140,179)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (21,037) - (21,037)

Trading profit 160,184 (4,863) 155,321
Finance costs - net (12,051) - (12,051)
Share of results of associates 8,271 - 8,271

Profit before taxation 156,404 (4,863) 151,541
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2.  Segment information
Management has determined its operating segments based on the analysis used to make strategic decisions.

Business segment analysis

The Group is organised on a worldwide basis into three main segments: Risk & Insurance, Employee Benefits and Head Office & Other operations. 
These segments are consistent with the internal reporting structure of the Group. 
The Risk & Insurance segment comprises JLT’s global specialist, wholesale, reinsurance broking, personal lines and SME activities. The Employee
Benefits segment consists of pension administration, outsourcing and employee benefits consultancy, healthcare and wealth management activities.
Certain Risk & Insurance and Employee Benefits operating segments have been disclosed within the reporting segments given their individual size. The
Head Office & Other segment consists mainly of holding companies, central administration functions, the Group’s captive insurance companies and the
Group’s investments in associates. 

Segment results

Management assesses the performance of the operating segments based upon a measure of underlying trading profit. Segment results include the net
income or expense derived from the trading activities of the segment together with the investment income earned on fiduciary funds. Interest income
on the Group’s own funds and finance costs are excluded as they are not considered part of the trading activities of the Group’s primary segments.
Income tax expense and the charge in respect of non-controlling interests are excluded from the segmental allocation.

Segment assets and liabilities

Assets and liabilities are not allocated to individual segments and are therefore all reported within Head Office & Other. 

Investments in associates

The Group owns the following stakes in its principal associates: 26 per cent in Milestone, the holding company of Siaci Saint Honoré, which operates
principally in France; 20 per cent of GrECo which operates mainly in Austria and Eastern Europe; 25 per cent of MAG-JLT which operates mainly in
Italy; and 25 per cent of March-JLT which operates mainly in Spain. On 31st July 2013 the Group disposed of 25 per cent of JLT Energy (France) SAS
which reduced its shareholding to 35 per cent and therefore from that date this company is treated as an associate. The investment and the Group’s
share of the net profit of these associates are included in the Head Office & Other segment, together with the investment and results of the Group’s
other associates, Sterling Re Intermediaro de Reaseguro SA de CV and JLT Insurance Management Malta. 

Other segment items

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets.
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2.  Segment information continued
Risk & Insurance Employee Benefits

Other
JLT Lloyd Australia & Other Risk UK & Employee Head Office

Specialty & Partners New Zealand & Insurance Ireland Benefits & Other Total
Year ended 31st December 2013 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Fees and commissions 243,997 83,507 121,829 270,065 172,101 83,124 - 974,623
Investment income 815 142 2,640 886 1 45 - 4,529
Total revenue 244,812 83,649 124,469 270,951 172,102 83,169 - 979,152

Underlying trading profit 51,169 18,344 37,073 43,304 32,200 23,608 (20,333) 185,365

Operating profit 47,816 18,344 35,933 35,389 27,008 22,795 (24,792) 162,493
Finance costs - net - - - - - - (16,035) (16,035)
Share of results of associates - - - - - - 8,106 8,106
Profit before taxation 47,816 18,344 35,933 35,389 27,008 22,795 (32,721) 154,564
Income tax expense - - - - - - (41,789) (41,789)
Non-controlling interests - - - - - - (10,815) (10,815)

Net profit 47,816 18,344 35,933 35,389 27,008 22,795 (85,325) 101,960

Segment assets 1,825,157 1,825,157
Investments in associates 101,445 101,445

Total assets 1,926,602 1,926,602

Segment liabilities (1,566,145) (1,566,145)

Total liabilities (1,566,145) (1,566,145)

Other segment items:
Capital expenditure 2,143 872 7,873 10,120 10,255 782 40,097 72,142
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (4,145) (1,152) (2,624) (7,171) (4,794) (728) (10,807) (31,421)

Risk & Insurance Employee Benefits
Other

JLT Lloyd Australia & Other Risk UK & Employee Head Office
Specialty & Partners New Zealand & Insurance Ireland Benefits & Other Total
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Year ended 31st December 2012 restated restated
Fees and commissions 234,750 79,126 123,238 233,569 146,030 57,607 - 874,320
Investment income 1,166 177 3,283 1,062 7 49 - 5,744
Total revenue 235,916 79,303 126,521 234,631 146,037 57,656 - 880,064

Underlying trading profit 46,776 17,610 36,894 38,464 28,029 15,246 (22,835) 160,184

Operating profit 45,930 17,510 36,702 38,576 24,374 15,177 (22,948) 155,321
Finance costs - net - - - - - - (12,051) (12,051)
Share of results of associates - - - - - - 8,271 8,271
Profit before taxation 45,930 17,510 36,702 38,576 24,374 15,177 (26,728) 151,541
Income tax expense - - - - - - (39,814) (39,814)
Non-controlling interests - - - - - - (9,574) (9,574)

Net profit 45,930 17,510 36,702 38,576 24,374 15,177 (76,116) 102,153

Segment assets 1,435,754 1,435,754
Investments in associates 91,167 91,167

Total assets 1,526,921 1,526,921

Segment liabilities (1,178,703) (1,178,703)

Total liabilities (1,178,703) (1,178,703)

Other segment items:
Capital expenditure 1,463 391 1,841 8,458 5,750 510 15,078 33,491
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (4,342) (2,563) (2,416) (6,258) (3,615) (400) (9,239) (28,833)
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2. Segment information continued
Geographical segment analysis
Although the Group’s two business segments are managed on a worldwide basis, they operate in five principal geographical areas of the world.

The United Kingdom is the home country of the parent company Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc.

The Risk & Insurance segment operates in the United Kingdom, the Group’s home country. In the Americas, the Risk & Insurance segment operates in
Bermuda, the Caribbean, Brazil, Canada, Colombia, Peru, Chile, and the United States. The Australasian segment includes operations in Australia and
New Zealand. In Europe, it operates in the Republic of Ireland, Sweden, Finland, Norway, Denmark, Germany, Guernsey, France, the Netherlands,
Spain, Switzerland and Russia. The Asian segment includes operations in Singapore, Hong Kong, Taiwan, Indonesia, Japan, Thailand, South Korea,
Philippines, Malaysia, China, Vietnam, Dubai, Qatar and Bahrain. In Africa, it operates in South Africa.

The Employee Benefits segment operates in the United Kingdom. In the Americas, the Employee Benefits segment operates in Brazil, Canada,
Colombia and Peru. The Australasian segment includes operations in Australia and New Zealand. In Europe, it operates in the Republic of Ireland.
The Asian segment includes operations in Singapore, Hong Kong, Taiwan, Indonesia, Japan, Thailand, South Korea, Philippines, Malaysia, China 
and Vietnam. In Africa, it operates in South Africa.

The Head Office & Other activities segment is mainly based in the United Kingdom with minor operations in the Americas, Europe and Asia.  
The Group’s captive operations are included in the United Kingdom segment.

Fees and commissions are disclosed by (1) the country in which the office is located and (2) the country in which the customer is located.

Segment non-current assets, segment assets and segment liabilities are disclosed based on the country in which they are located or occur.  Interest
bearing assets (e.g. cash & cash equivalents and investments & deposits) relating to the Group’s own funds and deferred tax assets are excluded from
segment assets. Interest bearing liabilities (e.g. borrowings) and income and deferred tax liabilities are excluded from segment liabilities. Items excluded
from segmental allocation are referred to as “unallocated”.

Fees and Fees and Segment 
commissions commissions non-current Segment Segment

(1) (2) assets assets liabilities
Year ended 31st December 2013 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

UK 540,951 337,587 336,194 1,048,684 (742,449)
Americas 149,637 247,146 138,947 298,557 (129,757)
Australasia 130,591 141,835 27,250 115,233 (81,203)
Asia 126,414 145,918 34,170 141,598 (102,839)
Europe 24,066 78,786 17,361 43,669 (24,636)
Rest of the World 2,964 23,351 4,335 4,360 (2,184)

974,623 974,623 558,257 1,652,101 (1,083,068)

Investments in associates 101,445 -
Unallocated assets/(liabilities) 173,056 (483,077)

Total assets/(liabilities) 1,926,602 (1,566,145)

Fees and Fees and Segment
commissions commissions non-current Segment Segment

(1) (2) assets assets liabilities
Year ended 31st December 2012 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

UK 497,467 301,286 227,896 864,335 (643,362)
Americas 124,494 215,158 72,602 164,560 (81,933)
Australasia 128,765 140,267 26,435 108,783 (79,359)
Asia 99,852 117,985 18,607 90,018 (67,158)
Europe 22,061 77,160 13,805 38,891 (26,026)
Rest of the World 1,681 22,464 669 494 (399)

874,320 874,320 360,014 1,267,081 (898,237)

Investments in associates 91,167 -
Unallocated assets/(liabilities) 168,673 (280,466)

Total assets/(liabilities) 1,526,921 (1,178,703)
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3.  Operating profit
The following items have been (credited)/charged in arriving at operating profit:

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Foreign exchange (gains)/losses:
- fees and commissions (2,687) (4,728)
- other operating costs 902 1,002

(1,785) (3,726)

Amortisation of other intangible assets:
- software costs 12,240 10,202
- other intangible assets 1,093 794

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment:
- owned assets 11,243 9,909
- leased assets under finance leases 91 132

Total depreciation and amortisation charges 24,667 21,037

Amortisation of other intangible assets:
- employment contract payments (included in salaries and associated expenses) 6,754 7,796

(Gains)/losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment (22) 7

Operating lease rentals payable:
- minimum lease payments:
- land and buildings 30,817 24,419
- furniture, equipment and motor vehicles 770 624
- computer equipment and software 284 62

- sub-leases receipts:
- land and buildings (1,668) (1,668)

Available-for-sale financial assets:
- fair value gains (2) (4)
- gain on sale - (2)

Exceptional items:
Business Transformation Programme of which:

- included in salaries and associated expenses 8,690 2,063
- included in premises costs - 36
- included in other operating costs 831 1,695

9,521 3,794
Acquisition and integration costs of which:

- included in salaries and associated expenses 2,562 760
- included in premises costs 387 59
- included in other operating costs 6,071 1,056

9,020 1,875

London premises consolidation costs 5,022 -
Loss on disposal of JLT Re Spain branch 372 -
Profit on partial disposal of JLT Energy (France) SAS (715) -
Profit on sale of premises in Colombia (348) (571)
Profit on disposal of JLT Spain branch - (235)

Total exceptional items 22,872 4,863

for the year ended 31st December 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.  Investment income

2013 2012
£'000 £'000

Interest receivable - fiduciary funds 4,529 5,744

Prior year investment income 5,744 6,760
Effect of:

- average cash balance variance (808) (543)
- interest yield variance (843) (776)
- foreign exchange variance 436 303

4,529 5,744

The Group’s investment income arises from its holdings of cash and investments relating to fiduciary funds. Equivalent average cash and investment balances
during the year amounted to £702 million (2012: £758 million) denominated principally in US dollars (48%), Sterling (13%) and Australian dollars (12%). 
The average return for 2013 was 0.60% (2012: 0.80%). Based upon average invested balances each 1% movement in the average achieved rate of return
would impact anticipated interest income by some £7.0 million.

5.  Finance income and costs
2013 2012
£'000 £'000

restated

Interest receivable - own funds 1,441 1,337
Investment income from fixed asset investments - 280
Interest expense:

- bank and other borrowings (11,658) (7,836)
- finance leases (24) (26)
- interest in respect of liability discounting (114) (223)

Pension financing:
- expected return on post employment scheme assets 22,940 22,157
- interest on post employment scheme liabilities (28,620) (27,744)

Net pension financing expense (5,680) (5,587)

Fair value gains on financial instruments:
- forward contracts: cash flow hedges - 4

Finance costs - net (16,035) (12,051)

Finance costs (17,476) (13,672)
Finance income 1,441 1,621

Finance costs - net (16,035) (12,051)
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6.  Employee information
2013 2012
£’000 £’000

restated
a) Salaries and associated expenses

Wages and salaries 451,131 399,029
Social security costs 44,027 39,792
Pension costs 30,698 26,369
Equity settled share-based payments:
- incentive schemes (LTIP, SESS, ESOS) 15,352 15,144
- Sharesave Schemes 463 758

15,815 15,902
Other staff costs 39,297 38,027

580,968 519,119

2013 2012

b) Analysis of employees
Monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year:
Geographical segment:
- UK 3,627 3,237
- Americas 1,235 1,135
- Australasia 891 865
- Asia 2,326 1,710
- Europe 181 175
- Rest of the World 35 20

8,295 7,142

Business segment:
- Risk & Insurance 4,975 4,635
- Employee Benefits 2,771 2,051
- Head Office & Other 549 456

8,295 7,142

2013 2012
£’000 £'000

c) Key management compensation
Salaries and short-term employee benefits 12,828 11,745
Post employment benefits 176 201
Other long-term benefits 406 848
Share-based payments 9,166 5,612
Termination benefits 933 1,299

23,509 19,705

for the year ended 31st December 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6.  Employee information continued

Key management personnel are defined as persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group
directly or indirectly, including any director of the Group. This represents the Group Board of Directors and the Group Executive Committee only.

The Group’s equity-settled share-based payments comprise the JLT Long Term Incentive Plan (2004/2013), Senior Executive Share Scheme, 
Executive Share Option Scheme and the Sharesave Schemes.

JLT Long Term Incentive Plan (2004/2013)
The Group operates the Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for Executive Directors and persons discharging managerial responsibility (PDMR’s).  
The scheme has been renewed in 2013. Awards under the scheme are granted in the form of nil-priced options and are satisfied using market-
purchased shares. The awards vest in full or in part depending on satisfaction of the performance conditions which are set out on pages 62 and 63 of
the remuneration report. The awards have a 3 year performance period and have a 10 year life from the date of grant.

Senior Executive Share Scheme
The Group operates a Senior Executive Share Scheme for senior management and employees. Awards under the scheme are granted in the form of 
nil-priced options and are satisfied using market-purchased shares. The majority of awards have no specific performance criteria attached, other than
the requirement that employees remain in employment with the Group. Certain awards have been granted with specific performance targets defined for
the individual executives. In general these require targets for revenue and profit growth to be met over the vesting period. The awards have a 10 year life
from the date of grant.

Executive Share Option Scheme
Options were granted at a fixed price (usually market price) and are exercisable after the vesting period (usually 3 years). Options are satisfied by the
issue of new shares or market-purchased shares. Some options carry performance conditions where they are only exercisable when earnings per share
is in excess of RPI for the three consecutive financial accounting periods preceding the date of exercise. The awards have a 10 year life from the date of
grant. This scheme is now closed for new grants and options were last granted under this scheme on 29th September 2006.

Sharesave Schemes
The Sharesave Schemes is open to all employees and are exercised after either 3 or 5 years from the date of grant. Options are satisfied by the issue of
new shares or market-purchased shares. The price at which options are offered is not less than 80% of the market price on the date preceding the date
of invitation. All Sharesave Schemes options have no performance criteria attached, other than the requirement that the employee remains in
employment with the Group. All options must be exercised within 6 months of the vesting date.

Fair value of awards
Under IFRS 2 the fair value of awards granted during the year, calculated using a Black-Scholes model, is set out below:

Black-Scholes model assumptions
Exercise Share price on Dividend Risk free Fair value of

price Performance grant date Volatility yield Maturity interest rate one award
pence period pence % % years % pence

JLT Long Term Incentive Plan (2013) / 
Senior Executive Share Scheme
2013 28 March - 2013 - 18 851.00 19.96 - 1 - 5 0.70 851.00
2013 8 May - 2013 - 16 877.50 20.04 - 3 0.74 877.50
2013 15 May - 2013 - 16 914.50 19.50 - 3 0.85 914.50
2013 30 September - 2013 - 18 945.00 18.96 - 1 - 5 1.32 945.00

The option holders who have awards under the Senior Executive Share Scheme also receive payments equating to the dividends payable on their
shares (subject to meeting the performance criteria). Under the Black-Scholes model if the dividend yield is assumed to be zero then the fair value will
equal the share price at date of grant.

The volatility has been calculated based on the historical share price of the Company, using a 3 year term.

All options granted under the share option schemes are conditional upon the employees remaining in the Group’s employment during the vesting period
of the option, the actual period varies according to the scheme in which the employee participates. In calculating the cost of options granted, a factor is
included to take account of anticipated lapse rates. For Executive Share Option and Sharesave Schemes this is 20%. For the JLT Long Term Incentive
Plan (2004/2013) and the Senior Executive Share Scheme it is nil as both are issued with no cost to the employee.
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6.  Employee information continued
Movement in number of options

Options Options Weighted Options
outstanding Granted/ outstanding average exercisable Remaining
at 1st Jan 13 adjustments Lapsed Exercised at 31st Dec 13 exercise (sale) at 31st Dec 13 contractual

number number number number number price (p) number life years
JLT Long Term Incentive Plan (2004/2013) 2,961,146 750,100 (214,186) (1,309,246) 2,187,814 870.70 137,514 8.05
Senior Executive Share Scheme 5,977,101 1,658,937 (377,386) (1,699,924) 5,558,728 882.15 872,993 7.64
Executive Share Option Scheme 943,277 - (15,000) (433,573) 494,704 878.61 494,704 1.78
Sharesave Schemes 1,572,857 - (54,322) (1,058,515) 460,020 914.83 14,392 1.95

Total 11,454,381 2,409,037 (660,894) (4,501,258) 8,701,266 886.16 1,519,603 7.11

Movement in number of options
Options Options Weighted Options

outstanding Granted/ outstanding average exercisable Remaining
at 1st Jan 12 adjustments Lapsed Exercised at 31st Dec 12 exercise (sale) at 31st Dec 12 contractual

number number number number number price (p) number life years
JLT Long Term Incentive Plan (2004) 3,332,914 878,700 (228,368) (1,022,100) 2,961,146 767.40 312,014 7.92
Senior Executive Share Scheme 5,832,568 1,756,596 (218,738) (1,393,325) 5,977,101 711.40 1,053,595 7.64
Executive Share Option Scheme 1,427,128 - (57,093) (426,758) 943,277 728.80 943,277 2.45
Sharesave Schemes 1,792,369 - (129,935) (89,577) 1,572,857 699.90 12,315 1.60

Total 12,384,979 2,635,296 (634,134) (2,931,760) 11,454,381 733.10 2,321,201 6.46

Options granted prior to 7th November 2002
Movement in number of options

Options Options Weighted
outstanding Granted/ outstanding average Remaining
at 1st Jan 12 adjustments Lapsed Exercised at 31st Dec 12 exercise (sale) contractual

number number number number number price (p) life years
Senior Executive Share Scheme 7,414 - - (7,414) - 694.00 -
Executive Share Option Scheme 261,034 - (18,500) (242,534) - 743.50 -

Total 268,448 - (18,500) (249,948) - 742.03 -

The weighted average option costs for 2012 were as follows:

Executive Share Option Scheme 612.17 n/a 612.09 613.20 n/a

Range of option prices of outstanding awards
The outstanding awards at 31st December 2013 have the following option prices and weighted average remaining contractual life:

Executive Share Option Scheme Sharesave Schemes
Number Years Number Years

£3.50-£4.00 391,014 1.91 - -
£4.00-£4.50 103,690 1.26 460,020 1.95

494,704 1.78 460,020 1.95

The LTIP and SESS awards are nil priced and therefore have not been analysed above.

for the year ended 31st December 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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7. Services provided by the Company’s auditor and its associates
During the year the Group (including its overseas subsidiaries) obtained the following services from the Company's auditor and its associates:

2013 2012
£'000 £'000

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the parent Company and consolidated financial statements 208 211

Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for other services:
- the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 1,900 1,757
- audit related assurance services 204 154
- tax compliance services 167 139
- tax advisory services 63 24
- other assurance services 22 88
- corporate finance services - 15
- other non-audit services 22 23

2,586 2,411

In addition to the above, fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for audit services supplied to the Company’s associated pension
schemes amounted to £15,000 (2012: £14,000).

The Audit & Risk Committee has a policy on the use of the external auditors for non-audit services to ensure that the auditor's independence is maintained
and that appropriate approvals are sought for non-audit services depending upon their nature and value. Each year a limit is set on the total fees that can
be paid to the external auditor in relation to non-audit services. For 2013 the Audit & Risk Committee has set this limit at £1 million (2012: £1 million). 

8.  Income tax expense
2013 2012
£'000 £'000

restated

Current tax expense
Current year 41,510 44,231
Adjustments in respect of prior years 918 (274)

42,428 43,957

Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (514) (3,072) 
Reduction in tax rate 1,610 859
Adjustments in respect of prior years (1,735) (1,930)

(639) (4,143)

Total income tax expense 41,789 39,814

The total income tax expense in the income statement of £41,789,000 (2012: £39,814,000) includes a tax credit on exceptional items of £5,012,000 (2012:
£1,021,000).  

The UK Government has announced various measures in relation to UK corporation tax including a 1% reduction in the headline rate of corporation tax from
April 2013, and reductions of 2% in 2014 and 1% in 2015. These reductions reduce the UK tax rate from 24% to 20%. As at 31st December 2013 the 1% rate
reduction to 23% is already in force and the subsequent 2% rate and 1% rate reductions have been enacted. The impact of the 2% and the 1% reductions
have therefore been incorporated into the income tax charge for the year ended 31st December 2013.  
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8.  Income tax expense continued
The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate of the home country of the Company 
as follows:

2013 2012
£'000 £'000

restated

Profit before taxation 154,564 151,541

Tax calculated at UK Corporation Tax rate of 23.25% (2012: 24.5%) 35,936 37,128
Non-deductible expenses* 4,783 2,968
Tax losses not previously recognised (102) (64)
Adjustments in respect of prior years (817) (2,204)
Effect of UK and non-UK tax rate differences 2,284 3,204
Effect of reduction in UK tax rate 1,590 808
Tax on associates (1,885) (2,026)

Total income tax expense 41,789 39,814

* The non-deductible expenses relate principally to non-deductible entertainment expenses.

9.  Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the owners of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, excluding unallocated shares held by the Trustees of the Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust and the Qualifying Employee Share Ownership
Trust.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

Additionally basic and diluted earnings per share are also calculated based on underlying earnings attributable to the owners of the parent.

A reconciliation of earnings is set out below.
2013 2012

No. of shares No. of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 218,951,874 218,829,889
Effect of outstanding share options 899,435 1,059,100

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted earnings per share 219,851,309 219,888,989

2013 2012 
restated

Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
pence per pence per pence per pence per

£’000 share share £’000 share share

Earnings reconciliation

Underlying profit after taxation
and non-controlling interests 119,820 54.7 54.5 105,995 48.4 48.2

Exceptional items before tax (22,872) (4,863)
Taxation thereon 5,012 1,021

(17,860) (8.1) (8.1) (3,842) (1.7) (1.7)

Profit attributable to the owners of the parent 101,960 46.6 46.4 102,153 46.7 46.5

10.  Dividends
2013 2012
£'000 £'000

Final dividend in respect of 2012 of 15.9p per share (2011: 14.8p) 34,976 32,624
Less: adjustment* (111) (19)

34,865 32,605
Interim dividend in respect of 2013 of 10.1p per share (2012: 9.6p) 22,227 20,966

57,092 53,571

* Adjustment relating to dividend equivalents accrued in respect of various performance related share awards and long-term incentive plans not currently anticipated to fully vest. The
2012 analysis has been restated to better reflect this adjustment.

A final dividend in respect of 2013 of 17.1p per share (2012: 15.9p) amounting to a total of £37,438,000 (2012: £34,781,000) is proposed by the Board.
The dividend proposed will not be accounted for until it has been approved at the Annual General Meeting on 29th April 2014.

for the year ended 31st December 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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11.  Goodwill
Impairment Net carrying

Gross amount losses amount
£'000 £'000 £'000

At 31st December 2013
Opening net book amount 280,975 (4,587) 276,388
Exchange differences (13,219) 11 (13,208)
Acquisitions 166,270 - 166,270

Closing net book amount 434,026 (4,576) 429,450

At 31st December 2012
Opening net book amount 264,618 (4,708) 259,910
Exchange differences (2,526) 121 (2,405)
Acquisitions 18,883 - 18,883

Closing net book amount 280,975 (4,587) 276,388

Impairment tests for goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash generating units (CGUs) identified according to country of operation and business segment. A summary of the goodwill
allocation is presented below:

Risk & Employee
Insurance Benefits Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

At 31st December 2013
Australasia 17,419 - 17,419
Asia 19,632 4,528 24,160
UK and Europe 187,384 67,961 255,345
Americas 127,725 740 128,465
Africa - 4,061 4,061

352,160 77,290 429,450

At 31st December 2012
Australasia 20,220 - 20,220
Asia 10,695 3,042 13,737
UK and Europe 110,269 67,973 178,242
Americas 63,183 1,006 64,189

204,367 72,021 276,388

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five year period and are discounted using the weighted average cost of capital.

Cash flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations for each CGU with significant goodwill in comparison to the Group’s total are shown below:

Employee
Risk & Insurance Benefits

Latin UK and
Key assumption used for value-in-use calculations JLT Towers Re JLT Specialty America Ireland Other

At 31st December 2013
Growth rate (1) - % 2.87 2.13 4.73 1.98 3.19
Discount rate (2) - % 5.59 5.68 10.56 5.57 6.79
At 31st December 2012
Growth rate (1) - % 2.03 2.24 4.93 2.18 3.19
Discount rate (2) - % 6.40 6.46 11.20 6.43 7.30
1)  Average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond five years.
2)  Pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections.

The key assumptions used in value-in-use calculations were:
The budgeted trading profit growth: management determines budgeted trading profit based on past experience and its expectation for market development.

The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segment and country of operation. The weighted average growth rates used
are consistent with long-term economic forecasts in the countries of operation.
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12.  Other intangible assets
Capitalised
employment

Computer contract
software payments Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

At 31st December 2013
Opening net book value 40,387 9,113 5,899 55,399
Exchange differences (318) (284) (174) (776)
Additions 21,674 5,680 - 27,354
Companies acquired 1,088 - 6,154 7,242
Companies disposed (40) - - (40)
Amortisation charge (12,240) (6,754) (1,093) (20,087)

Closing net book value 50,551 7,755 10,786 69,092

At 31st December 2013
Cost 112,155 29,242 17,124 158,521
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (61,604) (21,487) (6,338) (89,429)

Closing net book value 50,551 7,755 10,786 69,092

At 31st December 2012
Opening net book value 32,448 14,795 4,227 51,470
Exchange differences (30) (105) (7) (142)
Additions 18,153 2,219 299 20,671
Companies acquired 18 - 2,174 2,192
Amortisation charge (10,202) (7,796) (794) (18,792)

Closing net book value 40,387 9,113 5,899 55,399

At 31st December 2012
Cost 90,931 25,121 11,332 127,384
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (50,544) (16,008) (5,433) (71,985)

Closing net book value 40,387 9,113 5,899 55,399

At 31st December 2011
Cost 73,207 32,643 8,837 114,687
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (40,759) (17,848) (4,610) (63,217)

Closing net book value 32,448 14,795 4,227 51,470

Additions to computer software during 2013 include £9,868,000 of capitalised costs in respect of internal developments (2012: £12,480,000).

for the year ended 31st December 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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13.  Property, plant and equipment
Land Leasehold Furniture & Motor

& buildings improvements equipment vehicles Total
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

At 31st December 2013
Opening net book amount 359 15,277 8,902 3,689 28,227
Exchange differences (6) (979) (903) (399) (2,287)
Additions 42 32,332 10,056 2,358 44,788
Companies acquired - 218 680 27 925
Companies disposed - - (6) (24) (30)
Disposals - (6) (32) (536) (574)
Depreciation charge (36) (5,412) (4,591) (1,295) (11,334)

Closing net book amount 359 41,430 14,106 3,820 59,715

At 31st December 2013
Cost 570 75,827 80,822 6,738 163,957
Accumulated depreciation (211) (34,397) (66,716) (2,918) (104,242)

Closing net book amount 359 41,430 14,106 3,820 59,715

At 31st December 2012
Opening net book amount 450 12,140 9,117 3,921 25,628
Exchange differences 5 (217) (198) (67) (477)
Additions 74 7,851 3,170 1,725 12,820
Companies acquired - 315 882 68 1,265
Companies disposed - - (24) - (24)
Disposals (126) (6) (22) (790) (944)
Depreciation charge (44) (4,806) (4,023) (1,168) (10,041)

Closing net book amount 359 15,277 8,902 3,689 28,227

At 31st December 2012
Cost 548 46,942 77,785 6,804 132,079
Accumulated depreciation (189) (31,665) (68,883) (3,115) (103,852)

Closing net book amount 359 15,277 8,902 3,689 28,227

At 31st December 2011
Cost 691 39,706 73,575 6,997 120,969
Accumulated depreciation (241) (27,566) (64,458) (3,076) (95,341)

Closing net book amount 450 12,140 9,117 3,921 25,628

The net book value of property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is as follows:
2013 2012
£'000 £'000

Furniture, equipment and motor vehicles 619 305
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14.  Investments in associates
£'000

At 31st December 2013
Opening net book amount 91,167
Exchange differences 2,134
Share of results 8,106
Dividends (1,029)
Acquisition 1,067

Closing net book amount 101,445

At 31st December 2013
Cost 101,509
Provisions (64)

Closing net book amount 101,445

At 31st December 2012
Opening net book amount 72,385
Exchange differences (2,341)
Share of results 8,271
Dividends (1,838)
Acquisition 14,690

Closing net book amount 91,167

At 31st December 2012
Cost 91,231
Provisions (64)

Closing net book amount 91,167

At 31st December 2011
Cost 72,859
Provisions (474)

Closing net book amount 72,385

No impairment losses have been incurred during the year.
The Group's interest in its principal associate Milestone, the holding company of Siaci Saint Honoré, is as follows:

2013 2012
£'000 £'000

Assets 510,810 490,331
Liabilities (350,651) (348,401)
Turnover 174,650 152,636
Net profit 19,129 20,387
Percentage held 26.18% 26.18%
Country of incorporation France France

for the year ended 31st December 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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15.  Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are categorised according to their nature into one of two categories:

1) Investments and deposits consist mainly of fixed term deposits, bonds and certificates of deposit. These investments are held at fair value and are
classified between current and non-current assets according to the maturity date.

2) Other investments include securities and other investments held for strategic purposes. These investments are held at fair value unless a fair value
cannot be accurately determined in which case they are held at cost less any provision for impairment.

Other Investments
investments & deposits Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

At 1st January 2013 3,104 14,546 17,650
Exchange differences (202) (2,897) (3,099)
Additions 3,264 6,439 9,703
Companies acquired 1,003 - 1,003
Disposals/maturities (969) (269) (1,238)
Revaluation gain (included within equity) 55 - 55
Amounts to be written off (307) - (307)

At 31st December 2013 5,948 17,819 23,767

Analysis of available-for-sale financial assets
Current - 1,421 1,421
Non-current 5,948 16,398 22,346

At 31st December 2013 5,948 17,819 23,767

Available-for-sale investments & deposits 
Fiduciary 16,283
Own funds 1,536

At 31st December 2013 17,819

At 1st January 2012 3,025 159 3,184
Exchange differences 30 (307) (277)
Additions - 14,852 14,852
Disposals/maturities - (158) (158)
Revaluation gain (included within equity) 49 - 49

At 31st December 2012 3,104 14,546 17,650

Analysis of available-for-sale financial assets
Current - 252 252
Non-current 3,104 14,294 17,398

At 31st December 2012 3,104 14,546 17,650

Available-for-sale investments & deposits 
Fiduciary 14,165
Own funds 381

At 31st December 2012 14,546

The credit quality of available-for-sale investments and deposits is assessed by reference to external credit ratings, where available and other current and
historical credit data including counterparty default rates. This is summarised as follows:

2013 2012
£'000 £'000

AA 16,398 14,294
AA/A - 148
A 4 -
Other 1,417 104

Total 17,819 14,546
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16.  Derivative financial instruments
At 31st December 2013 At 31st December 2012
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Interest rate swaps - fair value hedges 2,990 (14,382) 7,738 (8,102)
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges 23,742 (18,505) 22,920 (8,691)

Total 26,732 (32,887) 30,658 (16,793)

Current 9,826 (2,344) 9,107 (2,094)
Non-current 16,906 (30,543) 21,551 (14,699)

Total 26,732 (32,887) 30,658 (16,793)

The credit quality of counterparties with whom derivative financial assets are held is assessed by reference to external credit ratings, where available, and other
current and historical credit data including counterparty default rates. This is summarised as follows:

2013 2012
£’000 £’000

AA 1,721 11,953
AA/A 13,304 1,963
A 11,707 16,742

Total 26,732 30,658

Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the Group's derivative financial instruments, which will be settled on a gross basis, into relevant maturity groupings based upon the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to contractual maturity. The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Less than Greater than
1 year 1 year

At 31st December 2013 £’000 £’000

Forward foreign exchange contracts
Outflow (243,457) (474,231)
Inflow 256,158 502,150

At 31st December 2012

Forward foreign exchange contracts
Outflow (230,341) (565,808)
Inflow 241,703 587,691

The Group’s treasury policies are approved by the Board and are implemented by a
centralised treasury department. The treasury department operates within a
framework of policies and procedures that establish specific guidelines to manage
currency risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk and the use of counterparties and
financial instruments to manage these. The treasury department is subject to regular
internal audit.

The Group uses various derivative instruments including forward foreign exchange
contracts, interest rate swaps and, from time to time, foreign currency collars and
options to manage the risks arising from variations in currency and interest rates.
Derivative instruments purchased are primarily denominated in the currencies of the
Group’s main markets. 

Where forward foreign exchange contracts have been entered into to manage
currency risk, they are designated as hedges of currency risk on specific future cash
flows, and qualify as highly probable transactions for which hedge accounting is
applied. The Group anticipates that hedge accounting requirements will continue to
be met on its foreign currency and interest rate hedging activities and that no
material ineffectiveness will arise which will result in gains or losses being recognised
through the income statement.

The fair value of financial derivatives based upon market values as at 31st December
2013 and designated as effective cash flow hedges was an asset of £5.2 million and
has been deferred in equity (2012: asset of £14.2 million). Gains and losses arising
on derivative instruments outstanding as at 31st December 2013 will be released to
the income statement at various dates up to:

i) 38 months in respect of cash flow hedges on currency denominated UK
earnings.

ii) 12 years in respect of specific hedges on USD denominated long-term debt
drawn under the Group’s USD private placement programme. 

No material amounts were transferred to the income statement during the current or
prior year in respect of the fair value of financial derivatives.
Transactions maturing within 12 months of the balance sheet date are classified in
current maturities. Transactions maturing in a period in excess of 12 months of the
balance sheet date are classified as non-current maturities.

a) Forward foreign exchange contracts
The Group’s major currency transaction currency exposure arises in USD and
the Group continues to adopt a prudent approach in actively managing this
exposure. As at 31st December 2013 the Group had outstanding foreign
exchange contracts, principally in USD, amounting to a principal value of
£758,308,000 (2012: £829,394,000).

b) Interest rate swaps 
The Group uses interest rate hedges, principally interest rate swaps, to mitigate
the impact of changes in interest rates. The notional principal amount of
outstanding cross currency interest rate swaps as at 31st December 2013 was
USD375,000,000 (2012: USD375,000,000). A net loss of £11.4 million on these
instruments was offset by a fair value gain of £11.4 million on the private
placement loans which was recognised in the income statement in the year.

c) Price risk
The Group does not have a material exposure to commodity price risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of the
derivatives in the balance sheet.

for the year ended 31st December 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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17.  Trade and other receivables
2013 2012
£'000 £'000

Trade receivables 284,748 235,368
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables (11,375) (11,029)

Trade receivables - net 273,373 224,339
Other receivables 125,090 110,052
Prepayments 12,965 14,061

411,428 348,452

As at 31st December 2013, the Group had exposures to individual trade counterparties within trade receivables. In accordance with Group policy, Group
operating companies continually monitor exposures against credit limits and concentration of risk. No individual trade counterparty credit exposure is considered
significant in the ordinary course of trading activity. Management does not expect any significant losses from non-performance by trade counterparties that have
not been provided for.

Movements on the Group provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:
2013 2012
£'000 £'000

At 1st January (11,029) (10,516)
Currency translation adjustments 151 337
Provisions acquired (773) (1,812)
Provisions for impairment of trade receivables (2,304) (1,247)
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible 1,076 843
Unused amounts reversed 1,504 1,366

At 31st December (11,375) (11,029)

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included in 'other operating costs' in the income statement. The other classes within
trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The following table sets out details of the age of trade receivables that are not overdue as well as an analysis of overdue amounts impaired and provided for.

Trade Provision for Net trade
receivables impairment receivables

At 31st December 2013 £’000 £’000 £’000

Not overdue 207,304 - 207,304
Past due not more than three months 47,234 (129) 47,105
Past due more than three months and not more than six months 13,246 (1,193) 12,053
Past due more than six months and not more than one year 9,357 (2,446) 6,911
Past due more than one year 7,607 (7,607) -

284,748 (11,375) 273,373

Trade Provision for Net trade
receivables impairment receivables

At 31st December 2012 £’000 £’000 £’000

Not overdue 167,263 - 167,263
Past due not more than three months 41,851 (466) 41,385
Past due more than three months and not more than six months 14,864 (1,544) 13,320
Past due more than six months and not more than one year 5,485 (3,114) 2,371
Past due more than one year 5,905 (5,905) -

235,368 (11,029) 224,339
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18.  Cash and cash equivalents
2013 2012
£'000 £'000

Cash at bank and in hand 371,435 297,031
Short-term bank deposits 381,729 327,290

753,164 624,321

Fiduciary funds 639,392 513,371
Own funds 113,772 110,950

753,164 624,321

Fiduciary funds represent client money held in the form of premiums due to underwriters, claims paid by insurers and due to policyholders, and funds held to
defray commissions and other income. Fiduciary funds are not available for general corporate purposes.

The credit quality of cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings, where available and other
current and historical credit data including counterparty default rates. This is summarised as follows:

2013 2012
£'000 £'000

AAA 34,734 30,055
AA 267,384 217,197
AA/A 81,804 87,577
A 359,164 283,490
Other 10,078 6,002

Total 753,164 624,321

The effective interest rate in respect of short-term deposits was 0.50% (2012: 0.60%). These deposits have an average maturity of 29 days (2012: 28 days).

19.  Trade and other payables
2013 2012
£'000 £'000

Insurance payables 655,675 527,536
Social security and other taxes 17,460 15,658
Other payables 125,755 100,954
Accruals and deferred income 97,657 85,608
Deferred and contingent consideration 13,048 7,053

909,595 736,809

All payables are considered current.

for the year ended 31st December 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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20.  Financial instruments by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Derivatives
Loans and used for Available-

At 31st December 2013 receivables hedging for-sale Total
Assets per balance sheet £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Available-for-sale financial assets - - 23,767 23,767
Derivative financial instruments - 26,732 - 26,732
Trade and other receivables (a) 398,463 - - 398,463
Cash and cash equivalents 753,164 - - 753,164

Total 1,151,627 26,732 23,767 1,202,126

Derivatives Other
used for financial
hedging liabilities Total

Liabilities per balance sheet £’000 £’000 £’000
Borrowings - (460,183) (460,183)
Trade and other payables (b) - (811,938) (811,938)
Derivative financial instruments (32,887) - (32,887)

Total (32,887) (1,272,121) (1,305,008)

Derivatives
Loans and used for Available-

At 31st December 2012 receivables hedging for-sale Total
Assets per balance sheet £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Available-for-sale financial assets - - 17,650 17,650
Derivative financial instruments - 30,658 - 30,658
Trade and other receivables (a) 334,391 - - 334,391
Cash and cash equivalents 624,321 - - 624,321

Total 958,712 30,658 17,650 1,007,020

Derivatives Other
used for financial
hedging liabilities Total

Liabilities per balance sheet £’000 £’000 £’000

Borrowings - (253,656) (253,656)
Trade and other payables (b) - (651,201) (651,201)
Derivative financial instruments (16,793) - (16,793)

Total (16,793) (904,857) (921,650)

(a) Prepayments are excluded from the trade and other receivables balance, as this analysis is required only for financial instruments.
(b) Non-financial liabilities are excluded from the trade and other payables balance, as this analysis is required only for financial instruments.
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20.  Financial instruments by category continued

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 31st December 2013 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Assets
Derivatives used for hedging - 26,732 - 26,732
Available-for-sale financial assets

- equity securities 1,659 - 4,029 5,688
- debt investments 260 - - 260
- fixed deposits 17,819 - - 17,819

Total assets 19,738 26,732 4,029 50,499

Liabilities
Deferred and contingent consideration - - (13,048) (13,048)
Derivatives used for hedging - (32,887) - (32,887)

Total liabilities - (32,887) (13,048) (45,935)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 31st December 2012 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Assets
Derivatives used for hedging - 30,658 - 30,658
Available-for-sale financial assets

- equity securities 620 - 2,207 2,827
- debt investments 277 - - 277
- fixed deposits 14,546 - - 14,546

Total assets 15,443 30,658 2,207 48,308

Liabilities
Deferred and contingent consideration - - (7,053) (7,053)
Derivatives used for hedging - (16,793) - (16,793)

Total liabilities - (16,793) (7,053) (23,846)

Apart from where disclosed, there are no differences between the fair value and the carrying value of financial assets and liabilities.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis. These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using internal and
external models. These models maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

During the year there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

In respect of deferred and contingent consideration, unobservable inputs include management’s assessment of the expected future performance of relevant
acquired businesses.

A reconciliation of the movements in level 3 is provided below:

Assets Liabilities
Level 3 Level 3
£'000 £'000

At 1st January 2013 2,207 (7,053)
Exchange differences (196) 471
Additions 3,248 -
Companies acquired 5 (9,383)
Disposals (969) -
Utilised in the year - 2,999
Charged to income statement (266) (82)

At 31st December 2013 4,029 (13,048)

Of the £266,000 charged to the income statement, £255,000 is included in net finance costs and £11,000 in other operating costs.

The £82,000 is included in net finance costs.

for the year ended 31st December 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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21.  Borrowings
2013 2012

£'000 £'000

Current

Bank overdraft 12,508 16,493

Unsecured loan notes - 405

Bank borrowings 399 -

Finance lease liabilities 88 56

12,995 16,954

Non current

Unsecured loan notes 214,006 76,227

Bank borrowing 232,656 160,267

Finance lease liabilities 526 208

447,188 236,702

Total borrowings 460,183 253,656

The borrowings include secured liabilities (leases) of £614,000 (2012: £264,000). 

The exposure of the borrowings of the Group to interest rate changes and the periods in which the borrowings reprice are as follows:

6 months 6-12 Over 
or less months 1-5 years 5 years Fixed rate Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

At 31st December 2013 420,069 - 526 - 39,588 460,183

At 31st December 2012 177,463 - 208 - 75,985 253,656

Drawings under the Group’s private placement programme totalling £174.4 million are subject to fixed coupon rates and have been swapped into
LIBOR based floating rates using Interest Rates Swaps.

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows:
2013 2012
£'000 £'000

Bank overdraft 0.09% -
Unsecured loan notes - private placement 3.09% 3.15%
Unsecured loan notes - other - 0.50%
Bank borrowings 2.26% 2.02%
Finance lease liabilities 5.64% 5.01%

The carrying amounts and fair values of borrowings are as follows:
Carrying Fair
amount value
2013 2013
£'000 £'000

Current
Bank overdraft 12,508 12,508
Bank borrowings 399 399
Finance lease liabilities 88 88

12,995 12,995

Non-current
Unsecured loan notes 214,006 214,006
Bank borrowings 232,656 232,656
Finance lease liabilities 526 526

447,188 447,188

Total borrowings 460,183 460,183
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21.  Borrowings continued

Carrying Fair
amount value
2012 2012
£'000 £'000

Current
Bank overdraft 16,493 16,493
Unsecured loan notes 405 405
Finance lease liabilities 56 56

16,954 16,954

Non-current
Unsecured loan notes 76,227 76,227
Bank borrowings 160,267 160,267
Finance lease liabilities 208 208

236,702 236,702

Total borrowings 253,656 253,656

Maturity of non-current borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities):
2013 2012
£'000 £'000

Between 1 and 2 years 232,259 -
Between 2 and 3 years - 160,267
Between 3 and 4 years 26,282 -
Between 4 and 5 years - 27,756
Over 5 years 188,121 48,471

446,662 236,494

Finance lease liabilities - minimum lease payments:
2013 2012
£'000 £'000

No later than 1 year 114 68
Later than 1 year and no later than 2 years 278 86
Later than 2 years and no later than 3 years 113 38
Later than 3 years and no later than 4 years 106 37
Later than 4 years and no later than 5 years 47 30
Later than 5 years 23 45

681 304

Future finance charges on finance leases (67) (40)

Present value of finance lease liabilities 614 264

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows: 2013 2012
£'000 £'000

No later than 1 year 88 56
Later than 1 year and no later than 2 years 258 73
Later than 2 years and no later than 3 years 100 31
Later than 3 years and no later than 4 years 100 33
Later than 4 years and no later than 5 years 45 27
Later than 5 years 23 44

614 264

Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the lessor in the event of default.

for the year ended 31st December 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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21.  Borrowings continued

The carrying amount of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

2013 2012
£'000 £'000

Sterling 244,811 177,002
US Dollar 214,006 75,985
Other currencies 1,366 669

460,183 253,656

Borrowing facilities
The Group has undrawn committed borrowing facilities of:

2013 2012
£'000 £'000

Floating rate
- expiring beyond one year 116,000 108,000

116,000 108,000

Facilities expiring beyond one year relate to:

a) the committed unsecured £300 million revolving credit facilities in the name of JIB Group Limited which mature in December 2015 

b) the committed unsecured £50 million revolving credit facility in the name of JIB Group Limited which matures in November 2016 

As at the balance sheet date, drawings under revolving credit facilities are subject to a margin of 175 basis points above the relevant LIBOR interest rate and
additionally incur commitment fees on the undrawn facility. 

c) senior unsecured loan notes totalling USD125 million issued by JIB Group Limited under the Group's 2010 private placement programme with maturities of
USD42 million (£25.4 million) in September 2017, USD42 million (£25.4 million) in September 2020 and USD41 million (£24.8 million) in September 2022.
Drawings under the Group's USD125 million private placement programme swapped into LIBOR based floating rates are subject to an equivalent spread
over LIBOR of between 227 and 238 basis points; and 

d) senior unsecured loan notes totalling USD250m issued by JIB Group Limited under the Group’s 2012 private placement programme with maturities of
USD40 million (£24.2 million) in January 2020 with a coupon of 3.21%, USD140 million (£84.5 million) in January 2023 with a coupon of 3.78% and USD70
million (£42.3 million) in January 2025 with a coupon of 3.93%. The proceeds of the additional private placement in January 2013 have been swapped into
sterling at LIBOR based floating and fixed rates and used to refinance existing shorter term borrowings under the Group's revolving credit facility with
relationship banks. Drawings under the Group’s USD250m private placement swapped into LIBOR based floating rates are subject to equivalent spread
over LIBOR of between 205 and 220 basis points.

The facilities' terms and conditions include typical debt and interest cover covenants with which the Group expects to continue to comply.
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22.  Deferred income taxes
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.

The following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

Assets Liabilities Net
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Property, plant and equipment 2,195 4,555 (604) (405) 1,591 4,150
Provisions 9,919 8,172 (754) (1,671) 9,165 6,501
Losses 3,855 5,556 (1,577) (2,316) 2,278 3,240
Deferred income 296 22 (6,134) (2,250) (5,838) (2,228)
Other intangibles 1,376 1,339 (49) (48) 1,327 1,291
Goodwill 530 240 (3,074) (3,282) (2,544) (3,042)
Other 2,237 1,254 (1,514) (1,475) 723 (221)
Pensions 25,289 26,473 (319) - 24,970 26,473
Share based payments 8,565 9,391 - - 8,565 9,391
Fair values - - (970) (3,312) (970) (3,312) 

Tax assets/(liabilities) 54,262 57,002 (14,995) (14,759) 39,267 42,243
Set off of tax (2,453) (2,343) 2,453 2,343 - -

Net tax assets/(liabilities) 51,809 54,659 (12,542) (12,416) 39,267 42,243

At 1st Credit/ Credit/ Acquisitions/ At 31st 
January Exchange (charge) (charge) disposals December

2013 differences to income to equity of sub 2013
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Accelerated tax depreciation 4,150 26 (2,677) - 92 1,591
Provisions 6,501 (665) 2,853 - 476 9,165
Losses 3,240 (223) (739) - - 2,278
Deferred income (2,228) 569 (289) - (3,890) (5,838)
Other intangibles 1,291 1 35 - - 1,327
Goodwill (3,042) (31) 529 - - (2,544)
Other (221) (163) 1,046 - 61 723
Pensions 26,473 50 1,031 (2,584) - 24,970
Share based payments 9,391 - (1,150) 324 - 8,565
Fair values (3,312) - - 2,342 - (970)

Net tax assets/(liabilities) 42,243 (436) 639 82 (3,261) 39,267

The total current and deferred income tax charged to equity during the year is as follows:

At 1st Credit/ At 31st
January (charge) December

2013 to equity 2013
£'000 £'000 £'000

Pensions 31,936 1,364 33,300
Share based payments 8,942 2,492 11,434
Fair values:

- foreign exchange (3,228) 2,982 (246)
- available-for-sale (34) (7) (41)

(3,262) 2,975 (287)

37,616 6,831 44,447

for the year ended 31st December 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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22.  Deferred income taxes continued
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits through the future taxable profits is considered
probable. A deferred tax asset relating to tax losses of £2,475,000 (2012: £3,337,000) has not been recognised in the balance sheet in respect of
certain of the Group's operations, principally Singapore and Japan, where it is considered likely that the losses will expire before use. A deferred tax
asset relating to other deferred tax balances of £3,360,000 (2012: £6,576,000) has not been recognised in the balance sheet in respect of certain of
the Group's overseas operations, principally the US, where it is considered that the asset is unlikely to be realised in the short term.

Deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised on temporary differences of £47 million (2012: £44 million) representing the unremitted earnings of
subsidiaries and joint ventures. Such amounts are permanently reinvested. Deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised on temporary differences
of nil (2012: nil) representing unremitted earnings of associates. 

23.  Provisions for liabilities and charges
Property
related Litigation

provisions provisions Other Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

At 1st January 2013 6,863 8,308 959 16,130
Exchange differences - (17) - (17)
Reclassification from current assets/liabilities 24 - - 24
Utilised in the year (1,404) (5,435) (41) (6,880)
Charged/(credited) to the income statement 1,392 3,498 (211) 4,679
Interest charge 32 - - 32
Companies acquired 1,142 - - 1,142

At 31st December 2013 8,049 6,354 707 15,110

At 1st January 2012 6,604 6,112 537 13,253
Exchange differences (1) (57) - (58)
Utilised in the year (966) (2,448) (66) (3,480)
Charged to the income statement 563 4,476 61 5,100
Interest charge 58 - - 58
Companies acquired 605 225 427 1,257

At 31st December 2012 6,863 8,308 959 16,130

2013 2012
£'000 £'000

Analysis of total provisions
Current - to be utilised within one year 10,158 12,241
Non-current - to be utilised in more than one year 4,952 3,889

15,110 16,130

Property related provisions
The Group recognises a provision for onerous contracts when the expected benefits to be derived from a contract are less than the unavoidable costs
of meeting the obligations under the contract. Provision is made for the future rental cost of vacant property and expected dilapidation expenses. In
calculating the provision required, account is taken of the duration of the lease and any recovery of cost achievable from subletting. Property
provisions occur principally in the UK and relate to a variety of lease commitments. The longest lease terms for the UK is 2022.

Litigation provisions
At any point in time the Group can be involved in a variety of litigation issues. A provision is established in respect of such issues when it is probable
that the liability has been incurred and the amount of the liability can be reasonably estimated. The Group analyses its litigation exposures based on
available information, including external legal consultation where appropriate, to assess its potential liability. Where appropriate the Group also provides
for the cost of defending or initiating such matters. 
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23.  Provisions for liabilities and charges continued
Where a litigation provision has been made it is stated gross of any third party recovery. All such recoveries are included as “other receivables” 
within trade and other receivables. At 31st December 2013, in connection with certain litigation matters, the Group’s litigation provisions include an
amount of £0.1million (2012: £0.1million) to reflect this gross basis and the corresponding insurance recovery has been included within trade and
other receivables. This presentation has had no effect on the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31st December 2013 (2012: nil).

Other
Other provisions include provision for clawback of commission which arises on certain types of Employee Benefit contracts.

24.  Share capital and premium
Ordinary Share

Number of shares premium Total
shares £'000 £'000 £'000

Allotted, called up and fully paid
At 1st January 2012 219,212,508 10,960 99,670 110,630
Allotted during the year 748,298 37 3,518 3,555

At 31st December 2012 219,960,806 10,997 103,188 114,185
Allotted during the year 123,796 6 551 557

At 31st December 2013 220,084,602 11,003 103,739 114,742

Ordinary shares carry rights to dividends, voting and proceeds on winding up and have a par value of £0.05. At 31st December 2013 the Company
has 1,143,131 treasury shares in issue which do not carry rights in respect of dividend, vesting or proceeds on winding up.

During the year there have been the following changes in the share capital of the Company:

1 Between 1st January and 31st December 2013 the Company issued 1,782 ordinary shares for a consideration of £7,933 to UK employees
following exercises by employees and former employees of options held under the Sharesave Scheme.

2 Between 1st January and 31st December 2013 the Company issued 122,014 ordinary shares for a consideration of £549,392 following exercises
by executives of options held under the Executive Share Option Scheme.

The Employee Benefit Trust holds 7,787,035 ordinary shares (2012: 9,004,070) acquired to settle employee share based payments. Acquisitions of
such shares are booked directly to equity.

25.  Non-controlling interests

£’000

At 1st January 2013 14,909
Exchange differences (1,440)
Acquisitions 685
Disposals (48)
Additions 35
Profit for the year 10,815
Dividends (5,475)

At 31st December 2013 19,481

£’000

At 1st January 2012 12,327
Exchange differences (426)
Acquisitions (1,176)
Disposals 289
Profit for the year 9,574
Dividends (5,679)

At 31st December 2012 14,909

for the year ended 31st December 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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26.  Other reserves
Fair value Total

Share and hedging Exchange other
premium reserves reserves reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

At 1st January 2013 103,188 15,456 20,893 139,537
Fair value gains net of tax:

- available-for-sale - 48 - 48
- cash flow hedges - 1,720 - 1,720

Currency translation differences - - (22,892) (22,892)

Net gains/(losses) recognised directly in equity - 1,768 (22,892) (21,124)
Issue of share capital 551 - - 551

At 31st December 2013 103,739 17,224 (1,999) 118,964

Fair value Total
Share and hedging Exchange other

premium reserves reserves reserves
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

At 1st January 2012 99,670 (5,661) 30,131 124,140
Fair value gains net of tax:

- available-for-sale - 43 - 43
- cash flow hedges - 21,074 - 21,074

Currency translation differences - - (9,238) (9,238)

Net gains/(losses) recognised directly in equity - 21,117 (9,238) 11,879
Issue of share capital 3,518 - - 3,518

At 31st December 2012 103,188 15,456 20,893 139,537

27.  Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust
During the period, the Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust (QUEST) allocated 601,341 ordinary shares to employees in satisfaction of options that have
been exercised under the Sharesave schemes (2012: nil).

28.  Cash generated from operations
2013 2012
£'000 £'000

restated

Profit before taxation 154,564 151,541
Investment income receivable (5,970) (7,361)
Interest payable on bank loans and finance leases 11,682 7,862
Fair value gains on financial instruments (2) (4)
Net pension financing expenses 5,680 5,587
Unwinding of liability discounting 114 223
Depreciation 11,334 10,041
Amortisation of other intangible assets 20,087 18,792
Amortisation of share based payments 15,815 15,902
Amount written off the Employee Benefit Trust 66 -
Share of results of associates undertakings (8,106) (8,271)
Non cash exceptional items 1,786 795
Gains on disposal of businesses (343) (235)
Gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment (22) (564)
Gains on disposal of fixed asset investments (348) -
Gains on disposal of current asset investments - (2)
Increase in trade and other receivables (39,627) (50,366)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables - excluding insurance broking balances 15,240 (7,014)
(Decrease)/increase in provisions for liabilities and charges (2,177) 1,620
Decrease in retirement benefit obligations (16,343) (5,147)

Net cash inflow from operations 163,430 133,399
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29.  Business combinations

2012 acquisitions
During the year, the process of finalising the provisional fair values in respect of acquisitions carried out during 2012 has been completed.

Provisional
Revised fair value
fair value reported at Change in
acquired 31st Dec 2012 fair value

£'000 £'000 £'000

Alexander Forbes - Employee Benefits business 6,700 6,791 (91)
Towner Management Group 865 848 17
Others 150 (51) 201

7,715 7,588 127

These changes in fair value affected the following balance sheet classes:
Provisional

Revised fair value
fair value reported at Change in
acquired 31st Dec 2012 fair value

£'000 £'000 £'000

Property, plant and equipment 1,274 1,274 -
Other intangible assets 2,383 2,182 201
Trade and other receivables 7,424 7,636 (212)
Cash and cash equivalents

- own cash 1,285 1,285 -
Trade and other payables (4,652) (4,637) (15)
Current taxation 847 700 147
Deferred taxation 314 314 -
Provisions for liabilities and charges (1,195) (1,208) 13
Non-controlling interests 35 42 (7)

7,715 7,588 127

At At
31st Dec 2013 31st Dec 2012 Change

Goodwill calculation £'000 £'000 £'000

Purchase consideration
- cash paid 21,889 21,889 -
- contingent consideration 628 787 (159)
- deferred consideration 1,512 1,616 (104)

Total purchase consideration 24,029 24,292 (263)
Less fair value of net assets acquired 7,715 7,588 127

Goodwill 16,314 16,704 (390)

At At
31st Dec 2013 31st Dec 2012 Change

£'000 £'000 £'000

Purchase consideration settled in cash 21,889 21,889 -
Cash and cash equivalents - own cash in subsidiaries acquired (1,285) (1,285) -

Cash outflow on acquisition 20,604 20,604 -

for the year ended 31st December 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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29.  Business combinations continued

Current year acquisitions
During the year the following new business acquisitions and additional investments were completed:

Percentage 
Acquisition voting rights Cost

Notes date acquired £'000

Insfield Insurance Brokers Sdn Bhd i Feb 2013 100% 3,525
ForVision Risk Services Ltd ii Oct 2013 100% 3,535
Towers Watson Reinsurance Group iii Nov 2013 100% 176,983
Eluleka Consulting (Pty) Ltd iv Nov 2013 100% 4,865
Insure Direct (Brokers) LLC and Independent Risk Solutions Holding BV v Dec 2013 51%-100% 8,348
Acquisition of other new businesses completed during the year vi Jan - Dec 2013 - 3,069
Additional investments in existing business vi Jan - Dec 2013 - 6,288

206,613

i) Acquisition of Insfield Insurance Brokers Sdn Bhd
On 1st February 2013 the Group announced the acquisition of Insfield Insurance Brokers Sdn Bhd, a business within the insurance sector in Malaysia, covering
a range of classes: Marine, Energy, Media, Manufacturing, Financial Lines and Employee Benefits. The acquired business contributed revenue of £1,461,000
and a net profit of £159,000 to the Group for the period since acquisition. If the acquisition had taken place on 1st January 2013 the contribution to Group
revenue and net profit would have been £1,730,000 and £297,000 respectively.

Goodwill calculation £'000

Purchase consideration
- cash paid 2,872
- contingent consideration 653

Total purchase consideration 3,525
Less fair value of net assets acquired 609

Goodwill 2,916

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition were as follows:
Acquiree's 
carrying
amount Fair value
£'000 £'000

Property, plant and equipment 34 34
Other intangible assets 2 2
Trade and other receivables 549 549
Cash and cash equivalents

- own cash 141 141
- fiduciary cash 148 148

Insurance payables (148) (148)
Trade and other payables (30) (30)
Current taxation (80) (80)
Deferred taxation (7) (7)

609 609
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29.  Business combinations continued

£'000

Purchase consideration settled in cash 2,872
Cash and cash equivalents - own cash in subsidiary acquired (141)

2,731
Cash and cash equivalents - fiduciary cash in subsidiary acquired (148)

Cash outflow on acquisition 2,583

As at 31st December 2013, the process of reviewing the fair values of assets acquired had not been completed, consequently the fair values stated above are
provisional.

The contingent consideration of £653,000 is based on the expected net revenue of MYR9,242,000 for the 12 month period following the acquisition. The
maximum amount of contingent consideration payable has been provided for.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

ii) Acquisition of ForVision Risk Services Ltd
On 16th October 2013 the Group announced the acquisition of ForVision Risk Services Ltd, a Taiwan-based leading broker providing insurance, reinsurance
and risk management services for companies with local and international operations. The acquired business contributed revenue of £161,000 and a net profit of
£122,000 to the Group for the period since acquisition. If the acquisition had taken place on 1st January 2013 the contribution to Group revenue and net profit
would have been £771,000 and £282,000 respectively.

Goodwill calculation £'000

Purchase consideration
- cash paid 1,671
- contingent consideration 1,864

Total purchase consideration 3,535
Less fair value of net assets acquired 128

Goodwill 3,407

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition were as follows: Acquiree's 
carrying
amount Fair value
£'000 £'000

Property, plant and equipment 2 2
Trade and other receivables 143 143
Cash and cash equivalents

- own cash 25 25
Trade and other payables (14) (14)
Current taxation (28) (28) 

128 128

£'000

Purchase consideration settled in cash 1,671
Cash and cash equivalents - own cash in subsidiary acquired (25)

Cash outflow on acquisition 1,646

As at 31st December 2013, the process of reviewing the fair values of assets acquired had not been completed, consequently the fair values stated above are
provisional.
Contingent consideration of £1,864,000 is based upon a combination of factors including the completion accounts net assets, and the profit of the three years
following completion. The maximum amount of contingent consideration payable has been provided for.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

for the year ended 31st December 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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29.  Business combinations continued

iii) Acquisition of Towers Watson Reinsurance Group
On 6th November 2013 the Group acquired the Towers Watson Reinsurance operations, a reinsurance broking business operating in the United States, the
United Kingdom, Bermuda, Canada, France and Germany. The acquired business contributed revenue of £9,939,000 and a net loss of £592,000 to the Group
for the period since acquisition. The majority of the business acquired was historically a sub-operating unit within a larger entity; the results of this element of the
business were not disclosed on a standalone basis. The business reported under US GAAP with an accounting period ending 30th June. As a result of these
factors it is impracticable to provide disclosures in respect of the revenue and net profit that the business would have contributed to the Group had the
acquisition taken place on 1st January 2013. It is estimated that, under US GAAP, the revenue for the business for the year to 30th June 2013 was
USD166,000,000 and the profit before tax was USD26,000,000.

Goodwill calculation £'000

Purchase consideration
- cash paid 175,553
- deferred consideration 1,430

Total purchase consideration 176,983
Less fair value of net assets acquired 31,907

Goodwill 145,076

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition were as follows:
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount Fair value
£'000 £'000

Property, plant and equipment 510 510
Other intangible assets 1,064 6,735
Available-for-sale financial assets 1,003 1,003
Trade and other receivables 7,114 20,964
Cash and cash equivalents

- own cash 20,408 20,408
- fiduciary cash 17,770 17,770

Insurance payables (17,770) (17,770)
Trade and other payables (9,884) (13,448)
Current taxation 170 170
Deferred taxation 103 (3,280)
Provisions for liabilities and charges (1,155) (1,155)

19,333 31,907

£'000

Purchase consideration settled in cash 175,553
Cash and cash equivalents - own cash in subsidiary acquired (20,408)

155,145
Cash and cash equivalents - fiduciary cash in subsidiary acquired (17,770)

Cash outflow on acquisition 137,375

As at 31st December 2013, the process of reviewing the fair values of assets acquired had not been completed, consequently the fair values stated above are
provisional.
The deferred consideration of £1,430,000 is based upon the completion accounts net assets as at 6th November 2013. The amount recognised is based on
the provisional amount of assets acquired as stated above.
The goodwill recognised in the United States of £64,963,000 and in Canada of £4,371,000 are expected to be deductible for income tax purposes, the
remaining goodwill is not expected to be deductible.
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29.  Business combinations continued

iv) Acquisition of Eluleka Consulting (Pty) Ltd
On 28th November 2013, the Group announced the acquisition of Eluleka Consulting (Pty) Ltd, a South African Employee Benefits and Healthcare broker 
and consultant to corporates. The acquired business contributed revenue of £141,000 and a net profit of £54,000 to the Group for the period since acquisition.
If the acquisition had taken place on 1st January 2013 the contribution to Group revenue and net profit would have been £1,608,000 and £288,000 respectively.

Goodwill calculation £'000

Purchase consideration
- cash paid 2,556
- contingent consideration 2,309

Total purchase consideration 4,865
Less fair value of net assets acquired 213

Goodwill 4,652

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition were as follows:
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount Fair value
£'000 £'000

Property, plant and equipment 15 15
Trade and other receivables 151 151
Cash and cash equivalents

- own cash 247 247
Trade and other payables (141) (141) 
Current taxation (59) (59)

213 213

£'000

Purchase consideration settled in cash 2,556
Cash and cash equivalents - own cash in subsidiary acquired (247)

Cash outflow on acquisition 2,309

As at 31st December 2013, the process of reviewing the fair values of assets acquired had not been completed, consequently the fair values stated above are
provisional.

Contingent consideration of £2,309,000 is based upon the expected revenue and operating profit for the three years following completion. The maximum
amount of contingent consideration payable has been provided for.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

for the year ended 31st December 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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29.  Business combinations continued

v) Acquisition of Insure Direct (Brokers) LLC and Independent Risk Solutions Holding BV
On 31st December 2013, the Group gained control of Insure Direct (Brokers) LLC and Independent Risk Solutions Holding BV. Insure Direct (Brokers) LLC is a
leading Dubai-based insurance broker and Employee Benefits advisor with operations in Bahrain and Qatar. Independent Risk Solutions Holding BV is a marine
specialty broker based in the Netherlands. No contribution towards the revenue and net profit to the Group has been recognised in 2013. If the acquisition had
taken place on 1st January 2013 the contribution to Group revenue and net profit would have been £8,821,000 and £844,000 respectively.

Goodwill calculation £'000

Purchase consideration
- cash paid 6,629
- deferred consideration 1,719

Total purchase consideration 8,348
Less fair value of net assets acquired 869

Goodwill 7,479

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition were as follows:
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount Fair value
£'000 £'000

Property, plant and equipment 225 225
Other intangible assets 22 22
Trade and other receivables 1,921 1,855
Cash and cash equivalents

- own cash 3,100 3,099
- fiduciary cash 3,688 3,688

Insurance payables (3,688) (3,688)
Trade and other payables (2,798) (2,798)
Current taxation 101 101
Deferred taxation 61 61
Bank overdraft (360) (360)
Non-controlling interests (1,336) (1,336)

936 869

£'000

Purchase consideration settled in cash 6,629
Cash and cash equivalents - own cash in subsidiary acquired (3,099)

3,530
Cash and cash equivalents - fiduciary cash in subsidiary acquired (3,688)

Cash outflow on acquisition (158)

As at 31st December 2013, the process of reviewing the fair values of assets acquired had not been completed, consequently the fair values stated above are
provisional.
The deferred consideration of £1,719,000 is based upon the completion accounts net assets as at 31st December 2013. The amount recognised is based on
the provisional fair value of assets acquired as stated above.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.
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29.  Business combinations continued

vi) Other acquisitions and additional investments

Goodwill calculation £'000

Purchase consideration
- cash paid 7,455
- deferred consideration 533
- contingent consideration 653
- cancellation of loans 716

Total purchase consideration 9,357
Less fair value of net assets acquired 599
Less equity movement on transactions with non-controlling interest 5,628

Goodwill 3,130

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition were as follows:
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount Fair value
£'000 £'000

Property, plant and equipment 139 139
Other intangible assets - 282
Trade and other receivables 146 146
Cash and cash equivalents

- own cash 6 6
- fiduciary cash 330 330

Insurance payables (330) (330)
Trade and other payables (631) (631)
Deferred taxation (1) (1)
Non-controlling interests 658 658

317 599

£'000

Purchase consideration settled in cash 7,455
Cash and cash equivalents - own cash in subsidiary acquired (6)

7,449
Cash and cash equivalents - fiduciary cash in subsidiary acquired (330)

Cash outflow on acquisition 7,119

As at 31st December 2013, the process of reviewing the fair values of assets acquired had not been completed, consequently the fair values stated above 
are provisional.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

for the year ended 31st December 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Financial S
tatem

ents
C
orporate G

overnance
O
verview

S
trategic R

eport

125

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc Annual Report 2013

29.  Business combinations continued

Group summary of the net assets acquired and goodwill
Towers 

Insfield ForVision Watson Eluleka IDB & IRS Others Total
£’000 £’000 £’000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Purchase consideration
- cash paid 2,872 1,671 175,553 2,556 6,629 7,455 196,736
- deferred consideration - - 1,430 - 1,719 533 3,682
- contingent consideration 653 1,864 - 2,309 - 653 5,479
- cancellation of loans - - - - - 716 716

Total purchase consideration 3,525 3,535 176,983 4,865 8,348 9,357 206,613
Less fair value on acquisitions occurring during the year 609 128 31,907 213 869 599 34,325
Less equity movement on transactions with non-controlling interests - - - - - 5,628 5,628

Goodwill on acquisitions occurring during the year 2,916 3,407 145,076 4,652 7,479 3,130 166,660

Impact of revisions to fair value adjustment in relation to acquisitions
completed in 2012 (390)

Net increase in goodwill 2,916 3,407 145,076 4,652 7,479 3,130 166,270

Impact of the additional investments 5,628

Net decrease in equity 5,628

Group summary of cash flows

Towers 
Insfield ForVision Watson Eluleka IDB & IRS Others Total
£’000 £’000 £’000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Purchase consideration settled in cash 2,872 1,671 175,553 2,556 6,629 7,455 196,736
Cash and cash equivalents - own cash in subsidiaries acquired (141) (25) (20,408) (247) (3,099) (6) (23,926)

2,731 1,646 155,145 2,309 3,530 7,449 172,810
Cash and cash equivalents - fiduciary cash in subsidiaries acquired (148) - (17,770) - (3,688) (330) (21,936)

Cash outflow on acquisition in the year 2,583 1,646 137,375 2,309 (158) 7,119 150,874

Post balance sheet acquisitions
On 15th January 2014, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Lambert Brothers Insurance Brokers (‘LBIB’) in Hong Kong, a mid-market insurance
brokerage with broking operations in Marine Hull, Construction, Employee Benefits, Corporate and SME schemes, for a consideration of £3,844,000.

On 29th January 2014, the Group acquired 75% of the share capital of SCK in Brazil, an Employee Benefits and insurance broking operation, for a
consideration of £3,960,000.

At the date of this report, the accounting for these acquisitions has not been finalised and therefore it is not possible to detail the acquired identifiable assets
and liabilities or the related goodwill.
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30.  Business disposals
On 31st July 2013, 24.6% of JLT Energy (France) SAS was disposed of in exchange of shares in March-JLT, leaving the Group with 35.4%. 

Net assets and proceeds of disposal
Total
£'000

Property, plant and equipment 30
Other intangible assets 40
Cash and cash equivalents

- own cash 1,717
Trade and other payables (1,635)
Current taxation 18
Deferred taxation 34
Non-controlling interests (82)

Net assets at disposal 122
Exchange gains recycled from exchange reserves (10)
Gain on disposal 725

Proceeds on disposal in the form of investment in associates 837

£'000

Cash and cash equivalents - own cash in subsidiary sold (1,717)

Cash outflow on disposal (1,717)

Other disposals
During the year the Group completed other disposals, none of which were individually significant.

Net assets and proceeds of disposal Total
£'000

Non-controlling interests 34
Equity movement on transaction with non-controlling interests 398

Consideration in the form of deferred proceeds 432

Loss on disposal of JLT Re Spain branch (372)

Group summary of cash flows
JLT Energy JLT Re Spain

(France) SAS branch Total
£'000 £'000 £'000

Cash outflow on disposal - (372) (372)
Cash and cash equivalents - own cash in subsidiary sold (1,717) - (1,717)

Cash outflow on disposal during the year (1,717) (372) (2,089)

for the year ended 31st December 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31.  Retirement benefit obligations
The Group operates a number of pension schemes throughout the world, the most significant of which are of the defined benefit type and operate on a funded
basis. The principal pension schemes are the Jardine Lloyd Thompson Pension Scheme in the UK, the JLT (USA) Incentive Savings Plan, the JLT (USA) Employee
Retirement Plan, the Pension Plan for Employees of Jardine Lloyd Thompson Canada Inc and the Jardine Lloyd Thompson Ireland Limited Pension Fund.

The pension costs accrued for the year are comprised as follows:

2013 2012
UK Overseas Total UK Overseas Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Defined benefit schemes - - - - 8 8
Defined contribution schemes 16,926 13,516 30,442 13,743 12,418 26,161

16,926 13,516 30,442 13,743 12,426 26,169

The Jardine Lloyd Thompson Pension Scheme is based in the UK and has two sections; one providing defined benefits and the other providing benefits on a
defined contribution basis. The assets of the scheme are held in a trustee administered fund separate from the Company.

With effect from 1st December 2006 the Scheme was amended to cease future benefits accruals. Under the Scheme as amended, a participant’s normal
retirement benefit will be determined based on their service and compensation prior to 1st December 2006.

The latest triennial actuarial funding valuation of the Jardine Lloyd Thompson Pension Scheme was undertaken as at 31st March 2011. This valuation was
updated to 31st December 2013 by a qualified actuary employed by the Group. The next valuation will be undertaken as at 31st March 2014.

The principal overseas schemes are:

a) The JLT (USA) Incentive Savings Plan which is a defined contribution scheme. Employees may contribute up to 50% of their salary subject to an IRS
maximum each year – USD17,500 in 2013 – and the Group contributes at a rate of 100% of each 1% contributed by the employee up to a maximum
employee contribution of 4%, up to a maximum of USD10,200. Employees aged over 50 may make “catch-up” contributions subject to an IRS maximum
each year - USD5,500 in 2013.

b) The JLT (USA) Employee Retirement Plan which is a defined benefit scheme. The latest actuarial valuation was undertaken at 1st January 2013 by
independent actuaries. With effect from 31st July 2005 the Plan was amended to eliminate future benefit accruals. Under the Plan as amended, a
participant’s normal retirement benefit will be determined based on their service and compensation prior to 31st July 2005. The average compensation and
length of service will be determined as at 31st July 2005. 

c) The Pension Plan for Employees of Jardine Lloyd Thompson Canada Inc. The JLT Canada Pension Plan has two sections; one providing defined benefits
based primarily on the 2007 pensionable salary and the other providing benefits on a defined contribution basis. The JLT pension contribution for the
defined contribution plan ranges from 3% to 15% based on age and service. The last formal valuation of the JLT Canada Pension Plan was undertaken as
of 31st December 2011 by a qualified third party actuary.  The defined benefits section was amended to eliminate future benefit accruals with effect from
1st January 2009.

d) The Jardine Lloyd Thompson Ireland Limited Pension Fund which is a defined benefit pension scheme with assets held in a separately administered fund.
The contributions are agreed between the Trustees and the Company based on advice by a qualified actuary. The most recent triennial actuarial valuation
for funding purposes was carried out by a qualified independent actuary as at 1st June 2011. With effect from 30th November 2008 the scheme was
closed to new entrants and future service accrual. The company also operates a defined contribution scheme, namely The Jardine Lloyd Thompson 2004
Retirement Benefits Scheme, which is held and administered by a separate trust.

e) The Jardine Matheson Executive Staff Retirement Plan (JMESRP), Jardine Matheson Resident Staff Retirement Plan (JMRSRP) and Menu Plan section B
and C of the Jardine Matheson Group Retirement Plan (JMGRP). The JMRSRP and section C of the JMGRP provided benefits based on final salary, which
were solely funded by the participating employer, while the JMESRP and section B of the JMGRP provided benefits based on final salary, which were
funded by both the participating employer and the members.

With effect from 31st December 2009, the participation in the JMESRP, JMRSRP and JMGRP (collectively the plans) ceased and the schemes were
closed.

The accrued rights of the members in the plans were transferred to the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) scheme on 1st January 2010. The
MPF scheme provides benefits on a defined contribution basis. The scheme is funded by both the employer and the members. The employer contribution
under the MPF scheme ranges from 5% to 15% of the member’s monthly basic salary based on an age factor. The MPF scheme is held and administered
by a separate trust, which is funded by both the participating employer and the members.
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31.  Retirement benefit obligations continued
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

UK US Canadian Irish
At 31st December 2013 Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme

Rate of increase in salaries n/a n/a 3.00% n/a
Rate of increase of pensions in payment (a) 3.42% n/a 3.50% 3.00%
Discount rate (b) 4.60% 4.70% 4.80% 4.00%
Inflation rate 3.25-3.52% 3.00% 2.25% 2.00%
Revaluation rate for deferred pensioners 2.25% n/a n/a 2.00%
Mortality - life expectancy at age 65 for male members: (c)
Aged 65 at 31st December 22.8 19.7 19.7 21.7

UK US Canadian Irish
At 31st December 2012 Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme

Rate of increase in salaries n/a n/a 3.00% n/a
Rate of increase of pensions in payment (a) 3.01% n/a 3.50% 3.00%
Discount rate (b) 4.60% 3.75% 3.90% 3.60%
Inflation rate 2.57-3.11% 3.00% 2.25% 2.00%
Revaluation rate for deferred pensioners 1.77% n/a n/a 2.00%
Mortality - life expectancy at age 65 for male members: (c)
Aged 65 at 31st December 23.8 19.6 19.7 21.7

(a) In respect of the UK scheme, where there are inflation linked benefits, the inflation increases are limited to a maximum of 5% per annum (some are limited to
3% per annum).

(b) In line with IAS 19 (Revised) the expected return on scheme assets assumption is the same as the discount rate assumed for the liabilities.

(c) Mortality assumptions for the UK scheme are based on 92% of the S1PxA tables, with improvements based on CMI 2013 tables with a 1.25% p.a. 
long-term rate of improvement.

Mortality assumptions for the US scheme are based on the IRS 2014 Mortality Table with Static Projections.

Mortality assumptions for the Canadian scheme are based on 90% of the 1994 Uninsured Pensioner Mortality Table projected generationally using the 
AA scale.

Mortality assumptions for the Irish scheme, in respect of both deferred pensioners and pensioners, assume that deaths after retirement will be in
accordance with standard mortality tables 62% PNML00 for males and 70% PNFL00 for females with an increase to the annuity value of:

- 0.50% (male with no spouse’s pension)

- 0.38% (female with no spouse’s pension)

- 0.39% (male or female with spouse’s pension)

This is per annum compound for each year between 2008 and the year in which normal pension date falls. Pre-retirement mortality has been 
assumed as nil.

for the year ended 31st December 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31.  Retirement benefit obligations continued

UK Scheme Overseas Schemes Total

Defined benefit obligation 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Present value of funded obligations (583,745) (574,360) (60,566) (68,937) (644,311) (643,297)
Fair value of plan assets 458,727 463,621 54,957 48,285 513,684 511,906

Net liability recognised in the balance sheet (125,018) (110,739) (5,609) (20,652) (130,627) (131,391)

UK Scheme Overseas Schemes Total

Reconciliation of defined benefit liability 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

restated restated restated

Opening defined benefit liability (110,739) (99,222) (20,652) (21,777) (131,391) (120,999)
Exchange differences - - (529) 1,004 (529) 1,004
Pension expense (4,942) (4,779) (994) (1,016) (5,936) (5,795)
Employer contributions 13,018 1,363 3,581 3,992 16,599 5,355
Total loss recognised in reserves (22,355) (8,101) 12,985 (2,855) (9,370) (10,956)

Net liability recognised in the balance sheet (125,018) (110,739) (5,609) (20,652) (130,627) (131,391)

UK Scheme Overseas Schemes Total

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Opening defined benefit obligation (574,360) (523,846) (68,937) (66,407) (643,297) (590,253)
Exchange differences - - 601 3,114 601 3,114
Service cost - - - (8) - (8)
Interest cost (26,039) (25,035) (2,581) (2,709) (28,620) (27,744)
(Loss)/gain on defined benefit obligation (138) (40,990) 6,122 (5,889) 5,984 (46,879)
Actual benefit payments 16,792 15,511 4,229 2,962 21,021 18,473

Closing defined benefit obligation (583,745) (574,360) (60,566) (68,937) (644,311) (643,297)

UK Scheme Overseas Schemes Total

Reconciliation of fair value of assets 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

restated restated restated

Opening value of assets 463,621 424,624 48,285 44,630 511,906 469,254
Exchange differences - - (1,130) (2,110) (1,130) (2,110)
Expected return on assets 21,097 20,256 1,843 1,901 22,940 22,157
Actuarial (losses)/gains (22,217) 32,889 6,863 3,034 (15,354) 35,923
Employer contributions 13,018 1,363 3,581 3,992 16,599 5,355
Actual benefit payments (16,792) (15,511) (4,229) (2,962) (21,021) (18,473)
Expenses - - (256) (200) (256) (200)

Closing value of assets 458,727 463,621 54,957 48,285 513,684 511,906
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31.  Retirement benefit obligations continued
The analysis of the fair value of the scheme assets is as follows:

UK Scheme Overseas Schemes 
Value Value Value Value

At 31st December 2013 £'000 % £'000 %

Equities 169,056 37% 37,434 69%
Bonds 47,023 10% 11,800 21%
Investment funds 100,989 22% - -
Qualifying insurance policies 179,358 39% - -   
Deferred buy-in premiums (40,343) (9%) - -
Other assets - - 1,110 2%
Cash 2,644 1% 4,613 8%

Total market value 458,727 100% 54,957 100%

UK Scheme Overseas Schemes 
Value Value Value Value

At 31st December 2012 £'000 % £'000 %

Equities 167,119 36% 29,695 62%
Bonds 238,801 52% 12,981 27%
Investment funds 53,154 11% - -
Other assets 2,402 1% 1,059 2%
Cash 2,145 - 4,550 9%

Total market value 463,621 100% 48,285 100%

Other assets include hedge funds and property. The schemes do not hold cash as a strategic investment and cash balances at 31st December
represent working balances. 
The long-term rates of return on scheme assets at 31st December 2013 have been derived considering market conditions at 31st December 2012.

UK Scheme Overseas Schemes Total

Reconciliation of return on assets 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

restated restated restated

Expected return on assets 21,097 20,256 1,843 1,901 22,940 22,157
Actuarial (losses)/gains (22,217) 32,889 6,863 3,034 (15,354) 35,923

Actual return on assets (1,120) 53,145 8,706 4,935 7,586 58,080

The amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as follows:

UK Scheme Overseas Schemes Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

restated restated restated

Service cost - - - (8) - (8)
Expenses - - (256) (200) (256) (200)

Total (included within salaries and associated expenses) - - (256) (208) (256) (208)

Interest cost (26,039) (25,035) (2,581) (2,709) (28,620) (27,744)
Expected return on assets 21,097 20,256 1,843 1,901 22,940 22,157

Total (included within finance costs) (4,942) (4,779) (738) (808) (5,680) (5,587)

Expense before taxation (4,942) (4,779) (994) (1,016) (5,936) (5,795)

for the year ended 31st December 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31.  Retirement benefit obligations continued
The amounts included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income are as follows:

UK Scheme Overseas Schemes Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

restated restated restated

(Losses)/gains on defined benefit obligation (138) (40,990) 6,122 (5,889) 5,984 (46,879)
Actuarial (losses)/gains (22,217) 32,889 6,863 3,034 (15,354) 35,923

Total actuarial (losses)/gains recognised (22,355) (8,101) 12,985 (2,855) (9,370) (10,956)

Cumulative actuarial losses recognised (203,654) (181,299) (26,377) (39,362) (230,031) (220,661)

The five year history of experience adjustments is as follows:

UK Scheme

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

restated restated restated restated

Defined benefit obligation at end of year (583,745) (574,360) (523,846) (492,911) (480,701)
Fair value of plan assets 458,727 463,621 424,624 435,498 409,075

Deficit in the scheme (125,018) (110,739) (99,222) (57,413) (71,626)

Difference between the actual and expected return on plan assets 
- amount (£’000) (22,217) 32,889 (17,930) 20,658 24,902
- expressed as a percentage of the plan assets (4.84%) 7.09% (4.22%) 4.74% 6.09%

Experience losses/(gains) on plan liabilities 
- amount (£’000) 1,364 11,890 903 1,902 (4,639)
- expressed as a percentage of the present value of the plan liabilities (0.23%) (2.07%) (0.17%) (0.39%) 0.97%

Overseas Schemes

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

restated restated restated restated

Defined benefit obligation at end of year (60,566) (68,937) (66,407) (59,425) (54,379)
Fair value of plan assets 54,957 48,285 44,630 44,003 38,112

Deficit in the schemes (5,609) (20,652) (21,777) (15,422) (16,267)

Difference between the actual and expected return on plan assets
- amount (£’000) 6,863 3,034 (2,665) 1,787 3,695
- expressed as a percentage of the plan assets 12.49% 6.28% (5.97%) 4.06% 9.70%

Experience losses/(gains) on plan liabilities
- amount (£’000) 377 (3,925) 308 453 (3,060)
- expressed as a percentage of the present value of the plan liabilities (0.62%) 5.69% (0.46%) (0.76%) 5.63%

The expected employer contributions in respect of the year ending 31st December 2014 are as follows:
Defined
benefit
£'000

UK Scheme 7,000
US Scheme 2,017
Canadian Scheme 460
Irish Scheme 820

Total expected contributions 10,297
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32.  Related-party transactions

Transactions with the Jardine Matheson Group

At 13th March 2014 the Jardine Matheson Group owns 40.16% of the Company shares via its wholly-owned subsidiary JMH Investments Limited.
The remaining 59.84% of the shares are widely held. 

In the normal course of business a number of the Group's subsidiaries undertake, on an arm’s length basis, a variety of transactions with the Jardine
Matheson Group (JMG) and its associates (JMA).

The following transactions were carried out during the year:

2013 2012

JMG JMA Total JMG JMA Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income
Fees and commissions 3,247 878 4,125 3,121 2,957 6,078

Expenditure
Administrative expenses 1,253 638 1,891 1,040 - 1,040

Year-end balances arising from these transactions:
Trade and other receivables 2,135 1,357 3,492 814 946 1,760
Trade and other payables (15) (1) (16) (36) - (36)

2,120 1,356 3,476 778 946 1,724

Transactions with associates

The following transactions were carried out with associates during the year:

Total Total
2013 2012
£'000 £'000

Income
Fees and commissions 6,372 6,656

Finance income
Interest receivable - own funds 267 -

Expenditure
Administrative expenses 69 161

Year-end balances arising from these transactions:
Trade and other receivables 8,865 7,353
Trade and other payables (40) (368)

8,825 6,985

Transactions with key management

The related-party disclosure regarding key management is detailed in note 6 on page 96.

for the year ended 31st December 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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33.  Commitments

Operating lease commitments - where a Group company is the lessee

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under a non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
2013 2012
£'000 £'000

No later than 1 year 22,576 22,952
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 88,170 68,100
Later than 5 years 275,435 284,149

386,181 375,201

Sub-leases

Operating lease commitments - where a Group company is the lessor

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under a non-cancellable operating sub-leases are as follows:
2013 2012
£'000 £'000

No later than 1 year 1,790 1,633
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 499 1,973

2,289 3,606

Legal and other loss contingencies

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc and its subsidiaries are subject to various claims and legal proceedings principally consisting of alleged errors and
omissions in connection with the placement of insurance and reinsurance risks and consulting services.

IFRS requires that liabilities for contingencies be recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred before the balance sheet date and the amount
can be reasonably estimated. Significant management judgement is required to comply with this guidance. The Group analyses its litigation exposure based on
available information, including external legal consultation where appropriate, to assess its potential liability.

On the basis of present information, amounts already provided, availability of insurance coverages and legal advice received, it is the opinion of management
that the disposition or ultimate determination of such claims will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of the Group. However,
it is possible that future results of operations or cash flows for any annual period could be materially affected by an unfavourable resolution of these matters.
At 31st December 2013, the Group has contingent liabilities in respect of guarantees and letters of credit given on behalf of Group companies amounting to
£4,154,000 (2012: £14,850,000).
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34.  Principal subsidiary and associated companies
The following were the principal subsidiary and associated undertakings at 31st December 2013. Unless otherwise shown, the capital of each company is
wholly-owned, is in ordinary shares and the principal country of operation is the country of incorporation/registration. Where a company is not wholly-owned,
the percentage of the capital held is shown in brackets.

Country of
incorporation/registration Notes

Principal subsidiary undertakings
Insurance broking and consulting
JLT Benefit Solutions Limited England
Thistle Insurance Services Limited England
Expacare Limited England
JLT Specialty Limited England
JLT Reinsurance Brokers Limited England
JLT Re Limited (formerly Towers Watson (Re) Insurance Limited) England
Profund Solutions Limited England
Lloyd & Partners Limited England
JLT Wealth Management Limited England
JLT Investment Management Limited England
GCube Underwriting Limited England
JLT Insurance Brokers Ireland Limited Ireland
Independent Risk Solutions Holding BV Netherlands
JLT Risk Solutions AB Sweden
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Australia Pty Limited Australia
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Limited New Zealand
JLT Lixin Insurance Brokers Co., Limited (51%) China
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Limited Hong Kong
JLT Risk Services Japan Limited Japan
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Korea Limited South Korea
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Insurance Brokers Inc. Philippines
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Private Limited Singapore
JLT Specialty Pte Limited Singapore
JLT Private Client Services Limited (50.1%) Singapore
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Sdn Bhd (49%) Malaysia a
Insfield Insurance Brokers Sdn Bhd Malaysia
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Limited Taiwan
ForVision Risk Services Limited Taiwan
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Limited (49%) Thailand a, b
PT Jardine Lloyd Thompson (80%) Indonesia
Jardine Lloyd Thompson India Private Limited India
JLT Park Limited Bermuda
JLT Insurance Management (Bermuda) Limited Bermuda
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Canada Inc. Canada
JLT Brasil Holdings Participacoes Limited (73.15%) Brazil
Alta SA (50.1%) Chile
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Valencia y Iragorri Corredores de Seguros SA (68%) Colombia
JLT Re Colombia, Corredores Colombianos de Reaseguros SA (78.75%) Colombia
Mariategui JLT Corredores de Seguros SA (68.5%) Peru
JLT Corredores de Reaseguros SA (68.5%) Peru
Jardine Lloyd Thompson (Pty) Limited (56%) South Africa
Eluleka Consulting (Pty) Limited South Africa
GCube Insurance Services Inc. USA
Group insurance
Eagle & Crown Limited Bermuda
Sail Insurance Company Limited Bermuda
Intermediate holding company
JIB Group Limited England
JLT Latin American Holdings Limited England
JMIB Holdings BV Netherlands
JLT Holdings (Bermuda) Limited Bermuda
JLT Holdings Inc. USA
Associated undertakings
Milestone (26.2%) (holding company of Siaci Saint Honoré) France
GrECo International Holding AG (20%) Austria
MAG JLT S.p.A. (25%) Italy
March-JLT, Correduria de Seguros S.A. (25%) Spain
Sterling Re Intermediario de Reaseguro, S.A. de C.V. (35.5%) Mexico

Notes 
Share capital divided into:
a ordinary and preferred shares
b 100% of common stock owned by the Group

for the year ended 31st December 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Report on the Parent Company finan-
cial statements
Our opinion 
In our opinion the Parent Company financial
statements, defined below:

• give a true and fair view of the state of the
Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 December
2013;

• have been properly prepared in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

• have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

This opinion is to be read in the context of what
we say in the remainder of this report.

What we have audited
The Parent Company financial statements, which
are prepared by Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group
plc, comprise:

• the Parent Company balance sheet as at 31
December 2013;

• the Parent Company reconciliation of
movements in shareholders’ funds for the
year then ended; and

• the summary of the significant accounting
policies and the notes to the Parent
Company financial statements which
includes other explanatory information.

The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation comprises applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice).

In applying the financial reporting framework, the
directors have made a number of subjective
judgements, for example in respect of significant
accounting estimates. In making such estimates,
they have made assumptions and considered
future events.

Certain disclosures required by the financial
reporting framework have been presented
elsewhere in the, Annual Report, rather than in
the notes to the financial statements. These are
cross-referenced from the financial statements
and are identified as audited. 

What an audit of financial statements
involves 
We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK &
Ireland) (“ISAs (UK & Ireland)”). An audit involves
obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient
to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes
an assessment of:

• whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Parent Company’s
circumstances and have been consistently

applied and adequately disclosed;

• the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors; and 

• the overall presentation of the financial
statements. 

In addition, we read all the financial and non-
financial information in the Annual Report to
identify material inconsistencies with the audited
Parent Company financial statements and to
identify any information that is apparently
materially incorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us
in the course of performing the audit. If we
become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider
the implications for our report.

Opinions on other matters prescribed
by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion:

• the information given in the Strategic Report
and the Directors’ Report for the financial
year for which the Parent Company financial
statements are prepared is consistent with
the Parent Company financial statements;
and

• the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006.

Other matters on which we are
required to report by exception
Adequacy of accounting records and
information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required
to report to you if, in our opinion:

• we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit; or

• adequate accounting records have not been
kept by the Parent Company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

• the Parent Company financial statements
and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from
this responsibility.

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required
to report to you if, in our opinion, certain
disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified
by law have not been made.  We have no
exceptions to report arising from this
responsibility.

Other information in the Annual Report
Under ISAs (UK & Ireland), we are required to
report to you if, in our opinion, information in the
Annual Report is:

• materially inconsistent with the information in

the audited Parent Company financial
statements; or

• apparently materially incorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, our knowledge
of the Parent Company acquired in the
course of performing our audit; or

• is otherwise misleading.

We have no exceptions to report arising from
this responsibility.

Responsibilities for the financial state-
ments and the audit
Our responsibilities and those of the
directors 
As explained more fully in the Directors’
Responsibilities Statement set out on pages 72
and 73 the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the Parent Company financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give
a true and fair view. 

Our responsibility is to audit and express an
opinion on the Parent Company financial
statements in accordance with applicable law
and ISAs (UK & Ireland). Those standards require
us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s
Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

This report, including the opinions, has been
prepared for and only for the Company’s
members as a body in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for
no other purpose.  We do not, in giving these
opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom
this report is shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior
consent in writing.

Other Matter
We have reported separately on the Group
financial statements of for the year ended 31
December 2013. 

Richard Weaver (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London
14 March 2014

Notes:

The maintenance and integrity of the Jardine Lloyd
Thompson Group plc website is the responsibility of the
directors; the work carried out by the auditors does not
involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly,
the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes
that may have occurred to the financial statements
since they were initially presented on the website.

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

to the members of Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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BALANCE SHEET

2013 2012
Notes £’000 £’000

NET OPERATING ASSETS
Fixed assets
Investment in subsidiary undertakings c 66,814 66,814
Investment in associate undertakings c - 242

66,814 67,056

Current assets
Debtors d 409,913 393,980
Cash 886 3,332

410,799 397,312
Creditors - amounts falling due within one year e (199,647) (163,575)

Net current assets 211,152 233,737

Total assets less current liabilities 277,966 300,793

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital f 11,003 10,997
Share premium account h 103,739 103,188
Merger reserve h 9,604 9,604
Profit and loss account h 153,620 177,004

Total shareholders' funds 277,966 300,793

The notes on pages 138 to 140 form an integral part of these financial statements.
The financial statements on pages 137 to 140 were approved by the Board on 14th March 2014 and signed on its behalf by:

Mike Reynolds
Finance Director

2013 2012
Notes £’000 £’000

Profit for the year a 36,481 67,777
Dividends b (57,092) (53,571)
Shares acquired (2,773) -
New shares issued 557 3,555

Net movements in shareholders' funds (22,827) 17,761
Opening shareholders' funds 300,793 283,032

Closing shareholders' funds 277,966 300,793

as at 31st December 2013

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
for the year ended 31st December 2013
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation
The Board has decided that the continued use of UK GAAP at the entity level is a more appropriate method of accounting rather than the application of IFRS as
required to be used for the preparation of the Group consolidated accounts.

These separate entity level accounts have been produced on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention and in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006 and applicable accounting standards.

A summary of the principal accounting policies, which have been applied consistently throughout the year, is set out below:   

Foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions are translated into sterling using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange
differences arising on translation are taken directly to the profit and loss account to the extent that the Company is exposed to exchange differences arising on
such assets and liabilities. 

Taxation
The charge for taxation is based on the result for the year at current rates of tax and takes into account deferred tax.
Full provision for deferred tax, without discounting, is made for all timing differences that have arisen but not reversed at the balance sheet date.

Consolidated accounts
Separate consolidated accounts have been prepared and are presented on pages 79 to 134.

Subsidiary and associated undertakings
Investments in subsidiary and associated undertakings are stated in the balance sheet of the Company at cost less any provisions for permanent diminution in
value. A list of principal subsidiaries is set out in note 34 on page 134.

Investment income
Interest on deposits and interest-bearing investments is credited as it is earned.

Dividend distribution
Dividends proposed or declared after the balance sheet dates are not recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date. Final dividends are recognised as a
charge to shareholders' funds once approved and interim dividends are charged once paid.

Related parties
The Company is exempt under the terms of Financial Reporting Standard 8 from disclosing related party transactions with entities that are part of the JLT Group
or investees of the JLT Group. All related party transactions external to the Group are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements of JLT Group.
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a.  Profit and loss account
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained in Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present its own profit and loss account
and there are no recognised gains or losses other than the loss for the year. The profit for the year dealt with in the accounts of the Company is £36,481,000
(2012: £67,777,000).

b.  Dividends
2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Final dividend in respect of 2012 of 15.9p per share (2011: 14.8p) 34,976 32,624
Less: adjustment* (111) (19)

34,865 32,605
Interim dividend in respect of 2013 of 10.1p per share (2012: 9.6p) 22,227 20,966

57,092 53,571

*Adjustment relating to dividend equivalents accrued in respect of various performance related share awards and long-term incentive plans not currently anticipated to fully vest. The

2012 analysis has been restated to better reflect this adjustment.

A final dividend in respect of 2013 of 17.1p per share (2012: 15.9p) amounting to a total of £37,438,000 (2012: £34,781,000) is proposed by the Board.
The dividend proposed will not be accounted for until it has been approved at the Annual General Meeting on 29th April 2014.

c.  Investments
Subsidiary Associate

undertakings undertakings Total
£'000 £'000 £'000

At 1st January 2013 66,814 242 67,056
Amount to be written off - (242) (242)

At 31st December 2013 66,814 - 66,814

The directors believe that the carrying value of the investments is supported by their net assets or future cash flows.

d.  Debtors
2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Amounts due from Group undertakings 403,474 386,794
Other debtors and prepayments 34 5
Corporation tax 6,405 7,181

409,913 393,980

e.  Creditors - amounts falling due within one year
2013 2012
£’000 £’000

Amounts due to Group undertakings 197,814 161,280
Dividends payable 1,559 2,047
Other creditors 274 248

199,647 163,575

NOTES TO THE COMPANY ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31st December 2013
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f.  Share capital
Details of the Company's share capital are given in note 24 on page 116.

g.  Risk management
Details of the risk management for the Company are given in the Finance Director’s Review and the Risk Management Report on pages 39 to 42.

h.  Reserves

Share Merger Profit and
premium reserve loss account Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

At 1st January 2013 103,188 9,604 177,004 289,796
Retained profit for the period - - 36,481 36,481
Shares acquired - - (2,773) (2,773)
Dividends - - (57,092) (57,092)
Shares issued 551 - - 551

At 31st December 2013 103,739 9,604 153,620 266,963

i.  Auditors’ remuneration
Details of the auditor’s remuneration is given in note 7 on page 99.

NOTES TO THE COMPANY ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31st December 2013
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Other Shareholder Information

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

restated restated restated restated

Fees and commissions 612,918 740,679 812,004 874,320 974,623
Investment income 6,425 5,601 6,760 5,744 4,529

Total revenue 619,343 746,280 818,764 880,064 979,152
Salaries and associated expenses (371,435) (442,016) (489,921) (519,119) (580,968)
Premises (35,414) (40,125) (42,394) (44,408) (53,638)
Other operating costs (100,036) (128,801) (133,319) (140,179) (157,386)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges (12,587) (17,365) (19,410) (21,037) (24,667)

Operating profit 99,871 117,973 133,720 155,321 162,493
Finance costs - net (3,468) (6,366) (9,913) (12,051) (16,035)
Share of results of associates 3,785 3,772 5,099 8,271 8,106

Profit before taxation 100,188 115,379 128,906 151,541 154,564
Income tax expense (28,385) (23,649) (37,969) (39,814) (41,789)

Profit for the year 71,803 91,730 90,937 111,727 112,775

Non-controlling interests (2,377) (4,151) (6,523) (9,574) (10,815)

Profit attributable to the owners of the parent 69,426 87,579 84,414 102,153 101,960

Diluted earnings per share 32.4p 40.2p 38.5p 46.5p 46.4p
Underlying diluted earnings per share 33.1p 39.1p 43.3p 48.2p 54.5p
Dividends per share 21.0p 22.5p 24.0p 25.5p 27.2p

Comparatives have been restated to reflect the impact of IAS 19 (Revised).

GROUP FIVE YEAR REVIEW
for the year ended 31st December 2013
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Independent Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
7 More London Riverside
London SE1 2RT

Principal Bankers
The Royal Bank of Scotland
280 Bishopsgate 
London EC2M 4RB

Barclays Bank plc
1 Churchill Place
London E14 5HP

HSBC Bank plc
8 Canada Square
Canary Wharf
London E14 5HQ

Registrars and Transfer Office
Capita Registrars
The Registry
34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham
Kent BR3 4TU
Telephone: 
(from within the UK) 0871 664 0300
(from outside the UK) +44 20 8639 3399
www.capitaassetservices.com

Stockbrokers
JPMorgan Securities plc
25 Bank Street
Canary Wharf
London E14 5JP
Telephone: 020 7742 4000

Numis Securities Limited
10 Paternoster Square
London EC4M 7LT
Telephone: 020 7260 1000

Financial Calendar
Ex Dividend Date
2nd April 2014

Record Date
4th April 2014

Annual General Meeting
29th April 2014

Final Dividend Payable
1st May 2014

Interim Results Announced
July 2014

Interim Dividend Payable
October 2014

Dividend Mandates
Shareholders who wish dividends to be paid directly
into a bank or building society account should
contact Capita Registrars or complete the dividend
mandate form attached to their dividend cheque.

Secretary and registered office
D J Hickman FCIS

The St Botolph Building, 138 Houndsditch
London EC3A 7AW
Telephone: 020 7528 4444
Facsimile: 020 7528 4185
Company Registration Number: 1679424

ADVISERS & SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
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PRINCIPAL JLT OFFICES

Head office
UK
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc
+44 20 7528 4444

Europe

Germany
JLT Reinsurance Brokers GmbH
+49 (0) 89 51657 4616

Ireland
JLT Insurance Brokers Ireland Limited
+35 31 20 26 000

The Netherlands
Independent Risk Solutions Holdings BV
+31 104400555

Norway
JLT Norway AS
+47 4000 2111

Spain
JLT Towers Re
+34 915726550

Sweden
JLT Risk Solutions AB
+46 8 442 5730

Switzerland
JLT Re Basel Branch
+41 61 279 92 92

UK
JLT Specialty Limited
+44 20 7528 4000

JLT Reinsurance Brokers Limited
+44 20 7466 1300

Lloyd & Partners Limited
+44 20 7466 6500

JLT Benefit Solutions Limited
+44 20 7309 8100

JLT Online
+ 44 2476 851 000

Thistle Insurance Services Limited
+44 20 7309 8100

JLT Insurance Management
(Guernsey) UK
+44 1481 737 120

Americas
Barbados
JLT Insurance Management (Barbados) Limited
+1 246 432 4000

Bermuda
JLT Park Limited
+1 441 292 4364

JLT Insurance Management (Bermuda) Limited
+1 441 292 4364

Brazil
JLT do Brasil Corretagem de Seguros Ltda
+55 11 3156 3900

JLT Re Brasil Administracao e Corretagem de
Reasseguros Ltda
+ 55 21 2220 2970

Canada
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Canada Inc
+1 416 941 9551

Chile
Orbital-JLT Corredores de Seguros Limitada
+56 (2) 2232 7776

JLT Chile Corredores de Reaseguros Limitada
+56 (2) 2338 9290

Colombia
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Valencia y Iragorri
Corredores de Seguros SA
+571 326 6100

JLT Re Colombia, Corredores Colombianos de
Reaseguros SA
+571 211 2911

Peru
Mariategui JLT Corredores de Seguros SA
+511 610 9900

JLT Corredores de Reaseguros SA
+511 610 9900

USA
JLT Re (North America) Inc.
+1 212 510 1800

Africa/Middle East

South Africa
Jardine Lloyd Thompson (Proprietary) Limited
+27 11 656 1000

Bahrain
Insure Direct (Brokers) LLC
+973 1782 2622

Qatar
Insure Direct (Brokers) LLC
+974 4427 6914

UAE (Dubai)
JLT Specialty Limited
+971 4 36 97880

Asia
China
JLT Lixin Insurance Brokers Co Limited
+8620 6681 4888

Hong Kong
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Limited
+852 2864 5333

India
Jardine Lloyd Thompson India Pvt. Limited
+91 22 4068 7500

Indonesia
PT Jardine Lloyd Thompson
+6221 2995 2500

Japan
JLT Risk Services Japan Limited
+813 6730 3510

South Korea
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Korea Limited
+82 2 397 8100

Macau 
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Limited
+853 2875 5743

Jardine Shuntack Insurance Brokers Limited
+852 2864 5524

Malaysia
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Sdn Bhd
+60 3 2723 3388

Philippines
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Insurance
Brokers Inc
+632 706 8500

Singapore
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Pte Limited
+65 6333 6311

JLT Risk Solutions Asia Pte Limited
+65 6333 6006

JLT Insurance Management (Singapore)
Pte Limited
+65 6333 6006

JLT Re Asia
+65 6333 6006

Taiwan
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Limited
+886 2 2356 1155

Thailand
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Limited
+662 626 2500

Vietnam
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Limited
+848 3822 2340

Australasia
Australia
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Australia Pty Limited
+612 9290 8000

New Zealand
Jardine Lloyd Thompson Limited
+649 379 5376

For a full list of JLT’s worldwide offices and
JLT International Network partners, please
visit our website www.jltgroup.com.
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